
PINOLE CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA 

TUESDAY 
AUGUST 20, 2019 

6:00 P.M.  

2131 Pear Street, Pinole, California 

Peter Murray, Mayor 
Roy Swearingen, Mayor Pro Tem 

Norma Martinez-Rubin, Council Member 
Vincent Salimi, Council Member 
Anthony Tave, Council Member 

Public Comment: The public is encouraged to address the City Council on any matter listed on the agenda or on 
any other matter within its jurisdiction subject to the rules of decorum described in Council Resolution 2019-03.  If you 
wish to address the City Council, please complete the gold card that is provided at the rear entrance to the Council 
Chambers and hand the card to the City Clerk.  City Council will hear public comment on items listed on the agenda 
during discussion of the matter and prior to a vote.  City Council will hear public comment on matters not listed on the 
agenda during Citizens to be Heard, Agenda Item 5.  

Americans With Disabilities Act:  In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need 
special assistance to participate in a City Meeting or you need a copy of the agenda, or the agenda packet in an 
appropriate alternative format, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (510) 724-8928.  Notification at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting or time when services are needed will assist the City staff in assuring that reasonable 
arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or service.  Assisted listening devices are available 
at this meeting.  Ask the City Clerk if you desire to use this device. 

Note:  Staff reports are available for inspection at the Office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 2131 Pear Street during 
regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Monday – Thursday, and on the City Website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  
You may also contact the City Clerk via e-mail at hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us 

COUNCIL MEETINGS ARE TELEVISED LIVE ON CHANNEL 26.  They are retelecast the following Thursday at 6:00 
p.m.  The Community TV Channel 26 schedule is published on the city’s website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  City Council 
meetings are video-streamed live on the City’s website, and remain archived on the site for five (5) years. 

Ralph M. Brown Act.  Gov. Code § 54950.  In enacting this chapter, the Legislature finds 
and declares that the public commissions, boards and councils and the other public 
agencies in this State exist to aid in the conduct of the people's business.  It is the intent of 
the law that their actions be taken openly and that their deliberations be conducted openly. 
The people of this State do not yield their sovereignty to the agencies, which serve them. 
The people, in delegating authority, do not give their public servants the right to decide what 
is good for the people to know and what is not good for them to know.  The people insist on 
remaining informed so that they may retain control over the instruments they have created. 

http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/
http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/


Pinole City Council  
Agenda –August 20, 2019 
Page 2 

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY
TROOPS

2. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT
An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision: (1) publicly identify in detail the 
financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself /herself from discussing and voting on the 
matter; and (3) leave the room until after the decision has been made, Cal. Gov't Code § 87105. 

3. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning 
into the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.   

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Gov. Code § 54956.9(d)(2)  
Number of Potential Cases: 1  

4. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION

5. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments)
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes, and is subject 
to modification by the Mayor.   Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a 
matter unless it is listed on the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The 
City Council may direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future 
Council meeting. 

6. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS

A. Proclamations

B. Presentations / Recognitions 

1. Update on Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP) by Randy Iwasaki,
Execuitve Director of the Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) 

2. Pinole Valley Road, Back to School Traffic Plan by Police Lieutenant Gene
Alameda 

7. CONSENT CALENDAR
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These items 
will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or Council 
member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the Consent 
Calendar. Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent Calendar. 

A. Approve the Minutes of the Meetings of June 29 and July 2, 2019. 

B. Receive the July 13, 2019 – August 16, 2019  List of Warrants in the Amount of 
$2,184,914.00;the July 26, 2019 Payroll in the Amount of $395,271.76; and the 
August 9, 2019 Payroll in the Amount of $406,554.31 



City Council 
Agenda – August 20, 2019 
Page 3 

C. Approve An Additional Funding Allocation Of $17,500 To Complete The 
Remodel Project At Fire Station 73 [Action: Approve Resolution per Staff  
Recommendation (Kouns) 

D. Declare The Listed Property As Surplus And Designate A Purchasing Officer To 
Dispose Of The Listed Property In Accordance With The Procurement Policy  
[Action: Adopt  Resolution per Staff Recommendation  (T. Miller)] 

E. Designating The Assistant City Manager As The City’s Board Member To The  
Municipal Pooling Authority (MPA) Of Northern California (“Authority”) And The 
Finance Director As The Alternate Board Member 2019 [Action: Adopt  
Resolution per Staff Recommendation  (Fitzer)] 

F. Authorize Responses To Grand Jury Report No. 1907, Stormwater Trash 
Reduction” [Action: Authorize Mayor to Sign Response Letter (Fitzer)] 

G. Placement Of Liens For Delinquent Unpaid Waste Collection Charges Falling  
Delinquent Between January & April 2019, Considered At An Administrative  
Hearing On June 6, 2019 [Action: Approve Resolution per Staff Recommendation 
(Iopu)] 

H. Approve An Amendment To The Contract With Raney Planning And Management 
Inc.  For Environmental Review For A Development Project At 2151 Appian Way  
In An Amount Not To Exceed $52,025 [Action: Approve Resolution per Staff  
Recommendation (T. Miller)] 

I. Approving The Purchase Of A Seagrave Type 1 Fire Engine From Derotic  
Emergency Equipment In The Amount Of $884,033, Plus $85,500 Special  
Equipment For A Total Cost Of $969,533; And Considering Approval Of The  
Purchase Of A Utility  Terrain Vehicle (UTV) In The Amount Of $27,000 [Action: 
Approve Resolutions per Staff Recommendation (Kouns)] 

J. Ordinance Amending Chapter 8.36 Of The Pinole Municipal Code   
Regarding Balcony Inspections [Action:  Second Reading and Adoption 
of Ordinance per Staff Recommendation (Casher)] 

K. Amending The Master Fee Schedule For The Recreation Department Youth  
Center Fee [Action: Approve Resolution per Staff Recommendation (De La Rosa)] 

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to the 
completion of the presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. An official who engaged in 
an ex parte communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose the communication on the record 
prior to the start of the Public Hearing. 

NONE 

9. OLD BUSINESS

A. Discussion Regarding Proposed FY 2019-20 Municipal Code Updates And 
Prioritization For Updating Specific Sections [Action:  Discuss and Provide 
Direction (Casher)] 



 

City Council   
Agenda – August 20, 2019 
Page 4  

 B. Consider A Resolution Approving The Fifth Amendment And Restatement Of The  
  Joint Exercise Of Powers Agreement (JEPA) Of The West Contra Costa Integrated  
  Waste Management Authority [Action: Approve Resolution per Staff   
  Recommendation (Fitzer) 
 
 C. Approving The Council Norms Of Behavior Established During The City Council  
  Team Building Workshop [Action: Approve Resolution per Staff 
  Recommendation (Fitzer) 
 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

 NONE 
 

11. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS  
 
A. Mayor Report 

1. Announcements 
 
B. Mayoral & Council Appointments 
 1.  Strategic Plan Sub Committee 
 
C.   City Council Committee Reports & Communications 

 
D. Council Requests For Future Agenda Items 
 
E. City Manager Report / Department Staff 
  
F. City Attorney Report 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of September 3, 2019 In 

Remembrance of Amber Swartz.  
 
I hereby certify under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing Agenda was 
posted on the bulletin board at the main entrance of Pinole City Hall, 2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA, and on the City’s website, not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting date set 
forth on this agenda.  
 
POSTED:  August 15, 2019 at 4:00 P.M. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – June 29, 2019 
Page 1 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MINUTES 

June 29, 2019 

1. CALL TO ORDER & WELCOME

The City Council Meeting was held in the Pinole Youth Center, 635 Tennent Avenue, Pinole 
California.  Mayor Murray called the Special Meeting of the City Council to order at 9:00 a.m. 

COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT 

Peter Murray, Mayor 
Roy Swearingen, Mayor Pro Tem  
Norma Martinez-Rubin, Councilmember 
Vincent Salimi, Councilmember 
Anthony Tave, Councilmember 

STAFF PRESENT 

Michelle Fitzer, City Manager 

2. WORKSHOP ITEM

A. PINOLE CITY COUNCIL TEAM BUILDING 

The Pinole City Council participated in a Team Building Workshop facilitated by Management 
Partners. 

3. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular Council Meeting of July 2nd, 2019 and in
Remembrance of the Amber Swartz.

At 3:30 p.m., Mayor Murray adjourned to the Regular City Council Meeting of July 2, 2019 
In Remembrance of Amber Swartz.  

Submitted by: 

________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 

Approved by City Council: 

7A



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – July 2, 2019 
Page 1 

  CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MINUTES 

July 2, 2019 

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY
TROOPS

The City Council Meeting was held in the Pinole Council Chambers, 2131 Pear Street, Pinole, 
California.  Mayor Murray called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order at 6:02 p.m. 
and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT

A. COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT 

Peter Murray, Mayor 
Roy Swearingen, Mayor Pro Tem  
Norma Martinez-Rubin, Councilmember 
Vincent Salimi, Councilmember 
Anthony Tave, Councilmember 

B. STAFF PRESENT 

Michelle Fitzer, City Manager 
Hector De La Rosa, Assistant City Manager 
Heather Iopu, City Clerk 
Eric Casher, City Attorney 
Neil Gang, Police Chief 
Scott Kouns, Fire Chief 
Tamara Miller, Development Services Director/City Engineer 
Joseph Bingaman, Public Works Manager 

City Clerk Iopu announced the agenda was posted on June 27th, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. All legally 
required notice was provided.  

City Clerk Iopu announced that additional items pertaining to Agenda 6B1, 6B3, 7D, 8A, and 
11B2 on the agenda were provided at the dais for the Council and copies were placed at the 
rear of the Chamber for the public,  

Following an inquiry to the Council, the Council reported there were no conflicts with any items 
on the agenda.   

3. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION

The City Council convened into closed session at 6:03. 

4. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION

At 6:53 p.m. Mayor Murray reconvened the meeting into open session and announced that 
there was no reportable action. 

7A-1



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – July 2, 2019 
Page 2 

5. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments)

At 6:53 pm, the Mayor inquired if there were any Public Comments.  The following speakers 
addressed the City Council: 

Rafael Menis, resident of Pinole, announced the extended hours celebration on July 6th at the 
Pinole Library at 10:00 am and encouraged public to attend. Spoke regarding Inspector 
General’s Homeland Security report detailing the conditions at detention centers at the US 
Southern border.  Encouraged the City Council to write letter of opposition of these detainment 
practices to the Federal government. 

Susan Carlyle, resident of Pinole, stated that she has lived on Pinole Valley Road for 35 years. 
Expressed concern regarding the increase in traffic and high-speed dangerous driving.  
Suggested that the City Council form a committee to gather information and implement safety 
measures including speed bumps.  

Raju Mann, resident of Pinole, spoke regarding grand opening of her new store Menchie’s 
Yogurt at 1358 Fitzgerald on July 13th at 11:00 am. Encouraged everyone to attend. 

6. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS

A. Proclamations

1. Recognizing Earl Combs for Local Photography

A slideshow was presented of Earl Comb’s photography.  Mayor Murray presented a 
proclamation to Earl Combs recognizing his contributions to the community. 

The following speaker addressed the City Council: 

Jeff Rubin, resident of Pinole, spoke regarding Mr. Combs work and presented him with the 
“Friend of History” Award on behalf of the Pinole Historical Society. 

B. Presentations / Recognitions 

1. Sewer Update by Tamara Miller

Joe Bingaman presented an informational update on the Sewer division. 

Councilmembers asked questions regarding details of the report.  Staff addressed questions. 

The following speaker addressed the City Council: 

Rafael Menis, resident of Pinole, asked what SSO stands for.  Made comment that staff should 
address this during strategic plan process.  

Staff responded to public comment. 

2. Pinole/Hercules Water Pollution Control Plant Upgrade Project Update by
Mike Warriner 



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – July 2, 2019 
Page 3 

Mike Warriner made presentation regarding the status of the Water Pollution Control Plant 
Upgrade Project.  

Councilmembers asked questions. 

Mr. Warriner and City Manager Fitzer responded to questions. 

3. PG&E regarding Power Shut-off Program by Treva Reid & Les Putnam

Treva Reid and Les Putnam, representatives of PG&E, presented information on Community 
Wildfire Safety Program for the City of Pinole.  Outlined the plan for power outages and 
highlighted steps that the public can take to receive timely updates regarding potential outages. 

Councilmembers asked questions of PG&E representatives.  Discussion regarding safety 
concerns for community.  Questions addressed by PG&E representatives; outlined notification 
procedures, programs for customers who are reliant on energy for medical equipment, and 
announced the ways that the public can prepare for extended outages  

Information provided by City Manager Fitzer, Development Services Director/City Engineer 
Miller, Police Chief Gang, and Fire Chief Kouns regarding plans for City preparedness in the 
event of long-term power outages.   

Councilmembers asked questions.  Questions addressed by staff. 

The following speaker addressed the City Council: 

Rafael Menis, resident of Pinole, asked the PG&E representatives regarding solar power 
battery back-ups, and the differences between targeting vs. undergrounding systems.   

Public question addressed by staff. 

7. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Approve the Minutes of the Meeting of June 4, 2019. 

B. Receive the June 15, 2019 – June 28, 2019  List of Warrants in the Amount of 
$267,414.85 and the June 28, 2019 Payroll in the Amount of $385,344.22 

C. Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into A Contract With Tri Commercial In 
The Amount Not To Exceed 6% Of The Sales Price To Provide Commercial Real 
estate Broker Services For The Sale Of Several Former Redevelopment And 
Housing Assets [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (De La 
Rosa)] 

ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Swearingen/Tave to approve Consent Calendar 
Items A, B, C 

Vote: Passed 5-0 
Ayes: Murray, Swearingen, Tave, Martinez-Rubin, Salimi 
Noes:  None  
Abstain:  None 
Absent:  None 



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – July 2, 2019 
Page 4 

The following items were pulled for further discussion: 

D. Consider A Letter Of Support For ACA 1, Local Government Financing: 
Affordable Housing And Public Infrastructure [Action:  Authorize Mayor to Sign 
Letter (Fitzer)] 

E. Consider A Letter Of Opposition For SB 330 Housing Crisis Act Of 2019 [Action:  
Authorize Mayor to Sign Letter (Fitzer)] 

The following speaker addressed the City Council on Item 7 D & 7E: 

Rafael Menis, resident of Pinole, stated that legislative letters should not be listed on the 
consent calendar. 

ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Martinez-Rubin/Swearingen to approve Consent 
Calendar Items D and E 

Vote: Passed 5-0 
Ayes: Murray, Swearingen, Tave, Martinez-Rubin, Salimi 
Noes:  None  
Abstain:  None 
Absent:  None 

8. PUBLIC HEARING

A. Introduction And First Reading Of An Ordinance Of The City Of Pinole Adding
Chapter 15.60 To The Municipal Code For Management Of PCBs During Building 
Demolition Projects [Action:  Conduct Public Hearing & Introduce on First Reading 
(Casher)] 

City Attorney Casher presented a report introducing the ordinance and outlining the action. 

Councilmembers asked questions. Staff responded. 

At 10:38 p.m. Mayor Murray opened the public hearing. 

There were no public comments. 

At 10:38 p.m. Mayor Murray closed the public hearing. 

ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Swearingen/Martinez-Rubin to approve the 
ordinance. 

Vote: Passed 5-0 
Ayes: Murray, Swearingen, Tave, Martinez-Rubin, Salimi 
Noes:  None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent:  None 

9. OLD BUSINESS



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – July 2, 2019 
Page 5 

None. 

10. NEW BUSINESS

None.

11. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS

A. Mayor Report
1. Announcements

Mayor Murray announced an event in Napa on August 4th, 2019 being hosted by the office of 
Congressman Mike Thompson.  

PG&E is hosting public Open House events to provide information about Community Wildfire 
Program on July 8th in Oakland and on July 11th in Walnut Creek.  

B. Mayoral & Council Appointments 

1. Appoint Councilmember Salimi as Pinole’s Voting Delegate for League of
CA  Cities 

Mayor Murray and City Manager Fitzer provided information regarding the appointment. 

ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Tave/Swearingen to appoint Councilmember Salimi 
as Pinole’s Voting Delegate for League of CA Cities 

Vote: Passed 5-0 
Ayes: Murray, Swearingen, Tave, Martinez-Rubin, Salimi 
Noes:  None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent:  None 

2. Community Services Commission Appointments

Mayor Murray introduced the item.  The interview subcommittee Mayor Murray and 
Councilmember Martinez-Rubin recommended the following people to be appointed to the 
Community Service Commission: 

Darin Clarke, Robert Kopp, Emily Ricketts, Rafael Menis and Nickolas Teller 

ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Tave/Salimi to approve the recommendation for 
appointments to the Community Services Commission 

Vote: Passed 5-0 
Ayes: Murray, Swearingen, Tave, Martinez-Rubin, Salimi 
Noes:  None  
Abstain:  None 
Absent:  None 



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – July 2, 2019 
Page 6 

C. City Council Committee Reports & Communications 

Councilmember Salimi announced  he attended the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
(MTC) meeting where the PG&E planned power outages were discussed and the West Contra 
Costa Transportation Authority (WCCTAC) meeting and announced potential tax measures 
coming forward in 2020. 

Councilmember Martinez-Rubin presented highlights of the Mayor’s and Councilmember’s 
Executive Forum conference she attended in Newport.  Outlined the financial topics that were 
reviewed by the League of CA Cities and made comments about the importance of each in 
relation to Pinole. 

Mayor Pro Tem Swearingen thanked Bob Kopp and Sequoia Real Estate for their involvement 
in planning the Pinole Car Show event. Also recognized the Public Works department, Police 
Department and the Pinole “Explorers” group. 

Recognized the Garden Club for their work in the community to maintain City areas. 

Commented on WCCTAC and  the CCTA sales tax update. 

Councilmember Tave announced successful teambuilding event and highlighted some key 
concepts that were discussed. Thanked staff for efforts in organizing the event. 

Mayor Murray also recognized the benefit of the Council teambuilding event, announced having 
a productive meeting with East Bay Regional Park Executive Director and outlined current and 
potential projects. 

At 11:03 p.m. Councilmember Swearingen/Martinez Rubin moved to extend the meeting for 
fifteen minutes.   

ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Swearingen/Martinez-Rubin to extend the meeting 
fifteen minutes. 

Vote: Passed 5-0 
Ayes: Murray, Swearingen, Tave, Martinez-Rubin, Salimi 
Noes:  None 
Abstain:  None 
Absent:  None 

D. Council Requests For Future Agenda Items 
. 
Coucilmember Salimi requested a discussion item for a program for local hiring on projects.  
Discussion of history of this type of program in Pinole.   

City Attorney Casher addressed questions raised by Council.  Consensus by Council. 

Councilmember Martinez-Rubin asked for report on Census activities.  Consensus by Council. 

Councilmember Tave requested letter of opposition to detention camps at Southern US border. 



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – July 2, 2019 
Page 7 

E. City Manager Report / Department Staff 

City Manager Fitzer announced her retirement in December 29, 2019 and thanked the Council 
for the opportunity to serve Pinole. 

Mayor Murray thanked City Manager Fitzer for her service. Councilmembers made comments 
recognizing City Manager Fitzer for her hard work and thanking her for her service to Pinole.    

F. City Attorney Report 

None. 

12. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of July 16, 2019 In Remembrance
of Amber Swartz.

At 11:24 p.m., Mayor Murray adjourned to the Regular City Council Meeting of July 16, 2019 
In Remembrance of Amber Swartz.  

Submitted by: 

________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 

Approved by City Council: 



































































   

 CITY COUNCIL  
 REPORT 7C
  

 

 

DATE: AUGUST 20, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: SCOTT KOUNS, FIRE CHIEF  
 
SUBJECT: APPROVE AN ADDITIONAL FUNDING ALLOCATION OF $17,500 
TO COMPLETE THE KITCHEN REMODEL PROJECT AT FIRE STATION 73 
 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

It is recommended that the City Council approve an additional funding allocation of 
$17,500 to complete the kitchen remodel project at Fire Station 73.  
 

BACKGROUND  
 

On February 19, 2019, the City Council approved a mid-year budget adjustment for 
Fire Station 73 repair work which included $46,000 to complete a kitchen remodel. 
Bids came in higher than expected. The contractor, lowest bid, was selected to 
complete the work. Because the project was anticipated to start late, $44,000 was 
carried forward to the FY 2019-20 adopted budget.  The countertops, cabinets, sink, 
and dishwasher have been installed, along with updated plumbing and electrical. 
Additional items are needed to complete the project, including: flooring, LED lighting, 
a kitchen table, chairs, and replacement of the existing stove fan.  The cost of these 
additional items are estimated at $17,500. 
 

REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 

The additional items are necessary to complete the project.  The initial construction 
costs coming in higher than anticipated when the budget was approved has resulted 
in insufficient funding to complete the project as planned.  Therefore, additional 
funding is required. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT  

Staff is recommending the additional cost of $17,500 for the kitchen remodel to be 
funded from Measure S 2006 Fund Balance.  This is the original funding source for 
the project. There is sufficient Fund Balance to cover this expense. 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

A Resolution 



ATTACHMENT A 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-___ 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE AUTHORIZING AN 
ADDITIONAL FUNDING ALLOCATION OF $17,500 TO COMPLETE THE KITCHEN 

REMODEL PROJECT AT FIRE STATION 73 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Pinole Fire Department was approved for $44,000 in fiscal year 2019/20 

in Measure S 2006 Fund Balance allocation for a Fire Station 73 kitchen remodel project; and 
 
WHEREAS, although the lowest bidder was selected to complete the project, bids came 

in higher than expected; and  
 

WHEREAS, additional items are needed to complete the project, including flooring, LED 
lighting, kitchen table, kitchen chairs, and new stove fan, at a cost of approximately $17,500; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, funding for this allocation is available in the Measure S 2006 Fund Balance.  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Pinole does 

hereby: 
 
Section 1: Approve the additional funding amount of $17,500 to complete Fire Station 

73 kitchen remodel project from the Measure S 2006 Fund Balance; and 
 
Section 2: Authorize the Finance Director to amend the FY 2019/20 budget to reflect 

this change.    
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on the 20th 

day of August 2019 by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  

 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted on 
this 20th day of August 2019. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Heather Iopu 
City Clerk    



  
 

   
 

 

 CITY COUNCIL 
 REPORT   7D 
  

 
 
DATE:   AUGUST 20, 2019 
 
TO:     MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: TAMARA MILLER, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR / CITY 

ENGINEER 
 
SUBJECT:  DECLARE THE LISTED PROPERTY AS SURPLUS AND DESIGNATE 

A PURCHASING OFFICER TO DISPOSE OF THE LISTED PROPERTY 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROCUREMENT POLICY 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt a resolution to declare the listed property 
as surplus and designate the listed staff member to serve as the Purchasing Officer to 
dispose of the listed property in accordance with the Procurement Policy.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
As per Section VIII of the current Procurement Policy, “the Purchasing Officer is 
responsible for the transfer and disposition of surplus City property. ’Surplus 
Property’ is used generically to describe any City property that is no longer needed or 
useable by the holding department. The City Council shall declare item(s) surplus prior 
to disposal.” 
 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
All of the listed property is obsolete, broken, unreliable, or excessively costly to continue 
to operate.  
 
The Purchasing Officer will, as per the Purchasing Policy, determine the most 
appropriate method of disposal that best serves the interest of the City. The policy 
details appropriate methods as follows:  

 
1. Public Auction - Surplus property may be sold at public auction. City 

staff may conduct public Auctions, or the City may contract with a 
professional auctioneer including professional auction services. 
 

2. Bids - Bids may be solicited for the sale of surplus property. Surplus 
property disposed of in this manner shall be sold to the highest 
responsible bidder. 
 



City Council Report – 7D 
August 20, 2019  2 

 

3. Selling for Scrap - Surplus property may be sold as scrap if the 
Purchasing Officer deems that the value of the raw material 
exceeds the value of the property as a whole. 
 

4. Negotiated Sale - Surplus property may be sold outright if the 
Purchasing Officer determines that only one known buyer is 
available or interested in acquiring the property. 
 

5. No Value Item – Where the Purchasing Officer determines that 
specific supplies or equipment are surplus and of minimal value to 
the City due to spoilage, obsolescence or other cause or where the 
Purchasing Officer determines that the cost of disposal of such 
supplies or equipment would exceed the recovery value, the 
Purchasing Officer shall dispose of the same in such a manner 
as he or she deems appropriate and in the best interest of the 
City. 

 
For these surplused items the designated Purchasing Officer will be Tamara Miller. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The listed vans are unusable for City programs because the vehicles require specially 
licensed staff to operate.  If left unused, they will decline in value further and still require 
ongoing maintenance costs. The listed vans should be sent to auction, and the 
proceeds returned to the appropriate fund for the purchase of vehicles that can be 
utilized by City staff. 
 
The construction office trailer has been located at the Pinole/Hercules Water Pollution 
Control Plant for years, defaulted to use as storage. At the time of the PH WPCP 
Upgrade project, the trailer had to be moved to make way for improvements. The trailer 
was placed into service for a temporary office for construction management of the PH 
WPCP Upgrade project.  At the completion of the project the trailer will need to be 
removed quickly to restore Bayfront Park. The trailer no longer has a useful purpose for 
the City. Because of the cost of removing the trailer, including coaxing it under the 
Railroad Trestle over Tennent, the net expected surplus value to the City is expected to 
be minimal.  
 
Other property will be offered for sale or sent to auction. Proceeds from the sale of 
surplus property shall be returned to the appropriate fund. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT 
 
A  Resolution, with Exhibit of Surplus Equipment List 
  



ATTACHMENT A 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-___ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DECLARING THE LISTED PROPERTY 

AS SURPLUS AND DESIGNATING A PURCHASING OFFICER TO DISPOSE OF 
THE LISTED PROPERTY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROCUREMENT POLICY 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Division has been storing equipment that is 

obsolete and/or too costly to repair; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Division needs to surplus this equipment to free up 

much needed space; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Sewer Enterprise no longer has need for the construction trailer 

once the PH WPCP Upgrade project is complete; and 
 
WHEREAS, a list of equipment to be declared as surplus property is attached as 

Exhibit A; and   
 
WHEREAS, the list of equipment assigns a Purchasing Officer who in 

accordance with the Procurement Policy will determine the best means of disposal. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Pinole City Council does hereby 

declare the listed property as surplus, and designates Tamara Miler as the Purchasing 
Officer to dispose of the listed property in accordance with the Procurement Policy. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on 

the 20th day of August 2019 by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on the 20th day of August, 2019. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 



Resolution 
Exhibit A 

  

No. Description Inventory ID 
/License # Vin/Serial Number Surplus Reason Purchasing Officer Value

1 2001 Ford E350 12 Passenger Van 1182597 1FBSS31L91HA15896 Unusable Tamara Miller $1,500
2 2008 Ford E350 15 Passenger Van 1206132 1FBSS31L98DA26103 Unusable Tamara Miller $9,000

3 2000 Ford Wagon 12 Passenger Van 1041029 1FBNE31L0YHB99747 Unusable Tamara Miller $2,500

4
12' X 60' Mobile Construction Office
Trailer Obsolete Tamara Miller $0

5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25



CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 7E 

DATE: AUGUST 20, 2019 

TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  

FROM: MICHELLE FITZER, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: DESIGNATING THE ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER AS THE CITY’S 
BOARD MEMBER TO THE MUNICIPAL POOLING AUTHORITY 
(MPA) OF NORTHERN CALIFORNIA (“AUTHORITY”) AND THE 
FINANCE DIRECTOR AS THE ALTERNATE BOARD MEMBER 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt a resolution designating the Assistant 
City Manager as the City’s Board Member to the Municipal Pooling Authority (MPA) of 
Northern California (“Authority”) and the Finance Director as the Alternate Board 
Member.      

BACKGROUND 

The Authority was originally formed as a Joint Powers Agreement in 1977 among cities 
in Contra Costa County as a means of “insuring” or sharing risks as a pool because the 
traditional private insurance market became less of an option for public agencies.  The 
California Government Code allows public agencies to create separate joint power 
authorities for this purpose. 

The Authority is governed by a Board composed of one individual from each member 
city.  An alternate Board member is also named, who may vote at any meeting at 
which the regular Board member is absent.   

At this time the City Manager is the City’s designated representative on the MPA 
Board, and the Finance Director is the Alternate.   That appointment was requested 
because in 2015 when I returned to Pinole I had served on the MPA Board since 
2006, was also serving as a member of the MPA Executive Committee with one year 
remaining on that appointment, and was helping MPA through the transition of 
several key staff members.  However, before I left Pinole in 2012 my position of 
Assistant City Manager was the designated representative. 

REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 

It seems unlikely that the new City Manager will want to serve as the MPA Board 
representative, at least at the beginning of his/her tenure.  With that in mind, it is 



City Council Report 7E 
August 20, 2019 2 

recommended that the Council approve returning to the prior designation of the 
Assistant City Manager as the primary and the Finance Director as the Alternate. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution  



ATTACHMENT A 
 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2019-XX 
 

A RESOLTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE 
DESIGNATING A BOARD MEMBER AND ALTERNATE BOARD MEMBER TO 

THE CONTRA COSTA COUNTY MUNICIPAL POOLING AUTHORITY 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Pinole is a member of the Contra Costa County 
Municipal Pooling Authority (MPA); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the governing documents of the MPA require the City Council of 
each member city to appoint one Board member and to appoint one Alternative 
Board member to the Board of Directors of the Authority; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the governing documents of the MPA require that the City shall 
appoint its City Manager or the staff person responsible for the City’s risk 
management function as the primary Board member, and that the alternative Board 
member shall have the same qualifications as the primary Board member. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Pinole that it does hereby designate the position of Assistant City Manager as the 
City’s primary Board member to the MPA, and the position of Finance Director as 
the City’s alternative Board member. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of August, 2019 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:   
 
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:   
 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:   
 
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:   
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on 
this 20th day of August, 2019. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



   

 CITY COUNCIL   
 REPORT 7F 
  

 

 
DATE: AUGUST 20, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS  
 
FROM: MICHELLE FITZER, CITY MANAGER 
 TAMARA MILLER, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR/CITY 

ENGINEER 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE RESPONSES TO GRAND JURY REPORT NO. 1907, 

"STORMWATER TRASH REDUCTION" 
  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve and authorize the Mayor to sign the 
responses to the Grand Jury report No. 1808, “Joint Powers Authorities.” 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Early in California’s history, the California Constitution established grand juries in 
each county.  The California Penal Code includes provisions on the formation of 
grand juries and the powers and duties of grand juries.   
 
With respect to public agencies, grand juries are authorized to “investigate and 
report upon the operations, accounts, and records of the officers, departments, 
functions, and the method or systems of performing the duties of any such city or 
joint powers agency and make such recommendations as it may deem proper and 
fit.”  (Cal. Penal Code section 925a)  Within 90 days after the grand jury submits a 
report regarding the operations of any public agency, the “governing body of the 
public agency shall comment to the presiding judge of the superior court on the 
findings and recommendations pertaining to matters under the control of the 
governing body . . . .”  (Cal. Penal Code section 933(c))  
 
REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
On June 10, 2019, the Grand Jury requested that the City of Pinole as well as other 
public agencies in the County respond to the following issue: 
 

1.  Stormwater Trash Reduction: Are We Doing All That We Can? 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council Report 7F 
August 20, 2019    2 

 
 
GRAND JURY FINDINGS SPECIFIC TO THE CITY OF PINOLE 
 
There were nine (9) findings and four (4) recommendations in the Report.  The City 
of Pinole was required to respond to five (5) of the findings and three (3) 
recommendations.  The draft letter actually responds to six (6) of the findings and 
the three (3) required recommendations. 
 
Accordingly, the attached draft responses are presented for the City Council’s 
consideration to transmit to the presiding judge.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Responding to the Grand Jury reports took staff time.  Fiscal impacts of 
implementing recommendations in the report are not yet identified. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A Grand Jury Report: “Stormwater Trash Reduction” 
B Pinole’s Responses to the Grand Jury Report 
 
 
 



fitzer
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A

fitzer
Typewritten Text

fitzer
Typewritten Text

































 

 

CITY OF PINOLE 
 

2131 Pear Street Phone: (510) 724-9833 
Pinole, CA  94564 FAX: (510) 724-9826 
 www.ci.pinole.ca.us 
 

 
 
 
 
 
August 21, 2019  
 
Richard S. Nakano, Foreperson 
Contra Costa County Civil Grand Jury 
P. O. Box 431 
Martinez, CA 94553  
 
Re:  City of Pinole Response to Grand Jury Report No. 1907: “Stormwater Trash 

Reduction” by 2019 Contra Costa Grand Jury 
 
Dear Mr. Nakano, 
 
Below please find the City of Pinole’s responses to Grand Jury Report No. 1907: 
“Stormwater Trash Reduction”. 
 
Grand Jury Findings: 
 

1. The 2015 Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit requires most the cities, 
towns, and the County to take action to reduce trash discharge by 80%, 
from 2009 baseline levels, by July 1, 2019. 

 
 Response:  The City of Pinole agrees with this finding. 
 

4. In June, 2018, Hercules and Pinole were issued Cease and Desist Orders by 
the Water Board requiring them to improve their performance in meeting 
their trash reduction goals. 

 
 Response: The City of Pinole agrees with this finding. 
 

6. Both the CCCWP and LAFCO report that unfunded federal and state 
mandated stormwater permit compliance programs are challenged for 
cities, towns, and the County. 

 
 Response: The City of Pinole agrees with this finding. 
 

7. Concord, El Cerrito, Hercules, Lafayette, Martinez, Pinole, Pittsburg, 
Richmond, San Pablo and Walnut Creek have established ordinances 
banning Styrofoam food packaging in their communities. 

 
 Response: The City of Pinole agrees with this finding.   

fitzer
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B



Grand Jury Response to Report 1907 
August 21, 2019 
Page 2 

 
 

8. Caltrans reports that highways and ramps along portions of Highway 4 and 
24, and Interstates 80, 580, and 680 in Antioch, El Cerrito, Richmond, and 
the unincorporated areas of the County are high trash generation areas. 

 
  Response: The City of Pinole partially disagrees with this finding.  The City of 

Pinole should also be listed as impacted by high trash generation along the 
portion of Interstate 80 and the ramps that are in Pinole.  

 
9. No narrative summary of the accomplishments, challenges, cost and funds 

needed to fully comply with the Permit is provided in the required annual 
reports prepared by CCCWP, the County and each city and town. 

 
 Response: The City of Pinole agrees with this finding. 
 
 
Grand Jury Recommendations: 
 

1. The City Councils of Hercules and Pinole should each consider directing 
their city manager to implement trash controls to bring them into 
compliance with 80% trash reduction goal by December 31, 2019. 

 
 Response: The recommendation has been implemented. Summary as follows: 
 

R1-1. The City of Pinole adopted a trash capture ordinance in late 2017. The 
City hosted a vendor fair to introduce commercial property owners and managers 
to trash capture manufacturers and installers. Implementation and compliance 
efforts are ongoing. The City has performed three direct mailings at targeted 
commercial property owners and managers educating them about the 
requirements of the ordinance. We have experience a significant number of 
property owners and managers seeking and achieving compliance. We continue 
to address compliance as a component of our Code Enforcement activities.  

 
R1-2. The Pinole City Council approved as part of the FY 2019/20 annual 
operating budget more than double the funding for the Code Enforcement 
division. Staffing has increased, facilitating more active Code Enforcement 
activities.  

 
R1-3. The City of Pinole hosted a tour with three staff members of the RWQCB 
to demonstrate the compliance efforts. The RWQCB staff was able to see many 
properties in compliance as well as a few that were not in compliance.  

 
R1-4. A Code Enforcement Officer visited restaurants in Pinole in the 4th quarter 
of FY 2018/19 to educate businesses about the Styrofoam ban.  The Code 
Enforcement Officer revisited every restaurant and all were in compliance with 
the Styrofoam ban.  



Grand Jury Response to Report 1907 
August 21, 2019 
Page 3 

 
 

 
R1-5. In FY 2017/18 the Pinole City Council approved a capital project to install 
trash capture devices in several additional medium to low trash volume roads. 
Additionally, the project included the installation of trash capture devices in City 
owned parking lots in high trash capture areas. 
 

3. The Board of Supervisors and all City/Town Councils should consider 
directing staff to provide concise summary of their Annual Reports, citing 
their accomplishments, challenges, costs and funds needed to fully comply 
with the Permit, by December 31, 2019. 

 
Response:  The recommendation has not yet been implemented but in part will 
be implemented in the future. The City of Pinole will provide a concise summary 
of our accomplishments with our Annual Report. The City of Pinole is not able to 
quantify the full cost to comply with the Permit. Costs will be shared by the 
CCCWP, private property owners, Caltrans, and the City.  

 
4. The Board of Supervisors and all City/Town Councils should consider 

identifying additional review sources to fully fund Permit requirements in 
order to comply with the Permit and avoid potential liability, by June 30, 
2020. 
 
Response: The recommendation has, in part, been implemented. Additionally, 
parts of the recommendation require further analysis.  
 
R4-1. The City of Pinole has directed funding from the Solid Waste Fund for the 
purchase of a Street Sweeper to aid with permit compliance.  
 
R4-2. The City of Pinole directs some road maintenance funding toward the cost 
of implementing the street sweeping program to aid with permit compliance.  
 
R4-3. The City, as part of the CCCCWP, has supported legislation at the State 
level to create a utility user fee structure for stormwater programs. The State 
legislature has failed to pass such legislation.  
 
R4-4. The City of Pinole has already passed local sales tax revenue measures 
for Police, Fire, Recreation, and Road Maintenance. The City’s ability to continue 
to pass local sales tax measures is capped by State law. The City lacks 
adequate funding for public safety and thus needs to focus local funding 
measures here prior to unfunded State mandates.  
 

 
 
 



Grand Jury Response to Report 1907 
August 21, 2019 
Page 4 

 
 

If you have any questions about the above, please do not hesitate to contact City 
Manager Michelle Fitzer at (510) 724-8933.   

 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Peter Murray 
Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

 

 CITY COUNCIL  
 REPORT  7G
  
  

 
 
  
 
 
 
DATE: AUGUST 20, 2019  
 
TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: HEATHER IOPU, CITY CLERK  
 
SUBJECT: PLACEMENT OF LIENS FOR DELINQUENT UNPAID WASTE 

COLLECTION CHARGES FALLING DELINQUENT BETWEEN 
JANUARY & APRIL 2019, CONSIDERED AT AN 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING ON JUNE 6, 2019 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt a resolution authorizing the 
placement of liens for the purpose of collecting outstanding payments for 
garbage collection services pursuant to PMC Section 8.08.110 (b) and (c). 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Pursuant to Section 8.08 of the Pinole Municipal Code, an administrative hearing 
was held on June 6, 2019 regarding unpaid garbage collection services that fell 
delinquent between January and April 2019. No parties attended the hearing to 
protest the charges. The administrative hearing was the final step in the process 
to collect the delinquencies, prior to Council approval to place the liens on the 
subject properties to recover the full amount owed, including delinquent charges 
and administrative fees.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The City of Pinole receives an administrative recovery charge for each lien at the 
time of tax settlement or payment of the lien.  There are 108 properties on which 
liens are being imposed, representing a total of $39,091.68 in delinquent service 
charges.  The total administrative recovery fee is $60 per lien; a portion of which 
is remitted to Contra Costa County. The administrative recovery fees are 
$6,480.00; the total lien amount including recovery fees are $45,571.68.   
 
Following approval by Council, a revised list will be provided to the City Clerk for 
recording, removing properties where accounts have been brought current since 
the publication of this report. 
 
ATTACHMENT 
 
A Resolution  



ATTACHMENT A 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-___  

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF PINOLE, CALIFORNIA, PLACING LIENS 

ON PROPERTIES SITUATED IN THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF CONTRA 
COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 

UNPAID WASTE COLLECTION CHARGES FROM AN ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING 
CONDUCTED JUNE 6, 2019 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Municipal Code of the City of Pinole, Chapter 8.08, 
Section 8.08.090, subscription to garbage collection service is required for all premises 
in the City of Pinole, and the premises described in Exhibit "A" located in the City of 
Pinole, County of Contra Costa, State of California, were provided with garbage 
collection services as required by PMC, Chapter 8.08; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 8.08.110, the owners of said 
premises were notified in writing of their requirement to subscribe to and make payment 
for garbage collection services as provided in said Code Section; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the owners of the premises failed to make payment for garbage 
collection services as required (collection charges fell delinquent between January and 
April 2019); and  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 8.08.110, a hearing was held 
on June 6, 2019; and 
 
 WHEREAS, as a result thereof, the City of Pinole has incurred expenses for 
delinquent collection charges and administrative costs as enumerated in Exhibit "A"*, 
which amounts remain unpaid. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that pursuant to Section 8.08.110 of the 
Municipal Code of the City of Pinole, the City Council of the City of Pinole does hereby 
place a lien against said premises for the amounts as described above and as 
applicable to each specific premise identified as Exhibit "A" attached hereto and, by this 
reference, incorporated herein; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is hereby directed to record this 
resolution with the Office of the Recorder of Contra Costa County, California. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of August, 2019, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   COUNCILMEMBERS:    
NOES:   COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSENT:   COUNCILMEMBERS:    
ABSTAIN:    COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
I, hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted on this 20th day of  
August, 2019.   
 
_________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
*     Exhibit A is not included as an attachment to this resolution that is posted on the City website 
or disseminated as part of the City Council Agenda Packet.   The names of the individuals are 
confidential until the liens are recorded and become public record. 

 



   
 

 

CITY COUNCIL   
REPORT            7H                                                                                                                                                                                        
                                                            
                                                             

 
 
 

 
 
DATE: AUGUST 20, 2019  

 
TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

 
FROM: TAMARA MILLER, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR/CITY 

ENGINEER 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVE AN AMENDMENT TO THE CONTRACT WITH RANEY 

PLANNING AND MANAGEMENT INC.  FOR ENVIRONMENTAL 
REVIEW FOR A DEVELOPMENT PROJECT AT 2151 APPIAN WAY 
IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $52,025 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve a resolution to authorize the City 
Manager to execute an amendment to the On-Call contract with Raney Planning & 
Management for Environmental Review for a development project at 2151 Appian Way in an 
amount not to exceed $52,025; and, authorize the Finance Director to amend the FY2019/20 
budget to reflect this change. 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
On November 13, 2018, the City Council approved Resolution No. 2018-101 approving 
on-call contract services for several consulting firms including Raney Planning & 
Management, Inc. The City has been utilizing the services of Raney Planning & 
Management for environmental review for development projects.  
 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 

 
At this time the City has received an application for a new school at 2151 Appian Way 
and needs to perform an environmental analysis for the proposed project.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
This development project has an executed Development Agreement, thus as per the 
agreement the project proponent will fund all of this work effort.  
 
This task order is the fifth task order to be scoped for Raney Planning & Management, 
for four discrete projects. Two prior projects are development projects where the cost 
of the work will be reimbursed either by fees already assessed and collected or under 
a Development Agreement. The third project is environmental analysis of a City capital 
improvement project for drainage improvements on Hazel Street.  



City Council Meeting - 7H 
August 20, 2019  2 
 

 

 
As per the City Purchasing Policy, the City Manager’s signing authority is limited to 
$45,000.  This single task order exceeds the signing authority of the City Manager, and 
City Council approval is required.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A Resolution  
B  Raney Contract Amendment  

 
 



  ATTACHMENT A 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019- 

 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, 
COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 

APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE CONTRACT WITH 
RANEY PLANNING AND MANAGEMENT INC. 

FOR ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW FOR A DEVELOPMENT PROJECT AT 2151 
APPIAN WAY IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $52,025 

 
 

 
WHEREAS, on November 13, 2018, the City Council approved several on-call 

contracts, including a contract with Raney Planning & Management, for a period of four 
(4) years ending November 13, 2022, with the understanding that any contract 
amendments in excess of $45,000 be presented to the City Council for approval; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City has utilized Raney Planning & Management for many years 

for environmental review services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City continues to experience high levels of building activity with 
two such projects requiring environmental review to be performed by Raney Planning & 
Management; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City now seeks to advance a development project at 2151 
Appian Way; and  

 
WHEREAS, the project requires environmental review; and  
 
WHEREAS, Raney Planning & Management can perform the environmental 

review quickly and efficiently; and  
 

 WHEREAS, funding for this review will be paid by the project proponent as per 
an executed Development Agreement; and  

 
WHEREAS, this task order for Raney Planning & Management is not to exceed 

$52,025; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Procurement Policy limits the City Manager’s signing 
authority for consultant contracts to $45,000. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Pinole 
does hereby: 
 
Section 1: Authorize the City Manager to execute an amendment to the On-Call 
contract with Raney Planning & Management for Environmental Review for a 
development project at 2151 Appian Way in an amount not to exceed $52,025; and 
 



Pinole City Council 
Resolution No. 2019-__ 
Page 2 

 

 
Section 2: Authorize the Finance Director to amend the FY 2019/20 budget to reflect 
this change.  
  

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Pinole held on the 20th day of August 2019, by the following vote: 

 
 
 

AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:    

NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:     

ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:     

ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:     

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on the 20th day of August 2019. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 



ATTACHMENT B 

 

  

AMENDMENT TO THE 
CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND  

RANEY PLANNING AND MANAGEMENT, INC. 
 

This Amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement dated November 20, 2018 (the 
“Agreement”), between the City of Pinole, a general law city and municipal corporation, 
(“City”) and  Raney Planning & Management, Inc. (“Consultant”) (together sometimes 
referred to as “Parties”) is approved as of the date executed below. 
 
Effect of Amendment.  The terms and conditions of this Amendment are intended by 
the Parties to modify the Agreement.  To the extent there is any inconsistency between 
the terms of this Amendment and the terms of the Agreement and/or its Appendix, the 
terms of this Amendment shall control. 
 
Exhibit A and B of the Agreement are amended to include:  
 
Environmental review and documentation for the Making Waves Academy Pinole 
Elementary School project in the form of an Initial Study-Mitigated Negative 
Declaration for an amount not to exceed $52,025 as specified in the attached 
proposal dated July 24, 2019.   
 
With the exception of the foregoing, all other terms and conditions in the Services 
Agreement, dated November 20th, 2018, remain in force and effect.  
 

The Parties have executed this Amendment to the Agreement as of the date signed 
by the Authority. 
 
City of Pinole      Contractor 
  
      
____________________________  _______________________ 
Michelle Fitzer       
City Manager         
 
 
Dated: _____________________   Dated: __________________ 
 
Approved as to Form     
        
 
Eric S. Casher 
City Attorney 
 

Dated: _____________________  
 



   

 

 CITY COUNCIL  
 REPORT 7I 
  

 
 
 

DATE: AUGUST 20, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: SCOTT KOUNS, FIRE CHIEF 
 
SUBJECT: APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF A SEAGRAVE TYPE 1 FIRE 

ENGINE FROM DEROTIC EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $884,033, PLUS $85,500 SPECIAL EQUIPMENT FOR A 
TOTAL COST OF $969,533; AND CONSIDERING APPROVAL OF THE 
PURCHASE OF A UTILITY TERRAIN VEHICLE (UTV) IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $27,000 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt resolutions:  
 

1. Approving the purchase of a Seagrave Type 1 Fire Engine from Derotic 
Emergency Equipment in the amount of $884,033 incl. taxes and fees, with an 
added cost of $85,500 for special equipment and tools, for a combined total of 
$996,533 for the fire engine. 
 

2. Considering approval for the purchase of a utility terrain vehicle in the amount of 
$27,000.    

 
BACKGROUND 
 
Funding allocation for a new fire engine was approved in June 2018 in the amount of 
$1,000,000. The apparatus specification build up was completed and submitted to the 
manufacturer in May 2019. The total price for the apparatus is $884,033 including tax 
and fees. This new fire engine will be placed as our front line equipment and the 
existing Engine 73 will become a reserve engine. 
 
Upon inspecting the new East Bay Regional Park Bay Trail Pedestrian Bridge at Pinole 
Shores Park, it was determined that the bridge is not large enough to accommodate a 
fire engine or ambulance. Having a UTV will enable the fire department to provide 
emergency access and medical transport. 
 
 
REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
The Seagrave Fire Apparatus and Derotic Emergency Equipment proposal for the fire 
engine is:  
  



City Council Repor 7I 
August 20, 2019 2 

● One (1) Seagrave Model DB-50-CT Capitol Cab Pumper, based on the requirements
set forth by the Pinole Fire Department. 

● The price is Eight Hundred Eighty Four Thousand and Thirty Three ($884,033) – COD
Contract, incl. tax and fees. 

● The proposal was based on the H-GAC - XC01 executed contract for FS12-17,
effective December 1, 2017 through November 30, 2019. Seagrave agrees to sell said 
fire apparatus through the H-GAC contract extending all pricing, terms, and conditions.  

● Delivery will be approximately 300 days after a signed copy of the approved drawings
is received by Seagrave Fire Apparatus, LLC. 

Hose, nozzles, adapters, medical equipment, SCBAs, and other hand tools will be 
transferred from the current fire engine to the new engine. However, there will be 
additional equipment purchased to be placed onto the new fire engine that is an 
upgrade from the equipment on our reserve fire engine. These upgrades include rescue 
tools; hydraulic cutter, spreader, and ram; forcible entry saws and tools, ventilation fan, 
portable lighting, Rapid Intervention Equipment, narcotics safe, and EMS equipment. 
These items are being recommended for purchase to replace our current dated 
equipment, and we typically do not purchase capital equipment like this at any other 
time unless it is broken. The total cost of the equipment is $85,500, which brings the 
total cost of the new fire engine to $969,533.    

Since the engine came in under the total budget allocation, staff is requesting that the 
Council consider adding a small emergency response vehicle, Utility Terrain Vehicle 
(UTV) capable of transporting patients to an ambulance. This vehicle can provide other 
emergency response services during wildland fires and other disasters. A UTV would be 
especially helpful in the event of a medical emergency on the new East Bay Regional 
Park Bay Trail Pedestrian Bridge, as that structure is not large enough to accommodate 
a fire engine or ambulance. The additional cost for an outfitted UTV is $27,000, which 
keeps the total requested purchase within the FY 2019/20 budget allocation of 
$1,000,000.

FISCAL IMPACT 

The cost for the Seagrave Fire Engine is $809,125 plus $74,908 tax for a total of 
$884,033. Adding the required equipment (rescue tools) is another $85,500. The total 
cost of the new engine including tools and equipment will therefore be $969,533. 

The utility terrain vehicle (UTV) costs $27,000. 

Approval of both units brings the total cost to $996,533. 

The FY 2019/20 budget includes $1,000,000 in one time funding for the purchase of a 
new fire engine out of General Fund balance. 



City Council Repor 7I  
August 20, 2019  3 

 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
A Resolutions 
B Contract with Derotic Emergency Equipment 
C Photo of UTV 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-XX 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, APPROVING  PURCHASE OF ONE (1) 

SEAGRAVE TYPE 1 FIRE ENGINE IN THE AMOUNT OF $884,033 INCLUDING 
TAXES AND FEES FROM DEROTIC EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT THROUGH 

PURCHASING AGREEMENT WITH SEAGRAVE FIRE APPARATUS, LLC; PLUS AN 
ADDED $85,500 FOR SPECIAL EQUIPMENT AND TOOLS FROM DIFFERENT 

VENDOR/S, FOR A TOTAL FIRE ENGINE COST OF $969,533 
 
 

WHEREAS, funding allocation was approved in June 2018 for the amount of 
$1,000,000; and 

 
WHEREAS, apparatus specification build up was completed and submitted to the 

manufacturer in May 2019; and  
 
WHEREAS, total price for the apparatus is Eight Hundred Eighty Four Thousand 

And Thirty Three Dollars ($884,033) including tax and fees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the new fire engine will serve as our front line equipment and the 

existing Engine 73 will serve as a reserve engine; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposal was based on the H-GAC – XC01 executed contract 

for FS12-17, effective December 1, 2017 through November 30, 2019 with Seagrave 
Fire Apparatus, LLC; and 

 
WHEREAS, delivery of the new fire engine will be approximately three-hundred 

(300) days after a signed copy of the approved drawings is received by Seagrave Fire 
Apparatus, LLC; and 

  
WHEREAS, additional equipment purchases in the amount of Eighty Five 

Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($85,500) will be necessary to be placed onto the new 
fire engine which are upgrades from the equipment on our reserve fire engine. 

 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Pinole: 
 
Section 1.  The City Council hereby declares that the purchase of the new fire engine is 

justified and authorizes the City Manager to enter into an agreement to 
purchase one (1) Seagrave Type 1 Fire Engine at a cost of Eight Hundred 
Eighty Four Thousand And Thirty Three Dollars ($884,033) including taxes 
and fees from Seagrave Fire Apparatus, LLC through Purchasing 
Agreement with Seagrave Fire Apparatus, LLC. 

 
Section 2. The City Council hereby declares that the acquisition of updates for the new 

fire engine is justified and authorizes the City Manager to purchase 

ATTACHMENT A



City Council Resolution 2019- 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

additional equipment in the amount of Eighty Five Thousand Five Hundred 
Dollars ($85,500). 

 
Section 3.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to take all actions and execute all 

documents necessary to meet the intent of this Resolution.  
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on 

the 20th day of August, 2019 by the following vote:  
 

 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:   
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:   
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on 
this 20th day August 2019. 
 

 
____________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk  
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019- XX 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, APPROVING  PURCHASE OF ONE (1) 

UTILITY TERRAIN VEHICLE (UTV) IN THE AMOUNT OF $27,000. 
 
 

WHEREAS, funding allocation for a new fire engine was approved in June 2018 
for the amount of $1,000,000 with total purchase price coming in under said amount; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, it is requested that the Council consider adding a utility terrain 

vehicle (UTV), capable of responding to patients for medical calls, or fires, 
earthquake or other disasters in hard-to-reach areas of the City; and  

 
WHEREAS, the total price for the Utility Terrain Vehicle is Twenty Seven 

Thousand ($27,000), including tax and fees; and 
 

WHEREAS, this vehicle will allow Firefighters to get into places their other 
vehicles can’t reach, whether it be pedestrian bridges, hilly terrain, rural areas, or 
tight urban environments.  This vehicle will also be able to transport patients. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Pinole does  
hereby authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement to purchase one (1) 
Utility Terrain Vehicle at a cost of Twenty Seven Thousand ($27,000) including taxes 
and fees. 
 
 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day August 2019, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSENT:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  

 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on 
this 20th day August 2019. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 

ATTACHMENT A



 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

Page 1 of 4 

CONTRACT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between Seagrave Fire Apparatus, LLC of Clintonville, 

Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as the “Seller,” and City of Pinole Fire Department, Pinole, 

California, by its authorized representative, hereinafter referred to as the “Purchaser.” 

1. The Seller hereby agrees to furnish One (1) of Seagrave model DB50CT Capitol 

Pumper, hereinafter referred to as “Apparatus and Equipment,” according to the 

mutually agreed specifications and change order documents hereto attached and made a 

part of this contract, and to deliver the same as hereinafter provided. 

2. The Seller guarantees that all material and workmanship in and about the Apparatus and 

Equipment shall comply with the mutually agreed specifications and change orders. In 

the event there is any conflict between the City Bid Specifications and the Seagrave Bid 

Proposal, the mutually agreed specifications and change orders will prevail. The standard 

Seagrave Limited Warranty will apply as provided for in the mutually agreed 

specifications and change orders. Minor details of materials and construction, not 

otherwise specified, shall be left to the decision of the Seller who shall be solely 

responsible for the design, engineering and construction of all features of the Apparatus 

and Equipment.  

3. Any changes to the contract or purchase order must be approved in advance through the 

issuance of a written change order by either Party. A written change order requires the 

written approval of both the Seller, and the Purchaser. The Seller will not assume 

responsibility for performing any change requested but not approved by the Purchaser 

within five (5) days of the change order submission for approval. 

4. The Apparatus and Equipment shall be ready for delivery from Clintonville, Wisconsin, 

within two hundred and eighty (280) calendar days after the receipt of the (i) mutually 

agreed specifications, (ii) change order documents and (iii) approval drawing signed by 

the authorized representative of the Purchaser. The mutually agreed specifications and 

change order documents and approval drawing shall be delivered to the Purchaser for 

their signature in not more than thirty-one (31) days from contract receipt at Seagrave or 

not more than five days from pre-construction meeting, if so provided. Delays due to 

change orders, strikes, failures to obtain materials, or other causes beyond Seagrave’s 

control will be just cause for delay in delivery. The completed Apparatus and Equipment 

shall be delivered to the Purchaser at: 

City of Pinole Fire Department 

880 Tennent Avenue 

Pinole, CA 94564 

 

5. A competent representative shall, upon request, be timely furnished by the Seller to demonstrate 

said Apparatus and Equipment for the Purchaser and to familiarize the Purchaser’s employees in 

the operation and handling of the Apparatus and Equipment. 



 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

Page 2 of 4 

6. The Purchaser purchases and agrees to pay for the Apparatus and Equipment, the sum of 

Eight Hundred Nine Thousand, One Hundred Twenty-Five Dollars ($809,125.00), 

state, federal, FET, or local taxes not included. Payment of any such taxes are the 

responsibility of the Purchaser. Progress payments shall be made as follows: The first 

payment shall be 25% of the purchase price, made at arrival at the Factory of the 

major components. The second payment shall be 25% of the purchase price, made at 

chassis laydown. The third payment shall be 25% of the purchase price, made at 

completion of the chassis. The fourth payment shall be 20% of the purchase price, 

made upon completion of the Final Inspection at the Factory, prior to shipment. The 

fifth and final payment shall be 5% of the purchase price and shall be made upon 

delivery to and acceptance by the Purchaser. 

6.1 All payments shall be made payable to Seagrave Fire Apparatus, LLC and shall be 

overnight delivered directly to: 

Seagrave Fire Apparatus, LLC 

7285 Solutions Center 

Chicago, IL  60677-7002 

 

6.2 The Apparatus and Equipment must be paid in full prior to being placed in fire 

service. 

6.3 If more than one piece of Apparatus and Equipment is covered by this Contract, 

the above terms of payment shall apply to each piece, and an invoice covering 

each piece shall be rendered in the proper amount. 

7. In the case that no final inspection is made by the Purchaser at the factory prior to 

shipment and the Purchaser desires to test the Apparatus and Equipment upon receipt, 

such test shall be made within three (3) days after arrival at the delivery destination 

specified above. A written report of such test shall be delivered forthwith to the Seller at 

its principal office at Clintonville, Wisconsin, or via email to the Seller’s designated 

representative. If no such test be made, or if no such report be made by the Purchaser 

within three (3) days after arrival, then the Apparatus and Equipment shall be considered 

as fully complying with the contract specifications. 

8. It is agreed that the Apparatus and Equipment covered by this contract shall remain the 

property of the Seller until the Apparatus and Equipment is delivered and accepted by the 

Purchaser, such acceptance shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. In case of any 

default in payment and failure to cure within ten (10) business days, the Seller may take 

full possession of the Apparatus and Equipment, or of the piece or pieces upon which 

default has been made, and any payments that have been made shall be applied as rent in 

full for the use of the Apparatus and Equipment up to date of taking possession. 

9. In the event that any applicable Federal or State Regulations (DOT, FMVSS, EPA, etc.), 

National Fire Protection Association Standards or import tariffs which are enacted during 

the course of this contract, and which requires a change in the contract specifications and 

purchase price in order for the Apparatus and Equipment to comply with such regulation, 



 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

Page 3 of 4 

the parties will execute a change order describing the change in the specifications and 

increasing the purchase price by an amount equal to the increase in the costs of producing 

the Apparatus and Equipment. 

10. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 

State of California without regard to principles of conflict of laws. Each party hereby 

consents that the exclusive venue for any dispute of claim relating to this Agreement shall 

be in the state courts sitting in Contra Costa County, California. Each party hereby 

consents to the personal jurisdiction of such courts. 

11. Except for damages, claims or losses due to Seagrave’s acts of a breach of contract, 

willful misconduct or gross negligence, Purchaser or user, to the extent permitted by law, 

will indemnify and hold Seagrave and Seagrave’s property, free and harmless from any 

liability for losses, claims, injury to or death of any person, including Purchaser or user, or 

for damage to property arising from Purchaser or user using and possessing the Apparatus 

or from the acts or omissions of any person or persons, including Purchaser or user, using 

or possessing the Apparatus with Purchaser or user’s express or implied consent. The 

provisions hereof shall survive expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

12. Risk of loss shall pass to the Purchaser upon delivery and Purchaser’s acceptance of the 

Apparatus and Equipment. 

13. To be binding the contract must be signed and approved by an Officer of Seagrave Fire 

Apparatus, LLC. This contract and mutually-agreed specifications and change order 

documents take precedence over all previous negotiations, and no representations are 

considered as entering into this contract except as are contained herein or in the mutually-

agreed specifications and change order documents included herein. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, said parties have caused these presents to be executed and the 

Purchaser has caused its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed, and attested by its authorized 

representatives, on this  day of _________________, 2019. 

 

City of Pinole Fire Department, Pinole, CA (“Purchaser”) 

 

By        

 

Title        

Purchaser 

 

By        

 

Title        

Purchaser 

 

 

SEAGRAVE FIRE APPARATUS, LLC (“Seller”) 



 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

Page 4 of 4 

 

By        

 Ulisses D. Parmeziani 

 

Title VP and COO 

Seller 

 

Date of Acceptance:      

 

 
3325309.1  



ATTACHMENT C



   

  CITY COUNCIL  
  REPORT 7J 

 
 
DATE: AUGUST 20, 2019 
 
TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: ERIC S. CASHER, CITY ATTORNEY 
 
COPY: MICHELLE FITZER, CITY MANAGER 
 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 8.36 OF THE PINOLE 
MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING BALCONY INSPECTIONS  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council waive the second reading of and adopt an 
ordinance to amend Chapter 8.36 of the Pinole Municipal Code regarding balcony 
inspections. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Municipal Code Chapter 8.36 requires a property owner to inspect all balconies on 
his or her property upon the occurrence of certain triggering events, such as prior to 
the close of escrow for the sale or transfer of the property. 
 
The California Legislature recently adopted SB 721, which generally requires 
property owners to complete inspections of balconies in multifamily residential 
buildings once every six (6) years.  The City Council introduced and conducted a 
first reading of an ordinance to amend Chapter 8.36 to eliminate the possibility of 
unnecessary duplicative inspections on July 16, 2019.  The detailed staff report from 
that meeting is included as Attachment B.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Chapter 8.36 requires a property owner to have a qualified professional inspect all 
balconies on his or her property when certain events occur.  The final inspection 
report is submitted to the City, and if all necessary repairs are completed within six 
(6) months of the initial inspection, the City issues a certificate of compliance for the 
property.  A certificate of compliance is valid for five (5) years.   
 
SB 721, which took effect January 1, 2019, requires property owners to complete 
inspections of balconies in multifamily residential buildings approximately once every 
six (6) years.  Under SB 721, copies of inspection reports are required to be 
submitted to the City as the local agency responsible for enforcing the building code. 
 



City Council Report 7J  
August 20, 2019 

The proposed ordinance would authorize the City to issue a certificate of compliance 
pursuant to Chapter 8.36 for inspections performed pursuant to SB 721.  This will 
eliminate the need for duplicative inspections.  In addition, the proposed ordinance 
incorporates the penalties authorized by SB 721 into the Municipal Code. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Adopting the proposed Ordinance will have no direct fiscal impact.  Costs related to 
staff review of balcony inspections are recovered through inspection fees.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A  Ordinance (including text amendments to Municipal Code) 
B  July 16, 2019 Staff Report  
 
 
 

 



ATTACHMENT A 

1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-___ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE  
AMENDING CHAPTER 8.36 OF THE PINOLE MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING 

BALCONY INSPECTIONS 
 

  
 WHEREAS, in 2017 the City Council added Chapter 8.36, “Balcony Inspection for Real 
Property Sales,” to the Pinole Municipal Code; and 

 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 8.36 requires a property owner to inspect any balcony located on 
real property prior to certain events occurring, such as the sale or transfer of the property; and 
  
 WHEREAS, Chapter 8.36 applies to balconies located on residential or non-residential 
property; and  
 
 WHEREAS, when balconies are satisfactorily inspected and repaired, the City issues a 
certificate of compliance for the balcony; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Legislature recently enacted SB 721, which establishes a statewide 
requirement for owners of multifamily residential property to inspect balconies on their property 
at least every six (6) years; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend Chapter 8.36 to allow balcony 
inspections performed pursuant to SB 721 to satisfy the requirements of Chapter 8.36 in order to 
eliminate unnecessary and duplicative inspections.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Pinole does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1. Recitals.   
 
The above recitals are true and correct and made a part of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 2. Municipal Code Amendment – Section 8.36.085. 
 
Section 8.36.085 is hereby added to the Municipal Code to read as follows:  
 
“8.36.085 Inspections Pursuant to State Law 
 
If a Property Owner, or its designee, performs an inspection of a balcony pursuant to, and in 
compliance with all requirements of, Health and Safety Code section 17973, the City shall issue 
a certificate of compliance pursuant to Section 8.36.080, even if no inspection of the balcony was 
required by this chapter.  The issuance of the certificate of compliance shall be contingent on the 
Property Owner providing the City with a copy of the final inspection report and performing all 
required repairs in the manner required by Health and Safety Code section 17973, as that section 
may be amended from time to time.”   



ATTACHMENT A 

2 

 
Section 3. Municipal Code Amendment – Section 8.36.140. 
 
Section 8.36.140 is hereby added to the Municipal Code to read as follows:  
 
“8.36.140 Penalties 
 
Any violation of this Chapter may be punished pursuant to Chapter 1.12 of this Code, or as 
authorized by Health and Safety Code section 17973, as that section may be amended from time 
to time.” 
 
Section 4. Severability. 
 
If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is 
held invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance, including the application of such part or provision 
to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby and shall continue in full force 
and effect.  To this end, provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  The City Council of the City 
of Pinole hereby declares that it would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, 
paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase hereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more 
sections, subsections, subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, or phrases be held 
unconstitutional, invalid, or unenforceable. 
 
Section 5. California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”). 
 
The proposed amendments are exempt from CEQA based on the rule set forth in CEQA 
Guidelines Section 5061(b)(3) that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for 
causing a significant effect on the environment.  As a series of text amendments and additions, it 
can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the proposed amendments to the 
Municipal Code will have a significant effect on the environment. 
 
Section 6. Effective Date. 
 
In accordance with California Government Code Section 36937, this Ordinance shall take effect 
and be in force on the thirty-first day after adoption. 
 
Section 7. Publication. 
 
Within fifteen (15) days after the passage of this Ordinance the City Clerk shall cause this 
Ordinance or a summary thereof to be published or to be posted in at least three public places in 
the City of Pinole in accordance with the requirements of California Government Code Section 
36933. 
 
 
 
 
 



ATTACHMENT A 

3 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this ___ day of August, 2019, by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
             
       Peter Murray, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Heather Iopu, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Eric S. Casher, City Attorney 
 
 
3320667.1  



 CITY COUNCIL 
 REPORT 8A

DATE: JULY 16, 2019 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

FROM: ERIC S. CASHER, CITY ATTORNEY 

COPY: MICHELLE FITZER, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 8.36 OF THE PINOLE 
MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING BALCONY INSPECTIONS 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council introduce and waive the first reading of an 
ordinance to amend Chapter 8.36 of the Pinole Municipal Code regarding balcony 
inspections.  

BACKGROUND 

In 2017, the City Council added Chapter 8.36 to the Municipal Code to require 
periodic inspections of balconies within the City.  This ordinance was prompted by 
the tragic collapse of a balcony at an apartment complex in Berkeley, which resulted 
in several fatalities. 

Pursuant to Chapter 8.36, a property owner must have a qualified professional 
inspect all balconies on his or her property in the following situations: 

1. Upon application for a certificate of occupancy for a new building;
2. Prior to the close of escrow for the sale or transfer of the property; or
3. In a probate or other testamentary proceeding or in the event of a transfer by

other means.

The California Legislature recently adopted SB 721, which took effect January 1, 
2019, and requires property owners to complete periodic balcony inspections for 
multifamily residential buildings.  In general, SB 721 requires inspections to occur at 
least once every six years.  SB 721 does not preempt the City’s Balcony Ordinance, 
or conflict with the City’s ordinance in any way, but it requires inspections on a 
difference schedule than what is required by the City. 

DISCUSSION 

Chapter 8.36 requires a property owner to have a qualified professional inspect all 
balconies on his or her property when certain events occur, such as prior to the sale 

ATTACHMENT B



City Council Report 8A 
July 16, 2019 

 

of the property.  The final inspection report is submitted to the City, and if all 
necessary repairs are completed within six (6) months of the initial inspection, the 
City issues a certificate of compliance for the property.  A certificate of compliance is 
valid for five (5) years, thus if a property owner has a valid certificate of compliance, 
he or she does not need to perform any more inspections even if another triggering 
event occurs within the five (5) year period.   
 
SB 721, which took effect January 1, 2019, requires property owners to complete 
periodic balcony inspections.  Unlike Chapter 8.36 which applies to all balconies, SB 
721 only applies to balconies in multifamily residential buildings, such as apartment 
buildings.  SB 721 generally requires the inspections to be performed once every six 
(6) years, and is not tied to any triggering events.  Under SB 721, copies of 
inspections are required to be submitted to the City as the local agency responsible 
for enforcing the building code, and necessary repairs must be completed within one 
hundred and eight (180) days.  
 
The proposed ordinance would authorize the City to issue a certificate of compliance 
pursuant to Chapter 8.36 for inspections performed pursuant to SB 721, even if no 
triggering event occurred that required an inspection under Chapter 8.36.  This will 
eliminate the need for duplicative inspections.  For example, without the proposed 
amendment, a property owner who is required to perform an inspection under SB 
721, and then decides to sell his or her property one year later, would be required to 
conduct an additional inspection pursuant to Chapter 8.36, since sale of property is a 
triggering event.  The ordinance allows a certificate of compliance to be issued if the 
inspection complies with the requirements of state law, and all necessary repairs are 
performed.  
 
In addition, the proposed ordinance incorporates the penalties authorized by SB 721 
into the Municipal Code.  Those penalties are similar to the penalties already 
authorized by the Municipal Code, but also explicitly authorizes the City to record 
any penalties assessed as a lien against the property.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Adopting the proposed Ordinance will have no direct fiscal impact.  Costs related to 
staff review of balcony inspections are recovered through inspection fees.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A – Ordinance (including text amendments to Municipal Code) 
 
 
 
3320691.2  



   

 

 CITY COUNCIL  
 REPORT 7K  

 
 
 
DATE: AUGUST 20, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM:  MARIA PICAZO, RECREATION MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: AMENDING THE MASTER FEE SCHEDULE FOR THE RECREATION 

DEPARTMENT YOUTH CENTER FEE  
 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve a resolution approving changes to the 
City’s Master Fee Schedule for the Recreation Department.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City has a comprehensive Master Fee Schedule which regulates what fee can be 
charged for various City services and facilities.  The Recreation Department has fees 
regulated by this Master Fee Schedule which includes Tiny Tots, Youth Center, Senior 
Center, Athletic Fields, Tennis Courts, Park and Facility Rentals.   Over the past couple 
of years, the Youth Center has gone through a transition in the services it offers the 
community and the fees for such service.  While new Youth Center Enrichment 
programs have been implemented, the Master Fee schedule has not been updated to 
reflect our current practices.  

REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
Staff wants to ensure that all fees and services are updated on the Master Fee 
Schedule and is therefore recommending updating the fee schedule. Attachment B 
reflects the proposed changes.  A summary of some of the changes are as follows: 
 

• Updating of the Tiny Tots Summer, Winter and Fall program fees 
• Update of Athletic/Park Fields rental fee 
• Eliminating the School of Performing Arts fees (services are now under the   

Pinole Community Players) 
• Eliminating the Youth Center After School fees and Adding the Enrichment 

Program Fees 
• Updating the Senior Center Salon Services and fundraising event fees 
• Updating the Facility rental fees  

 
 
 
 
  



City Council Report 7K 
Meeting Date: August 20, 2019  2 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There would be minor positive to no fiscal impact as the City is currently charging the 
fees. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A Resolution 
B Proposed fee schedule changes 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019 -XX 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE AMENDING 
THE RECREATION DEPARTMENT SECTION OF THE PINOLE MASTER FEE 

SCHEDULE 

WHEREAS, the City has a comprehensive Master Fee Schedule which regulates 
what fee can be assessed for various City services and facilities; and   

WHEREAS, upon evaluation of the Master Fee Schedule and current fees, staff 
noticed that the fees that are currently assessed in the Recreation Department and what 
was listed on the Master Fee Schedule were not consistent; and  

WHEREAS, staff wants to ensure that all fees assessed and services are 
consistent with what is listed on the Master Fee Schedule, and is recommending that 
the Pinole Master Fee Schedule is updated to reflect the changes proposed in Exhibit B. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Pinole 
does hereby approve the amendment of the Master Fee Schedule specific to the 
Recreation Department as reflected in the attached Exhibit A.    

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Pinole held on the 20th day of August, 2019 by the following vote: 

AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS: 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS: 

I hereby certify that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on this August 20, 2019. 

______________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 

ATTACHMENT A



1 

RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
(R-2011-88/December 6, 2011, Amended R-2012-29/April 3, 2012 & R-2013-04/Feb 5, 2013, March 18, 2014 ) 

Tiny Tots 
M/W/F a.m. Resident Monthly $252.00 . 

Non-resident Monthly $293.00 
M/W/F p.m. Resident Monthly $209.00 

Non-resident Monthly $244.00 
T/Th Resident Monthly $141.00 

Non-resident Monthly $162.00 
Summer  M/W/F a.m. Resident (per 8  week session) $554.00 

Non-Resident  (per 8  week session) $644.00 
Summer T/Th a.m. . Resident  (per 8  week session) $460.00 

Non-Resident  (per 8  week session) $536.00 
Late Pick Up Within 15 minutes After Grace Period $19.00 

Every 10 Minutes Thereafter $19.00 
Late Payment After the 7th of the Month $12.00 

After the 15th of the Month $36.00 
Administrative Membership Fee $45.00 
Athletic Fields 
Youth and Adult Leagues Resident/Pinole  Organizations-Hourly $14.00 

Non-Resident/Non-Pinole  Org.—Hourly $21.00 
Lighting Fee at Fernandez Park $11.00 
Tennis Courts 
Weekdays Resident $5.00/hr/court 

Non-Resident $7.00/hr/court 
Weekends and Holidays Resident $7.00/hr/court 

Non-Resident $10.00/hr/court 
Commercial Use—Instructor Fee $10.00/hr/court 
Pinole Seals Swim Team 
Annual Fee $7, 500 
Park Rentals 
Fernandez Park BBQ Area- 
per 5 hour block  

Resident $110.00 
Non-Resident $138.00 

Gazebo-per day Resident $250.00 
Non-resident $313.00 

Inflatable Jumper Fee Resident $50.00 
Non-resident $75.00 

Pinole Valley Park BBQ 
Area-per 5 hour block 
per area 

Resident $55.00 
Non-resident $83.00 

Youth Center (amended 4-12-2012, R-2012-29 & 2-5-2013/R-2013-04, R-2014-12 (3/18/2014) 
Summer Camp-Weekly Resident 

 
$200.00 

 Non-Resident $233.00 
Leader In Training Program  Resident 

 
 $100.00 
  Non-Resident  $120.00 

Extended Hours 
*Camp Participants Only 

Resident $38.00 

Non-Resident $44.00 
School Break Camps Resident $200.00 

Non-Resident $233.00 

ATTACHMENT B



2 

 

 

 
Late Payment 

 $14.00/week & increases 
$10.00 each subsequent week 

 
Late Pick Up 

 $1.00/minute after 5-minute 
grace period 

Days Off Care Hours 8:30am – 6:00pm  
 Resident $48.00  day 
 Non-Resident $53.00 day  
 Extended Care (7:00-8:30 am) $30 day 
Senior Center 
Drop-In Classes Member 

Non-Member 
$1.00 to $7.00 per class 
$2.00 to $7.00 per class 

Lunch  $.50 to $7.00 
Special Activities  $3.00 to $9.00 
Special Luncheons  $9.00 
Salon Services               $10.00 to $50.00 
 Shampoo/Set/Blow Dry $20.00 
 Hair Cut and Blow Dry $20.00 
 Hair Cut $10.00 
 Shampoo and Set  $10.00 
 Color $30.00 
 Perm $50.00 
 Highlights $40 & up 
Fundraiser Events                 $5.00 to $55.00  
 Monthly Social Dance $12.00  
 Alcoholic Drinks $3.00 
 Pancake Breakfast Fundraiser  

 
 

$8.00  Adult 
$4.00 Child 

Annual Membership  $30.00 
Travel  Varies based on trip cost 
Classes 

Adult and Youth Classes Resident 40% of Instructor Fee plus 
$6.00 Processing fee 

 Non-Resident Add 10% to Resident fee 
Community Events 
Booth Fees For Profit Pinole Business $75.00 
 For Profit-Non-Pinole Business $100.00 
 Non-Profit $30.00 
Senior Center Craft Faire  $20.00-$50.00 
   

Drop-In Activities  Varies based on activity 
 

Add 10%to resident fee 
Enrichment Sessions at Schools  Varies based on enrichment 

session and provider 
Enrichment Sessions at PYC Resident 

 
       Non-Resident       

Varies based on enrichment 
session and provider 
 

Add 10%to resident fee 



3 

 

 

Youth Center Main Area Booking $50.00 
120 Person Capacity Deposit without alcohol permit $250.00 
 Deposit with alcohol permit $500.00 
 Resident (4 Hours) $250.00 
 Non-Resident (4 Hours) $325.00 
 Resident for Each Add’l hour $65.00 
 Non-Resident for Each Add’l Hour $85.00 
 Decoration Time (up to 2 hours) $45.00/hr 
 Change of Date/Late Fee $75.00 

Facility Rental 
Non-Profit Rates Apply to 501(c)3 Nonprofits, Faith Organizations and Schools only 

Alcohol Permit $75.00 .  
Certificate of Insurance Purchase $160.00 

Certificate required but may be provided by renter’s insurance company at no cost 
Alcohol Use Insurance $35. 00 

Must be purchased in conjunction with Certificate of Insurance or provided by renter’s insurance at no cost 
City Holiday Rental Fee 10% Rental Fee 
Senior Center Main Hall Booking $50. 00 
100-250 Capacity Deposit without alcohol permit $500.00 

Deposit with Alcohol Permit $750.00 
Table and Chair Setup $50. 00 
Decoration/Clea n Up Time (up to 2 hrs) $45. 00 

Resident (5 hours) $625.00 
Non-resident (5 hours) $775.00 

Resident for each add'l hour $90. 00 
Non-resident for each add'l hour $120.00 
Change of Date Fee $200.00 
Change of Date Fee (Less than 75 Days) $300.00 

Senior Center Main Hall   
Non-Profit Rates Booking $50. 00 

Deposit $250.00 
Table and Chair Setup $50. 00 
Decoration/Clea n Up Time (up to 2 hrs) $45. 00 

Pinole Organiza tion (5 hours) $400.00 
Non-Pinole Organization (5 hours) $500.00 
Pinole Org. each add'l hour $50. 00 
Non-Pinole Org. each add'l hour $70. 00 

Senior Center                                    Computer, Arts/Crafts & Board Room M-F  
8:30am – 4:30pm 

$35/rental Includes 2 hours 
Non-Profit Organizations $15/hr after 

$50/rental Includes 2 hours 
Private or Commercial Organizations $25/hr after 

Deposit                                                                       $40 

Senior Center                                    Computer, Arts/Crafts & Board Room M-F  
                                                            8:30am – 4:30pm 

$55/rental Includes 2 hours 
Non-Profit Organizations $20/hr after 

$75/rental Includes 2 hours 
Private or Commercial Organizations $35/hr after 

Deposit   $40  



4 

 

 

Youth Center Meeting 
Room 

 
Booking 

 
$50.00 

40 Person Capacity Deposit without alcohol permit $250.00  
 Deposit with alcohol permit $500.00 
 Resident (2 hours) $70.00 
 Non-resident (2 hours) $100.00 
 Resident for each add'l hour $35.00 
 Non-resident for each add'l hour $50.00 
 Decoration Time (up to 2 hours) $25.00/hr 
 Change of Date/Late Fee $50.00 
Youth Center Main Area Booking $50.00 
Non-Profit Rates 
(Weekends) 

 
Deposit 

 
$250.00 

 Pinole Organization (4 hours) $180.00 
 Non-Pinole Organization (4 hours) $260.00 
 Pinole Organization each add’l hour $40.00 
 Non-Pinole Organization each add’l hour $60.00 
 Decoration Time (up to 2 hours) $40.00/hr 
Alex Clark Room Security Deposit $150.00 
50 Capacity Pinole Organization $10.00/2 hr. mtg 
Nonprofit meetings only Non-Pinole Organization $25.00/2 hr. mtg 
 Key Replacement Fee $50.00 

Pinole Community Players Annual Fee $5,000.00 
 

Memorial Hall/Pinole Community Playhouse 



       

 

   
  CITY COUNCIL  
  REPORT 9A 

 
 
DATE: AUGUST 20, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
COPY: MICHELLE FITZER, CITY MANAGER 
 
FROM: ERIC S. CASHER, CITY ATTORNEY 
 
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION REGARDING PROPOSED FY 2019-20 MUNICIPAL 

CODE UPDATES AND PRIORITIZATION FOR UPDATING 
SPECIFIC SECTIONS 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Attorney seeks direction from the City Council regarding the prioritization of 
proposed updates to the City’s Municipal Code. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
In 2016, the City Council authorized and directed the City Attorney to begin the 
process of routinely updating the City’s Municipal Code.  This update has taken 
place in multiple phases, with the City Council selecting a set of specific updates to 
occur in each year.  In addition, the City Council created an ad-hoc Municipal Code 
Update Subcommittee to provide feedback and guidance to the City Attorney on 
proposed changes during this process.  Mayor Murray and Councilmember 
Martinez-Rubin currently serve as the City Council representatives on the 
Subcommittee. 
 
In addition to drafting ordinances to implement the updates selected by the City 
Council, the Municipal Code update process has also involved drafting ordinances to 
address unforeseen issues that nevertheless require legislative action by the City 
Council.  For example, following the passage of a Federal Communications 
Commission Order which created restrictions on local agencies’ ability to regulate 
small cell wireless facilities we adopted an ordinance maximizing the local control 
the City could assert on the approval process for small cell wireless facilities and the 
use of City owned property for small cell wireless facilities.  
 
Some of the major changes to the Municipal Code that have resulted from the 
Municipal Code update process include: mandating installation of trash capture 
devices, banning the sale or use of Styrofoam products, adopting a noise regulation 
ordinance, mandating balcony inspections, regulating commercial marijuana sales, 



 
 

 

regulating small cell wireless facilities, and creating a new process for appealing 
Planning Commission actions and administrative decisions. 
  
DISCUSSION  
 
The City Attorney is seeking guidance from the City Council regarding the next 
phase of the Municipal Code update process.  Attachment A is an overview of three 
categories of proposed Municipal Code updates:  (1) previously approved updates; 
(2) proposed long range future updates; and (3) minor updates.  The first category of 
updates are those previously approved by the City Council as either a future agenda 
item, or prior approval of the scope of work for the Municipal Code Update 
Subcommittee.  The second category of updates are those that have been 
previously discussed by the City Council, but not prioritized or scheduled for action.  
The third category of updates are minor updates that are more clean up items, and 
non-substantive.   
 
More information regarding the basis for each proposed update is also provided for 
in Attachment A.  Each proposed update also includes an estimated budget.  The 
majority of these costs are for City Attorney time, but publication costs are also 
included.  These budget numbers are only estimates, and the exact costs could 
differ depending on various factors, such as whether the Council or Subcommittee 
request revisions to proposed ordinances.  Furthermore, the amount of time to 
complete the proposed updates will vary depending on which are selected, but Staff 
anticipates spreading the updates over FY 19/20 and FY 20/21. 
 
The existing list of approved Municipal Code updates provides a significant amount 
of work for the upcoming fiscal year and is within the proposed annual budget for 
these updates.  Staff recommends the City Council proceed with the list of approved 
updates and defer the remaining updates to the Municipal Code Update 
Subcommittee for prioritization. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Approval of the next phase of the Municipal Code update will have a fiscal impact.  
The main cost will be City Attorney time, but there will be other miscellaneous costs 
as well, such publication costs for the new ordinances.  The exact amount of the 
fiscal impact will depend on which items the City Council chooses to include in the 
next phase of the Municipal Code update. The City Council approved a budget 
allocation of $35,000 this year for potential Municipal Code updates. 
 
ATTACHMENT 
 
 A Spreadsheet Reflecting Municipal Code Updates And Changes   
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 
 



ATTACHMENT A 
Municipal Code Updates 

  

 

 
 

PREVIOUSLY APPROVED UPDATES 

Municipal Code 
Section 

Section Name Proposed Change Budget 

*9.28 & 9.30 
 
 
First Reading scheduled for 
September 3, 2019 

Tobacco and Tobacco 
Products 

Update code to expand definition of e-
cigarettes to reflect changes in technology and 
adopt additional restrictions aimed at 
preventing teen smoking, such as restrictions 
on flavored tobacco. 
 

$4,000 

10.40 
 
Council level discussion 
scheduled for September 3, 
2019 
 

No Parking Areas – 
Restriction on Oversized 
Vehicle Parking 
 

Update Code and related restrictions on the 
parking of large or oversized vehicles on City 
streets and within safe distance of intersection. 
 

$5,000 

New Section 
 
Discussed in Subcommittee 
and scheduled for follow up 
discussion. 
 

Street Vendors Adopt ordinance regulating street vendors in 
response to new State law SB 946. 
 

$4,000 

New Section Historic Preservation Adopt an ordinance designating areas of city 
(old town), or specific buildings, historic. 
 

$5,000 

8.24 & 8.25 Community Preservation & 
Administrative Citations and 
Penalties  

Reorganize and streamline current provisions 
governing administrative citations and code 
enforcement to maximize ease of use by staff 
and any third party administrator hired by City.  
Budget may increase if Zoning Code amended 

$4,000 



 
 

 

as Planning Commission approval is required. 
  

 
PROPOSED LONG RANGE FUTURE UPDATES 

The following updates are additional changes that are either required, or suggested, in order to either 
bring the Municipal Code into compliance with current law and/or implement a best practice. 
 

$4,000 

5.16.010 
 
 
 

Business License Tax Update Update, streamline and potentially increase the existing business license tax 
and methodology for calculation to better reflect actual costs and impacts. 
 
If any of the updates result in an increase or expansion of the tax, that update 
would require voter approval. The above estimate does not include any costs 
related to placing a measure on the ballot. 
 

17.28 Signs There have been recent updates in the law related to signs, in particular, 
election or politically related yard signs and advertising signs.  This update 
would amend the Code to comply with changes in the law. 
 

16 Subdivisions The City’s Subdivision Ordinance was adopted in 1955. Since that time there 
have been numerous changes in state law.  This update would incorporate 
important changes in state law, as well as current best practices. 
 

17.14 Nonconforming Uses This section currently addresses whether a nonconforming use may be rebuilt 
if it is partially destroyed. The update would amend the Code to address 
whether reconstruction is allowed if complete destruction occurs.  
 
In addition, this update could address other disaster preparedness issues, such 
as establishing when emergency powers may be used and the scope of such 
powers. 



 
 

 

 
MINOR UPDATES 

The following updates are a partial sample of the various minor changes that are required in the 
Municipal Code in order to bring the Code into compliance with current law and practice. 
 

$1,500 

1.04 General Provisions Update citation to reflect Government Code Section 34502 which is the 
proper statutory citation for this section. 
 

1.05.010 Date of Municipal Elections Update citation to reflect Election Code Sections 1000 – 1003 which is the 
proper statutory citation for this section. 
 

3.26.180 Repeal of Chapter. This section of the Municipal Code was repealed and should be deleted. 

5.16.100 Auctioneer. State law prohibits imposition of a fee for auctioneers of real estate, and this 
section may need to be updated to comply with existing State law. 
 

5.24.020 Rate Adjustment. Delete obsolete reference to 1976 tax period. 

Title 8 Health and Safety Remove inaccurate reference to Health and Safety Code section 500. 

8.08.010 Definitions. Change the statutory reference from Government Code to California Public 
Resources Code sections 40100 – 40201 which is the proper statutory citation 
for this section. 
 

8.20.010 
 

Intent and Purpose. Add codified section “33 USC 1251 et seq.” to the reference to the Federal 
Clean Water Act. 
 

10.40.240 Private Parking Facilities 
Open to the Public. 

Remove inaccurate reference to Vehicle Code section 22350. 



 
 

 

10.52.010 
 

Railroad crossing – Blocking. The federal Railway Safety Act preempts municipal train speed and railroad 
obstruction ordinances, thus this section should be removed. 
 

10.64.060 Abandoned Bicycles. Correct the statutory reference to comply with existing law. 

13.05.010 Purpose and Policy Add codified section “33 USC 1251 et seq.” to the reference to the Federal 
Clean Water Act. 
 

13.05.350 
 

Enforcement – Criminal 
Action. 

Reduce the prison sentence from 1 year to six months to comply with existing 
law. 
 

13.16 
 

Underground Utilities. Correct citation to the Streets and Highway Code to reflect section 5896.1 et 
seq. which is the proper statutory citation for this section. 

 
3060091.1  
 



   

 

 CITY COUNCIL  
 REPORT 9B 

 
 
DATE: AUGUST 20, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  
 
FROM: MICHELLE FITZER, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: CONSIDER A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FIFTH AMENDMENT 

AND RESTATEMENT OF THE JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS 
AGREEMENT (JEPA) OF THE WEST CONTRA COSTA 
INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council consider a resolution approving the Fifth 
Amendment and Restatement of the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (JEPA) of 
the West Contra Costa Integrated Waste Management Authority. 
 
BACKGROUND 

WCCIWMA is a Joint Powers Authority formed in 1991, made up of the cities of 
Pinole, Hercules, San Pablo, El Cerrito, and Richmond whose primary tasks are 
Post-Collection Agreement oversight, compliance with State regulatory requirements 
regarding diversion of solid waste, recycling, and household hazardous waste 
(HHW), and related programs in support of said diversion.  Contra Costa County is 
also a participant in some aspects of the Authority, but is not a voting member 
agency. 
 
Since around 2015 the WCCIWMA Board and respective City staff have been 
working on updating the governing document for the Authority – the JEPA.  The last 
update was in 2011.  There have been several issues that have caused the 
discussions to go on for so long. However, since July 2017 the City Managers have 
been working with WCCIWMA staff to develop a framework for core services of the 
Authority and amendments to the governance structure.  In December 2017 the City 
Managers jointly presented preliminary recommendations, which were finalized and 
approved by the WCCIWMA Board in January 2018.  A key component to the 
recommendations was Board voting to reflect one (1) voting representative per 
member agency.  To address the concerns of Richmond relative to this equal voting 
and the impacts on financial decisions, the City Managers agreed to unanimous vote 
requirements for several items including rate setting.  To also address a Richmond 
interest, the withdrawal procedures were significantly simplified. 
 
The details of the JEPA update efforts through February 2019 were outlined in the 
Council’s report on March 5, 2019, a copy of which is attached as Attachment B. 



City Council Report 9B 
August 20, 2019  2 

 

Since that report, the City Managers and the WCCIWMA Executive Director met 
again on April 22nd and June 24th.  The discussion included whether member 
agencies were now comfortable with the City of Richmond retaining their three 
votes, considering that all financial and non-core service decisions require a 
unanimous vote of the Board, thereby creating a veto power for each voting member 
and agency.  There was some consideration of that position. 
 
Mr. Hakes shared that the JEPA as currently written does not provide for a majority 
vote of the WCCIWMA Board and unanimous vote of the member agencies 
governing bodies to amend the JEPA document, as was originally thought.  The 
requirement is a majority of the Board and the governing bodies representing a 
majority of the members.  So currently to amend the JEPA requires four (4) votes of 
the Board and three (3) votes of the member agencies. 
 
The WCCIWMA Board approved the attached Amended and Restated JEPA on a 6-
1 vote (San Pablo dissented) on July 18, 2019. 
 
REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
Although it is very frustrating that a negotiated agreement was not adhered to, given 
the fact that all financial and non-core services will require a unanimous vote of the 
WCCIWMA Board under the new JEPA, staff is much more comfortable with 
Richmond retaining their three votes.  As stated above, as written each agency has 
veto power which basically makes the additional votes for the City of Richmond 
moot. 
 
The key aspects of the revised JEPA are:    
 

• Unanimous Voting:  Required on all actions that have a financial impact, 
including setting rates and assessing fees, modifying reserves, establishing 
an Operating Fund to be paid by the member agencies or other sources, and 
disposition of assets at dissolution of the Authority. 
 

• Core Services Defined:  The Core Services of WCCIWMA/Recycle More have 
been clearly delineated in Section 2 of the JEPA.  Those include:  Ensuring 
Member Agencies are in Compliance with State Laws; Management of the 
Post-Collection Recycling and Disposal Services Contract; Household 
Hazardous Waste (HHW) Programs; Community Outreach and Education; 
and Legislative Updates.  Defining the Core Services now lays the foundation 
for ensuring neither any member agency nor staff has the ability to “scope 
creep” and expand the services of the Authority without approval of the 
Board.  This also ensures that the fees provided to WCCIWMA are only spent 
on those services identified as priorities to the member agencies.  Non-Core 
Services may only be added by unanimous vote of the Board. 
 



City Council Report 9B 
August 20, 2019  3 

 

• Withdrawal Procedure Simplified:  180 day Notice of Withdrawal by 
Resolution of the Governing Body; Authority budget to be modified to reflect 
the withdrawal; Pro-rata share of future liabilities of the withdrawing member 
calculated and due to the Authority; Excess reserves calculated, per the 
Reserve Policy, and disbursed to the withdrawing agency.  
 

• Future JEPA Amendments Require Unanimous Vote of Member Agency 
Governing Bodies. 

 
At this time it is recommended that the City Council consider approving the Fifth 
Amendment and Restatement of the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement of the West 
Contra Costa Integrated Waste Management Authority, Approved by the WCCIWMA 
Board on July 18, 2019.  A resolution provided by WCCIWMA staff and legal counsel 
is attached should Council wish to approve the JEPA. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no direct fiscal impact at this time.  Should any of the WCCIWMA member 
agencies leave there could be a negative impact to the ratepayers of the remaining 
jurisdictions. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A Resolution, with the Fifth Amendment and Restatement of the Joint Exercise of 
 Powers Agreement of the West Contra Costa Integrated Waste Management 
 Authority, Approved by the WCCIWMA Board on July 18, 2019 attached as 
 Exhibit A 
 
B March 5, 2019 Council Status Update Report on WCCIWMA JEPA Update 



ATTACHMENT A 

 

RESOLUTION NO- ___ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE APPROVING THE   
FIFTH AMENDED AND RESTATED JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT FOR  

THE WEST CONTRA COSTA INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
 
  

WHEREAS, the West Contra Costa Integrated Waste Management Authority (“the 
Authority”) is a joint powers authority organized pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, 
Government Code section 6500 et seq. and the California Integrated Waste Management Act 
of 1989 at California Public Resources Code section 40000 et seq. (“the Act”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the membership of the Authority is comprised of the cities of El Cerrito, 
Hercules, Pinole, Richmond and San Pablo (collectively, the “Members”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority was formed in 1991 and the Joint Exercise of Powers 
Agreement that created Authority (the “JEPA Agreement”) was last amended in 2011; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the JEPA Agreement, the Members formed the Authority to: 
(i) form a regional agency for reporting purposes under the Act; (ii)  implement regional waste 
reduction and recycling diversion programs; (iii) increase the diversion of waste from disposal 
facilities; and (iv) develop an integrated resource recovery facility (“IRRF”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority has recognized the need to update and revise the JEPA 
Agreement, namely, because the prior iterations of the JEPA Agreement addressed IRRF 
bonds, development and operation, and the Authority’s involvement with these activities has 
now concluded, therefore, the JEPA required amendment to remove provisions relating to 
those matters; and    
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority continues to operate as a regional agency and to manage 
the post-collection processing and disposal activities of the Members, thus, the updated and 
revised JEPA Agreement is consistent with those activities and provides a structure for the 
Authority to both meet new legislative mandates and provide the necessary flexibility to 
address Members’ needs post 2024; and    
 
 WHEREAS, Mayor Pete Murray currently serves on the Board of Directors as the 
City’s representative; and 
 

WHEREAS, Members through their Councilperson representative, as well as through 
their City Attorneys and their City Managers, have had multiple opportunities to review and 
contribute to the revised JEPA Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to continue its participation in the Authority; and 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 19.1 of the current iteration of the JEPA Agreement, it 
can only be amended if it is approved by a majority of the Members’ representing a majority 
of the Board of Directors’ seats. 
 



        

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Pinole 
does hereby resolve, declare, determine and order as follows:  
 
Section 1. The foregoing recitals are true, correct, and incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 2. The City Council does hereby authorize the Mayor to execute the Fifth 

Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, subject to 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, which is attached as Exhibit A to this 
Resolution and to take any other action consistent with the intent of this 
Resolution. 

 
This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of August, 2019 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:   
 
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:   
 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:   
 
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:   
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on this 20th 
day of August, 2019. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

 

FIFTH AMENDMENT AND RESTATEMENT  

JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT  

OF THE WEST CONTRA COSTA INTEGRATED  

WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY  

fitzer
Typewritten Text

fitzer
Typewritten Text

fitzer
Typewritten Text

fitzer
Typewritten Text

fitzer
Typewritten Text

fitzer
Typewritten Text

fitzer
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A

fitzer
Typewritten Text



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

Page i 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

PAGE 

SECTION 1. Definitions.................................................................................................................3 

1.1. Act ............................................................................................................................3 

1.2. Agreement ................................................................................................................3 

1.3. Alternate Director ....................................................................................................4 

1.4. Approved Facilities ..................................................................................................4 

1.5. Approved Rates ........................................................................................................4 

1.6. Authority ..................................................................................................................4 

1.7. Board ........................................................................................................................4 

1.8. City ...........................................................................................................................4 

1.9. Contractor ................................................................................................................4 

1.10. Core Services ...........................................................................................................4 

1.11. County ......................................................................................................................4 

1.12. Directed Waste and Materials ..................................................................................5 

1.13. Director ....................................................................................................................5 

1.14. El Cerrito Recycling Services ..................................................................................5 

1.15. Executive Director ...................................................................................................5 

1.16. Facility .....................................................................................................................5 

1.17. Fiscal Year ...............................................................................................................5 

1.18. Franchise Agreement ...............................................................................................5 

1.19. Hazardous Materials or Hazardous Waste ...............................................................6 

1.20. Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) ......................................................................7 

1.21. Law ..........................................................................................................................7 

1.22. Member ....................................................................................................................7 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

Page ii 

1.23. MRF .........................................................................................................................7 

1.24. Non-Core Service.....................................................................................................8 

1.25. Non-Disposal Facility Element (NDFE) ..................................................................8 

1.26. Post Collection Agreement (PCA). ..........................................................................8 

1.27. Post Collection Agreements (PCAs) ........................................................................8 

1.28. Recyclable Materials ................................................................................................8 

1.29. Solid Waste ..............................................................................................................9 

1.30. Source Reduction and Recycling Element (SRRE) .................................................9 

SECTION 2. Purpose ......................................................................................................................9 

2.1. Core Services .........................................................................................................10 

2.2. Future Services.......................................................................................................13 

2.3. Non-Core Services .................................................................................................14 

SECTION 3. Creation of Authority ..............................................................................................14 

SECTION 4. Term ........................................................................................................................14 

SECTION 5. Powers .....................................................................................................................14 

SECTION 6. Boundaries ..............................................................................................................19 

SECTION 7. Organizations ..........................................................................................................20 

7.1. The Board...............................................................................................................20 

7.2. Directors. ................................................................................................................20 

7.3. Principal Office ......................................................................................................21 

7.4. Officers ..................................................................................................................21 

7.5. Chair .......................................................................................................................22 

7.6. Vice Chair ..............................................................................................................22 

7.7. Executive Director .................................................................................................22 

7.8. Treasurer ................................................................................................................23 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

Page iii 

7.9. Controller ...............................................................................................................24 

7.10. General Counsel .....................................................................................................24 

7.11. Secretary ................................................................................................................24 

7.12. Access to Property .................................................................................................24 

7.13. Officers, Employees and Agents ............................................................................24 

SECTION 8. Meetings of the Board .............................................................................................25 

8.1. Regular Meetings ...................................................................................................25 

8.2. Special Meetings ....................................................................................................25 

8.3. Notice of Meetings .................................................................................................25 

8.4. Minutes ..................................................................................................................25 

8.5. Quorum ..................................................................................................................25 

8.6. Voting ....................................................................................................................25 

8.7. Bylaws....................................................................................................................26 

8.8. Budget ....................................................................................................................26 

8.9. Reserves .................................................................................................................26 

8.10. Committees ............................................................................................................27 

SECTION 9. Operating Fund Revenues and Other Sources of Funds .........................................28 

SECTION 10. Records and Accounts...........................................................................................28 

SECTION 11. Implementation of the Act ....................................................................................29 

11.1. Intent ......................................................................................................................29 

11.2. Submittal of Elements by Members .......................................................................29 

11.3. Compliance Monitoring .........................................................................................29 

11.4. Contingency Plans .................................................................................................30 

11.5. Regional Plan .........................................................................................................30 

11.6. Grants and Financial Assistance ............................................................................31 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

Page iv 

SECTION 12. Authority Established Rates ..................................................................................32 

SECTION 13. Apportionment of Penalties ..................................................................................34 

13.1. Penalties Arising from Authority Failure ..............................................................34 

13.2. Penalties Arising from a Member’s Failure ...........................................................34 

SECTION 14. Disposition of Assets at Dissolution .....................................................................36 

SECTION 15. Withdrawal ............................................................................................................36 

15.1. Requirements for Withdrawal ................................................................................36 

15.2. Disbursement of Unallocated Funds Upon Withdrawal ........................................38 

15.3. Obligations Following Withdrawal Date ...............................................................39 

15.4. Effect of Withdrawal on Agreement ......................................................................39 

15.5. Member and Authority’s Obligations Under the Act ............................................39 

SECTION 16. Amendments Including Termination ....................................................................40 

SECTION 17. Filing with the Secretary of State..........................................................................41 

SECTION 18. Notices ..................................................................................................................41 

SECTION 19. Successors and Assigns.........................................................................................42 

SECTION 20. El Cerrito Recycling Services ...............................................................................42 

SECTION 21. Third Party Beneficiaries ......................................................................................43 

SECTION 22. Severability ...........................................................................................................43 

SECTION 23. Section Headings ..................................................................................................43 

SECTION 24. Dispute Resolution ................................................................................................43 

24.1. Informal Resolution ...............................................................................................43 

24.2. Arbitration ..............................................................................................................44 

24.3. Binding Arbitration ................................................................................................44 

24.4. Enforcement ...........................................................................................................44 

 

 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  

–1– 

AMENDED AND RESTATED JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT OF THE 

WEST CONTRA COSTA INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY  

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT 

(“Agreement”) is entered into as of __________________, 2019, and is by and among the CITY 

OF EL CERRITO (“El Cerrito”), a municipal corporation and charter city, the CITY OF 

HERCULES, a municipal corporation, the CITY OF PINOLE, a municipal corporation, the 

CITY OF RICHMOND, a municipal corporation and charter city, and the CITY OF SAN 

PABLO, a municipal corporation  hereinafter referred to individually as “Member” and 

collectively as “Members.”  This Agreement amends and restates the Joint Powers Agreement 

dated April 2, 1991, as amended by Amendment No. 1 dated November 14, 1991, Amendment 

and Restatement No. 2 dated December 21, 1993, Amendment and Restatement No. 3 dated 

March 6, 1995, and Amendment No. 4 on March 10, 2011(together, the “Original Agreement”), 

and restates in full the provisions of the Original Agreement, except as amended herein, without 

affecting the ongoing existence of the WEST CONTRA COSTA INTEGRATED WASTE 

MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY (“Authority”). 

RECITALS 

A. California Government Code section 6500 et seq. (“Law”) provides for 

agreements between two or more public agencies to jointly exercise any power common to the 

contracting parties, subject to certain mandatory provisions contained therein; 

B. The State of California has enacted the California Integrated Waste Management 

Act of 1989 at California Public Resources Code section 40000 et seq. (“Act”) mandating that 

municipalities divert material from landfills and promulgating regulations promoting material 

reuse and recycling. 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–2– 

C. Pursuant to this authority, the Members entered into the Original Agreement to 

establish and confer upon a separate legal entity the powers necessary to: (i) form a Regional 

Agency to report as a single entity the annual regional compliance with the Act’s reporting 

requirements; (ii)  implement regional waste reduction and recycling diversion programs; (iii) 

to increase the diversion of waste from disposal facilities; and (iv) develop an integrated resource 

recovery facility (“IRRF”) to achieve the Members’ waste diversion goals, to comply with the 

Act, and to arrange for processing of and disposal of remaining waste. 

D. The County and the Authority entered into a contract on May 25, 1993 

(“Authority-County Contract”) in order to facilitate development of an integrated resource 

recovery facility (“IRRF”) to be partially located in the unincorporated area of the County, 

provide for the continued disposal of waste generated in the unincorporated areas of the County 

encompassed by the District, divert such waste through the use of an IRRF and provide for 

regulation of the IRRF. 

E. Pursuant to the Agreement, the County appointed an ex-officio non-voting 

Director to the Authority’s Board of Directors, the Authority approved IRRF bonds, an IRRF 

was developed and the bonds were repaid. 

F. The Members recognize that many Authority activities are based upon the waste 

tonnage generated by the Members and that the City of Richmond generates a substantially 

greater amount of tonnage in all categories of waste than other Members.  Therefore, although 

Authority programs are available to all Members regardless of the waste tonnage generated by a 

particular Member, the Members commit to make a good faith effort to provide Richmond with 

funding, materials and services commensurate with its contribution to the Authority’s budget. 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–3– 

G. Prior to 2014, the iterations of the Original Agreement addressed IRRF bonds and 

development including the contract with West County Resource Recovery Inc. for IRRF 

operation and administration. The Authority’s involvement with these activities has now 

concluded. Nonetheless, the Authority continues to operate as a Regional Agency and to manage 

the post-collection processing and disposal activities of the Members.  This Agreement is 

intended to be consistent with those activities and is further intended to provide a structure for 

the Authority to both meet new legislative mandates and provide the necessary flexibility to 

address Members’ needs post 2024. 

H. The Members further intend that this Agreement reflect the changes that have 

occurred since the execution of the Third Amendment Restatement in 1995, to exercise their 

respective powers jointly and to exercise such additional powers as are available to the Authority 

under the Law for the purpose of achieving their waste diversion goals and complying with the 

Act. 

ACCORDINGLY, THE MEMBERS HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.    Definitions.  The terms defined in this Section have the following meanings: 

1.1. Act.  “Act” means the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989, 

California Public Resources Code sections 40000 et seq.) and all regulations adopted under that 

legislation, and the subsequent legislation and regulations provided for in Division 30 of the 

Public Resources Code et seq., as amended from time to time. 

1.2. Agreement.  “Agreement” means this Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, as it 

may be amended from time to time, including the Fifth Amendment to and Restatement of the 

West Contra Costa Integrated Waste Management Authority Joint Exercise of Powers 

Agreement. 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–4– 

1.3. Alternate Director.  “Alternate Director” means the person(s) appointed by each 

Member who is authorized to represent the Member at a Board meeting in the absence of the 

Member’s Director. 

1.4. Approved Facilities.  “Approved Facilities” means a solid waste management 

facility or facilities, such as a MRF, transfer station, composting or other type of processing 

facility, designated from time to time by the Authority to receive some or all Directed Waste and 

Materials. 

1.5. Approved Rates.  “Approved Rates” means the rates or charges authorized by 

the Authority from time to time to be paid at the Approved Facilities for Directed Waste and 

Materials received at the Approved Facility to pay for operational costs and other obligations of 

the Authority. 

1.6. Authority.  “Authority” means the West Contra Costa Integrated Waste 

Management Authority, a joint exercise of powers Agency created by the Members pursuant to 

the Agreement. 

1.7. Board.  “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Authority. 

1.8. City.  “City” means any Member that is a city; “Cities” means all Members that 

are cities. 

1.9. Contractor.  “Contractor” means “Contractor” as defined in the PCA or the 

PCAs as the context may require. 

1.10. Core Services.  “Core Services” means any service, program or project the 

Authority is expected to perform through the termination of the current Post Collection 

Agreement and potentially thereafter listed in Section 2 herein. 

1.11. County.  “County” means Contra Costa County, California. 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–5– 

1.12. Directed Waste and Materials.  “Directed Waste and Materials” means materials 

collected pursuant to a Franchise Agreement, or collected by a Member pursuant to any other 

agreement between a Member and other party and directed by the Authority to be delivered to an 

Approved Facilities. 

1.13. Director.  “Director” means the elected person that is appointed by a Member to 

represent that Member on the Board.  For the purposes of voting and quorum, the term 

“Director” shall be read to also include an “Alternate Director” when such person is seated on 

the Board as the representative of the Member at a Board meeting. 

1.14. El Cerrito Recycling Services.  “El Cerrito Recycling Services” means both the 

collection of Recyclable Materials at the El Cerrito Recycling and Environmental Resource 

Center and the collection of Recyclable Materials through or by El Cerrito whether directly or by 

contract. 

1.15. Executive Director.  “Executive Director” means the person hired or appointed 

by the Board as the Authority’s Executive Director to administer the affairs of the Authority and 

to effect the policies of the Board or his or her designee. 

1.16. Facility.  “Facility” means a facility or facilities for the transfer, processing, 

diversion or removal of portions of Solid Waste prior to disposal, owned either by one or more of 

the Members directly or by a private entity. 

1.17. Fiscal Year.  “Fiscal Year” means the period commencing on each July 1 and 

ending on the following June 30. 

1.18. Franchise Agreement.  “Franchise Agreement” means an agreement between a 

Member and a third party that provides for the collection of Solid Waste, and related services, or 

if additional specific authorization is provided to the Authority for a particular Member’s solid 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–6– 

waste collection activities, an agreement between the Authority and a third party that provides 

for collection of Solid Waste and related services. 

1.19. Hazardous Materials or Hazardous Waste.  “Hazardous Materials” or 

“Hazardous Waste” means materials that, by reason of their quality, concentration, composition 

or physical, chemical or infectious characteristics may cause or significantly contribute to an 

increase in mortality or an increase in serious illness or pose a substantial threat or potential 

hazard to human health or the environment when improperly treated, stored, transported or 

disposed of or otherwise mismanaged; or any waste which is defined and/or regulated as a 

Hazardous Waste, toxic waste, hazardous chemical substance or mixture, or asbestos under any 

applicable local, state or federal law or regulation, or:  

(a) “Hazardous Waste” pursuant to section 40141 of the California Public 

Resources Code; regulated under Chapter 7.6 (commencing with section 25800) of Division 20 

of the California Health & Safety Code; all substances defined as Hazardous Waste, acutely 

Hazardous Waste, or extremely Hazardous Waste by sections 25110.02, 25115, and 25117 of the 

California Health & Safety Code (California Hazardous Waste Control Act), California Health & 

Safety Code section 25100 et seq. including 23 CCR sections 2521 and 2522; 

(b) Materials regulated under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 

42 U.S.C. section 6901 et seq. as amended (including amendments thereto made by the Solid 

Waste Disposal Act Amendments of 1980); 

(c) Materials regulated under the Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. 

section 2601 et seq., as amended, and related federal, state and local laws and regulations, 

including the California Hazardous Substances Account Act, California Health & Safety Code 

section 25300, et seq.; 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–7– 

(d) Materials regulated under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 

Compensations and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. section 9601, et seq.; 

(e) Materials regulated under any future or additional or substitute federal, 

state or local laws and regulations pertaining to the identification, transportation, treatment, 

storage or disposal of toxic substances or hazardous waste; or 

(f) If two (2) or more governmental agencies having concurrent or 

overlapping jurisdiction over hazardous waste adopt conflicting definitions of “hazardous waste” 

for purposes of collection, transportation, processing and/or disposal, the broader, more 

restrictive definition is employed for the purposes of this Agreement. 

1.20. Household Hazardous Waste (HHW).  “Household Hazardous Waste” or 

“HHW” means Hazardous Waste generated incidental to owning or maintaining a place of 

residence. HHW does not include waste generated in the course of operating a business activity 

at a residence.  

1.21. Law.  “Law” means the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, Articles 1, 2 and 4 of 

Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the California Government Code (California Government 

Code sections 6500, et seq.) and all regulations adopted under that legislation, as that legislation 

and those regulations may be amended from time to time.  

1.22. Member.  “Member” means any of the Member agency signatories to this 

Agreement and “Members” means all of the Member agency signatories to this Agreement. 

1.23. MRF.  “MRF” means a materials recovery facility, including lands on which 

such facility is located, for receiving, processing, recycling and transportation or transfer of Solid 

Waste for processing, recovery or diversion, or any combination thereof. 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–8– 

1.24. Non-Core Service.  “Non-Core Service” means any service, program or project 

which is not listed as Core Services and not included in Section 2 herein. 

1.25. Non-Disposal Facility Element (NDFE) “Non-Disposal Facility Element” or 

“NDFE” means the non-disposal facility element required to be prepared pursuant to the Act and 

as that element may be amended from time to time. 

1.26. Post Collection Agreement (PCA).  “Post Collection Agreement” or “PCA” 

means the Agreement entered into between the Authority and West County Resources Recovery, 

Inc., West Contra Costa Sanitary Landfill, Inc., Golden Bear Transfer Services, Inc., Richmond 

Sanitary Service, Inc. and Keller Canyon Landfill Company for post collection recycling and 

disposal services dated October 10, 2013, including any amendments or successor agreements 

thereto.  Post Collection Agreement as used herein shall also refer to any subsequent 

agreements between the Authority and a solid waste enterprise or enterprises for post collection 

services as approved by Members. 

1.27. Post Collection Agreements (PCAs).  “Post Collection Agreements” or “PCAs” 

means, collectively, (a) the Post Collection Agreement and (b) the agreement between the City of 

El Cerrito and West County Resources Recovery, Inc., West Contra Costa Sanitary Landfill, 

Inc., Golden Bear Transfer Services, Inc., Richmond Sanitary Service, Inc. and Keller Canyon 

Landfill Company for post collection recycling and disposal services effective January 1, 2014 or 

any successor agreement between El Cerrito and a solid waste enterprise or enterprises for post 

collection services. 

1.28. Recyclable Materials.  “Recyclable Materials” means materials that can be 

reused, or remanufactured or processed for one or more forms of reuse. 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–9– 

1.29. Solid Waste.  “Solid Waste” means and includes all putrescible and 

nonputrescible solid, semisolid, and liquid wastes, including garbage, trash, refuse, rubbish, 

ashes, industrial wastes, demolition and construction wastes; Recyclable Materials; discarded 

home and industrial appliances; manure; vegetable or animal solid and semisolid wastes; and 

other discarded solid and semisolid wastes, as defined in California Public Resources Code 

section 40191, as that section may be amended from time to time and as may be limited by 

applicable law.  For the purposes of this Agreement, “Solid Waste” does not include abandoned 

vehicles and parts thereof, Hazardous Waste, low-level radioactive waste, or medical waste. 

1.30. Source Reduction and Recycling Element (SRRE).  “Source Reduction and 

Recycling Element” or “SRRE” means a source reduction and recycling element required by the 

Act, as that element may be amended from time to time. 

SECTION 2.    Purpose.   

This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the Act for the purpose of the Members 

maintaining an existing Regional Agency to collectively regulate post-collection services and 

combine disposal and diversion of Solid Waste for determining compliance with the Act and (i) 

plan, study, recommend and have the authority to implement proper solid waste management 

activities and programs consistent with the Act, (ii) to enable it to report and track programs 

under the Act on a regional basis,  (iii) address future diversion mandates, to allow for efficient 

operation of diversion programs on a region-wide basis, and (iv) to allow for the development of 

Regional Integrated Waste Management Plans including a Source Reduction and Recycling 

Element, Household Hazardous Waste Element, and Non-Disposal Facility Element.  The 

Members are each empowered by the laws of the State of California to exercise the powers 

specified in this Agreement, to comply with the provisions of the Act and other laws.  These 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–10– 

common powers shall be exercised for the benefit of any one or more of the Members or 

otherwise in the manner set forth in this Agreement.  The Members are also empowered to 

acquire, construct, finance, refinance, maintain, operate and regulate Facilities and the Authority 

may undertake such activities subject to authorization by the Members’ legislative bodies as set 

forth herein.  

2.1. Core Services.  Although the Authority may undertake additional Non-Core 

Service activities subject to unanimous vote of the Board as set forth herein, the Members desire 

to identify the following Core Services the Authority is expected to perform through the 

termination of the current Post Collection Agreement, and potentially thereafter: 

(a) Ensure that the Post Collection Agreement (“PCA”) terms are being met 

by the Contractor as that term is defined in the PCA, including, but not limited to:  

(1) Track and confirm expected diversion rates at the approved 

organic materials, dry materials, construction and demolition, and recyclable materials 

processing facilities; 

(2) Track and confirm contracted level of service at the transfer station 

and other post-collection facilities and by the household hazardous waste program; 

(3) Track and confirm expected level of service for education and 

outreach services for schools, including West Contra Costa Unified School District 

(“WCCUSD”), in the Authority’s service area; 

(4) Track and confirm compliance with applicable law, permits, 

Facility requirements and best management practices, including proper records management, 

provision of insurance and similar requirements; and 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–11– 

(5) Track and confirm all recycling and diversion programs performed 

by Contractor pursuant to the PCA. 

(b) Validate post collection rates to ensure accuracy, reasonableness and 

consistency with the methodology formula described in Exhibit B. 

(c) Validate the accuracy of information stated in quarterly, annual, and other 

reports submitted by the Contractor to the Authority. 

(d) Seek to reduce costs to Members in future post collection solid waste 

activities and agreements. 

(e) Seek to increase the benefits to Members in future post collection solid 

waste activities and agreements. 

(f) Negotiate the lowest possible rates for Members and customers. 

(g) Monitor and coordinate compliance with the Act, Assembly Bill 1826 

(2014), Assembly Bill 341 (2011), Senate Bill 1383 (2016), and other State solid waste related 

legislation and regulatory requirements 

(1) Collect and submit information from Members to update 

Electronic Annual Report (EAR) and update and upload other required reports; 

(2) Report annual waste and diversion tonnages to the Board and 

Members; 

(3) Maintain and update regional SRRE, NDFE and Household 

Hazardous Waste Element (HHWE); 

(4) Coordinate and assist WCCUSD Source Reduction and Recycling 

Compliance; and 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–12– 

(5) Coordinate with CalRecycle staff to schedule on-site Member 

meetings. 

(h) Operate Household Hazardous Waste Programs (“HHWP”), including the 

following: 

(1) Act as the HHWP public agency permittee; 

(2) Determine desired level of service after consultation with Members 

and communicate desired levels to all HHWP contractors; 

(3) Manage HHW budget and monitor Contractor’s HHW costs for 

consistency with the approved budget; 

(4) Manage contract for HHW Facility and any satellite or mobile 

events; 

(5) Confirm and report that expected levels of service are being 

maintained; 

(6) Monitor Contractor’s compliance with applicable law, permits and 

best management practices, including proper reporting, records management and retention, 

provision of insurance and similar requirements; 

(7) Operate a motor oil recycling program, design and distribute all 

related public information in English and Spanish, ensure compliance and coordinate events; and 

(8) Implement and oversee a pharmaceutical collection and disposal 

program and battery recycling program, design and distribute all related public information in 

English and Spanish, ensure compliance and coordinate events. 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–13– 

(i) Administration and oversight of day to day Authority operations including 

providing support services to the Board as well as providing human resources, information 

technology and financial services to the Authority and its staff. 

(j) Conduct public outreach and education within existing budgeted funding 

and staffing levels beyond existing Contractor efforts including: 

(1) Outreach and education regarding HHW, pharmaceutical 

collection and disposal program, and battery recycling program; and 

(2) Multi-family and commercial recycling and organics outreach and 

education ensuring that El Cerrito shall equally benefit from such Authority efforts. 

(k) Monitor and analyze relevant legislation within existing budgeted funding 

and staffing levels including: 

(1) Provide timely updates and recommendations to the Board on 

proposed legislation that will likely affect local government solid waste and diversion programs; 

(2) Provide analysis to enable the Board to take actions to support or 

oppose proposed legislation; 

(3) Submit comments on the proposed legislation to the lead agency 

creating the legislation; and 

(4) Coordinate with Members in interpreting and implementing new 

laws and regulations, ensuring that all Members shall equally benefit from such Authority 

efforts. 

2.2. Future Services.  In the future and post 2025, the Authority may continue to 

provide the Core Services or other such services as Members request, consistent with the powers 

set forth herein, and such authority and responsibility shall be subject to further delegation or 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–14– 

authorization of the Members.  Upon delegation or authorization, the Authority may continue to 

provide Core Services, a portion of Core Services, or other services, including, but not limited to 

potential procurement and negotiations of future post collection agreements. 

2.3. Non-Core Services.  Non-Core Service shall be approved by a unanimous vote 

of the Board. 

SECTION 3.    Creation of Authority. 

3.1. Pursuant to the Law, the Members created and established the Authority in 1991 

as a public entity separate from each of the Members.   

3.2. The assets, rights, debts, liabilities and obligations of the Authority shall not 

constitute assets, rights, debts, liabilities or obligations of any of the Members, to the fullest 

extent allowed by Government Code section 6508.1 and other applicable law.  However, if 

Member liability exists, a Member shall be liable even if its representative did not vote in favor 

of the action that created the liability, except as specified in Section 5.4.  Nothing in this 

Agreement shall prevent any Member from separately contracting for, or assuming responsibility 

for, specific debts, liabilities or obligations of the Authority, provided that both the Board and 

that Member agency approve such contract or assumption. 

SECTION 4.    Term.  The Authority has become effective as of April 1, 1991.  It shall 

continue until terminated or dissolved by a vote taken in accordance with Section 16 of this 

Agreement.  

SECTION 5.    Powers. 

5.1. The Authority shall have the power to plan, study and recommend proper solid 

waste management consistent with the Act and, if and to the extent permitted by the Act, to 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–15– 

adopt and implement an SRRE for all or any portion of the area included within the Authority’s 

boundary. 

5.2. The Authority is empowered to prepare, revise, approve and submit a Regional 

Integrated Waste Management Plan pursuant to the Act to the California Environmental 

Protection Agency, Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (“CalRecycle”) in lieu of 

preparation, approval, and submittal of individual SRREs, HHWEs and NDFEs by individual 

Members, to specify in said Regional Integrated Waste Management Plan programs to be 

implemented by any or all Members and the Authority, and to implement programs specified in 

said Regional Integrated Waste Management Plan for implementation by the Authority, and in 

the event the Authority exercises such power, instead of the individual Members, it shall be 

responsible for compliance with Article 1 (commencing with section 41780) of Chapter 6 of the 

Act following approval of a Regional Member Integrated Waste Management Plan by the 

California Integrated Waste Management Board. 

5.3. To the full extent permitted by applicable Law, the Authority is authorized, in its 

own name, to do all acts necessary or convenient for the exercise of the following powers that 

each Member could exercise separately: 

(a) To make and enter into contracts, including contracts with any Member; 

(b) To apply for and accept grants, gifts, donations, loans, advances and 

contributions; 

(c) To employ or contract for the services of engineers, attorneys, 

accountants, planners, consultants, fiscal agents and other persons and entities; 

(d) To make plans and conduct studies; 

(e) To acquire, improve, hold, lease and dispose of real and personal property; 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–16– 

(f) To sue and be sued in its own name; 

(g) To incur and discharge debts, liabilities and obligations; 

(h) To establish or approve Approved Rates; 

(i) To hire, manage and fire agents and employees; 

(j) To require that the Members direct all of the Directed Waste generated 

and collected within their respective boundaries (or specified portions or specified types of such 

Wastes and Materials) to the Approved Facility until December 31, 2024, and potentially 

thereafter as the case may be; however, that the Authority is not empowered to require El Cerrito 

to so direct any Solid Waste collected by its collector or collected as part of El Cerrito Recycling 

Services unless El Cerrito so consents;  

(k) To require each Member other than El Cerrito to include some or all of the 

Approved Rates paid to the owner or operator of the Approved Facilities in connection with the 

waste stream of that Member directed to the Approved Facilities, to be “passed through” to or 

collected from the ratepayers within the boundaries of that Member; 

(l) Subject to a unanimous vote of the Board, to require each Member to (i) 

include fees which may be imposed from time to time by the Authority and to be collected from 

the ratepayers within the boundaries of that Member which fees are determined by the Authority 

in its sole discretion as being necessary for a period of time to pay continuing expenses of the 

Authority under circumstances where the revenue received from the Approved Rates is not 

available or inadequate ; and (ii) provide for payment of such fees collected to the Authority or a 

party designated by the Authority without reduction, limitation, offset or adjustment and to 

require that the Member take such action to direct the collection of such fees in a timely manner; 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–17– 

(m) Subject to a unanimous vote of the Board, to require a Member to (i) 

include amounts determined by Authority as necessary to provide for the planning and 

implementation activities of the Authority, to pay other costs and obligations of the Authority to 

be “passed through” to or collected from ratepayers within the boundaries of that Member 

regardless of how that Member collects fees; and (ii) provide for payment of amounts to the 

Authority, in the event that such amounts are not paid to the owner or operator of the Approved 

Facility, and to require that the Member take such action to direct payment of its portion of 

funding otherwise provided for in said Approved Rates in a timely manner; 

(n) To determine the type, extent and manner of processing of Solid Waste 

necessary for the Members to comply with the diversion requirement of the Act and to arrange 

for said processing through implementation or modification of an Approved Facility, or through 

use of other facilities; 

(o) To implement the Regional Integrated Waste Management Plan and upon 

approval of such plan to require Members to implement the Regional Integrated Waste 

Management Plan; and 

(p) To educate the public as to Solid Waste, diversion and recycling matters. 

5.4. To the full extent permitted by applicable law, the Authority is authorized, in its 

own name, to exercise the following powers that each Member could exercise separately, subject 

to additional prior written authorization by the affected Member’s legislative body: 

(a) To enter into new regional agreements binding on its Members;  

(b) To acquire, construct, finance, refinance, operate, regulate and maintain 

Facilities or contract with a private entity to do the same, subject, however, to the conditions and 

restrictions contained in this Agreement, including the following:   



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–18– 

(1) Prior to any substantial Authority involvement in the planning for 

such a facility, the Facility shall be conceptually approved by the Board.  

(2) Following such initial approval, each Member’s governing body 

shall determine whether or not it will participate in the Facility. All costs associated with the 

Facility shall be borne exclusively by the participating Members. 

(3) Nonparticipating members will not be entitled to use the Facilities. 

Subject to a unanimous vote of the participating members, a nonparticipating Member may 

become a participating member on such terms as may be determined by the Board. 

(4) Both the Board and the governing body of the jurisdiction in which 

the Facility would be located (the “Host”) must approve the Facility prior to its construction or 

acquisition.  

(5) The Authority shall not exercise the power of eminent domain in 

order to acquire real and personal property necessary and convenient to the development of a 

Facility, but it may request that the Host acquire such property.  

(c) To issue revenue bonds, notes, certificates of participation, or any other 

instrument evidencing indebtedness, from time to time, in accordance with all applicable laws, 

for the purpose of raising funds to finance or refinance the acquisition, construction, 

improvement, renovation, repair, operation, regulation, modification, or maintenance of 

Facilities; 

(d) To enter into agreements to regulate or operate a Facility; 

(e) To lease Facilities; 

(f) To enter into regional post collection processing or franchise agreements 

for the period beginning in 2025 or later;  



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–19– 

(g) To adopt, as authorized by California law, ordinances and resolutions 

necessary to carry out the purposes of this Agreement; and 

(h) To require that the Members direct all of the Solid Wastes generated and 

collected within their respective boundaries (or specified portions or specified types of such 

Directed Wastes and Materials) to the Approved Facility for the period beginning in 2025 or 

later.  

5.5. The powers specified in this Section 5 shall be exercised subject only to the 

limitations set forth in this Agreement, applicable law and such restrictions upon the manner of 

exercising such powers as are imposed by law upon the Members in the exercise of similar 

powers.  The Members do not specifically delegate any additional powers to the Authority 

without the express authorization of each Member’s governing body.  Nothing in this Section 

shall prevent the Authority from providing additional services to Members pursuant to an 

agreement or agreements between or among the Authority and a Member or Members, in which 

the Member or Members agree(s) to compensate the Authority for the provision of such services. 

5.6. The Authority hereby designates San Pablo, a general law city, as the Member 

required to be designated by section 6509 of the California Government Code. 

5.7. Although the Authority has not entered into Franchise Agreements to date, 

nothing in this Agreement prevents it from so doing.  However, if the Authority wished to enter 

into Franchise Agreements in the future, the Board would have to authorize it to exercise such 

authority and it shall be conditioned upon prior authorization by the affected Member’s 

legislative body as set forth in Section 5.3(i). 

SECTION 6.    Boundaries.  The boundary of the Authority shall be the consolidated 

boundaries of the Members as set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein.  If 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–20– 

a new Member joins or a Member withdraws from the Authority, the boundary of the Authority 

shall be modified to include or exclude the area of the new or withdrawing Member.  This 

Section 6 shall not prevent any Facilities from being located outside the boundary of the 

Authority. 

SECTION 7.    Organizations. 

7.1. The Board. The Authority shall be governed by the Board, which shall exercise or 

oversee the exercise of all powers and authority on behalf of the Authority. 

7.2. Directors. 

(a) The Board shall consist of a Director from each Member, except that the 

City of Richmond shall have three Directors, and a non-voting ex officio member from the 

County.  Upon execution of this Agreement, each Member shall appoint its representative 

Director(s) to the Board and one (1) person as an Alternate Director to serve in the case of 

absence of or recusal by an appointed Director.  Directors and Alternate Directors who have 

been duly appointed and are serving at the time of the restatement of this Agreement may 

continue to serve in that capacity without further action of the Member. 

(b) Each Director and Alternate Director shall hold office from the first 

meeting of the Board after appointment by the Members until his or her successor is selected by 

the Member agency of that Director.  Each Director and Alternate Director shall serve at the 

pleasure of the Member that he or she represents and may be removed at any time, without 

cause, in the sole discretion of that Member.  However, a Member shall not remove a Director 

or Alternate Director unless, before the next meeting of the Board, it also appoints a replacement 

Director or Alternate Director. 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–21– 

(c) Each Director and Alternate Director shall be an elected official of the 

governing body of the Member that he or she represents.  If a Director or Alternate Director 

ceases holding any such elected position, he or she shall then cease to serve as a Director or 

Alternate Director.  The Authority and the Board shall be entitled to rely on a written notice 

from the City Clerk as conclusive evidence of the appointment and removal of Directors and 

Alternate Directors representing that Member.  If a Member appoints and/or removes a Director 

or Alternate, written notice of such action shall be provided to both the Authority Executive 

Director and Clerk of the Board at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the next regularly 

scheduled Board meeting. 

7.3. Principal Office.  The principal office of the Authority shall be established by 

the Board within the boundary of the Authority and the address of the principal office shall 

initially be 13831 San Pablo Avenue, San Pablo, California 94806.  The Board may change that 

principal office upon giving at least fifteen (15) days’ prior written notice to each Member and to 

the California Integrated Waste Management Board. 

7.4. Officers.  The Authority shall have seven (7) officers: a Chair, a Vice Chair, an 

Executive Director, Treasurer, Controller, a General Counsel and a Secretary.  The Board may 

designate additional officers such as managers by resolution and those additional officers shall 

be subject to the same rules and conditions applicable to the seven (7) officers set forth herein.  

The Executive Director, Treasurer, Controller, General Counsel, and Secretary shall not be 

employees of a Member during the period that he or she serves as an officer of the Authority. 

unless the Board has taken or takes specific action to authorize use of a Member’s employee in 

that capacity.  None of the officers (including the Chair or Vice Chair) shall be an employee or 

otherwise be affiliated with the operator of an Approved Facility or any integrated waste 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–22– 

management company which provides services to the Authority or a Member.  The Board shall 

select a Chair and a Vice Chair from among the Directors and shall hold office for a period of 

one (1) year commencing on a date designated by resolution of the Board.  No person shall 

serve consecutive terms as the Chair and no person shall serve consecutive terms as the Vice 

Chair.  Successive Chairs shall not be representatives of the same Member.  Successive Vice 

Chairs shall not be representatives of the same Member. 

7.5. Chair. The Chair shall preside at meetings of the Board, call meetings to order, 

adjourn meetings, announce the business and the order it is to be acted upon, recognize persons 

entitled to speak, put to a vote all questions moved and seconded, announce results of votes, 

maintain the rules of order, execute documents and official actions on behalf of the Board when 

duly approved, and carry out other duties set forth in any bylaws adopted by the Board.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Director shall be entitled to place any matter related to the 

business of the Authority on the agenda for any meeting of the Board, subject to reasonable 

procedures adopted by the Board of Directors. 

7.6. Vice Chair. The Vice Chair shall serve as Chair in the absence of the regularly 

elected Chair. 

7.7. Executive Director.  The Board shall employ or contract for the services of an 

Executive Director who shall be the chief administrative officer of the Authority.  The 

Executive Director shall have a background in public management, solid waste management or a 

related field.  The Executive Director shall plan, organize and direct the administration and 

operations of the Authority, shall advise the Board on policy matters, shall recommend an 

administrative structure to the Board, shall hire and discharge administrative staff, shall develop 

and recommend budgets, shall reply to communications on behalf of the Authority, shall approve 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–23– 

payments of amounts duly authorized by the Board, shall carry out such other duties that may be 

assigned to the Executive Director by the Board from time to time and shall attend meetings of 

the Board. 

7.8. Treasurer.  

(a) The Treasurer shall be selected and approved by the Board, and the 

individual selected to serve as Treasurer shall also serve as the appointee under California 

Government Code section 6505.6. If the Treasurer herein designated can no longer serve as 

Treasurer, then the Authority may appoint a successor Treasurer via Board resolution.  The 

Treasurer shall be the depositary and have custody of all the funds of the Authority from 

whatever source. 

(b) The Treasurer shall do all of the following: 

(1) Receive all funds of the Authority and place it in the treasury to the 

credit of the Authority; 

(2) Be responsible, upon his or her official bond, for the safekeeping 

and disbursement of all Authority funds so held by him or her; 

(3) Pay, when due, out of funds of the Authority held by him or her, 

all sums payable on outstanding bonds and coupons of the Authority; 

(4) Pay any other sums due from the Authority from Authority funds, 

or any portion thereof, only upon warrants of the Controller; 

(5) Verify and report in writing on the first day of July, October, 

January, and April of each year to the Authority and Members the amount of funds he or she 

holds for the Authority, the amount of receipts since his or her last report, and the amount paid 

out since his or her last report. 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–24– 

(c) The governing body of the same Member as the Treasurer shall determine 

charges to be made against the Authority for the services of the Treasurer and Controller. 

7.9. Controller.  Pursuant to California Government Code section 6505.5, the 

Authority designates the Treasurer appointed pursuant to Section 7.8 herein.to be the Controller.  

If the Controller herein designated can no longer serve as Controller, then the Authority may 

appoint a successor Controller via Board resolution.  The Controller shall draw warrants to pay 

demands against the Authority when the demands have been approved by any person authorized 

to so approve in this Agreement.  

7.10. General Counsel. The Board shall employ or contract for the services of a General 

Counsel who shall be the legal officer of the Authority.  The General Counsel shall advise the 

Authority on legal matters. 

7.11. Secretary. The Board shall select and employ or contract for the services of a 

Secretary who shall prepare, distribute and maintain minutes of meetings of the Board and any 

committees of the Board.  The selection of the Secretary may be delegated to the Executive 

Director.  The Secretary shall also maintain the official records of the Authority and shall file 

notices as required by Section 18 of this Agreement. 

7.12. Access to Property. The Executive Director is hereby designated as the person 

who has charge of and access to the property of the Authority.  The Executive Director shall file 

with the Authority an official bond in an amount to be fixed by the Board.  The costs of those 

bonds shall be paid by the Authority. 

7.13. Officers, Employees and Agents. None of the officers, agents or employees 

employed or hired by the Authority shall by reason thereof become officers, agents or employees 

of any Member.  The Authority may contract with any Member for any services, subject to 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–25– 

approval by a majority of the Directors who do not represent that Member.  None of the persons 

whose services are supplied by a Member shall by reason thereof become an employee of the 

Authority. 

SECTION 8.    Meetings of the Board. 

8.1. Regular Meetings.  The Board shall hold a minimum of four (4) regular meetings 

each year.  The date upon which, and the hour and place at which, each regular meeting shall be 

held shall be fixed by resolution of the Board.  Board meetings shall be conducted in 

accordance with the rules of conduct set forth in Rosenberg’s Rules. 

8.2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called in accordance 

with the provisions of section 54956 of the California Government Code. 

8.3. Notice of Meetings. All meetings of the Board shall be held subject to the 

provisions of the California Ralph M. Brown Act (sections 54950 et seq. of the California 

Government Code) and other applicable laws of the State of California. 

8.4. Minutes.  The Secretary shall cause minutes of all meetings of the Board and any 

standing committees of the Board to be kept and shall, promptly after each meeting, cause a copy 

of the minutes to be forwarded to each Director. 

8.5. Quorum. A quorum for the transaction of business of the Board shall require the 

presence of Directors that represent a majority of the total membership of the Board, except that 

Directors constituting less than a quorum may adjourn any meeting.  For purposes of 

establishing a quorum and voting at Board meetings, Alternate Directors that are entitled to vote 

pursuant to Section 7.2 shall be considered as “Directors.” 

8.6. Voting.  Each Director shall have one vote on all matters presented to the Board 

for a vote.  The Board shall specify by resolution, from time to time, what types of decisions 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–26– 

shall be presented to the Board for a vote and what types of decisions shall be delegated to the 

Executive Director.  Where this Agreement requires an unanimous vote, the action shall require 

the unanimous vote of the total membership of the Board (7 votes as of the date of this 

Agreement). Unless otherwise identified in this Agreement, all Board actions require a majority 

vote of the total membership of the Board (4 votes as of the date of this Agreement).  

8.7. Bylaws.  The Board from time to time may adopt by resolution bylaws or other 

procedures for the conduct of its affairs, provided that they are not inconsistent with this 

Agreement. 

8.8. Budget.  A general budget for the Authority’s operations shall be adopted by the 

Board for the ensuing Fiscal Year prior to June 30 of each year.  The budget shall include 

sufficient detail to constitute an operating guideline, the anticipated sources of funds, and the 

anticipated expenditures to be made for the operations of the Authority including HHW 

Programs.  Approval of the budget by the Board shall constitute authority for the Executive 

Director to expend funds for the purposes outlined in the approved budget, subject to the 

availability of funds on hand. 

8.9. Reserves. 

(a) The Authority establishes the following three (3) funds:  1) an Operating 

Fund; 2) an Operating Reserve Fund; and 3) a Recycling Fund Reserve.  The Operating Reserve 

Fund limit is initially set at 67% of the annual operating budget. 

(b) Any amounts which accumulate in Operating Reserve Fund in excess of 

the limit will be rolled over into the Recycling Reserve Fund account during the annual budget 

process.  The Board shall adopt policies and procedures by resolution to address operation and 

management of both Reserve Funds, including the Recycling Reserve Fund limit, procedures for 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–27– 

replenishment of reserves and the periodic Board consideration of use of the excess Recycling 

Fund Reserves.  

(c) Excess Recycling Fund Reserves.  Any potential excess in the Recycling 

Fund Reserve shall be dispersed to Members, used for rate reduction or subsidy, or to fund 

special projects.  Reserve fund procedures and policies have been adopted by Resolution 18-02.  

The funding amounts of the Operating Reserve Fund and the reserve fund policies may only be 

modified in the future through adoption of a resolution subject to a unanimous vote of the Board.  

(d) The Board may from time to time create and fund a Liability Reserve 

Fund for potential or anticipated future liabilities, such as CalPERS Unfunded Actuarial Accrued 

Liability (“UAAL”) and Other Post-Employment Benefits (“OPEB”) obligations.   

8.10. Committees. The Board may create or designate committees, which typically shall 

be ad hoc committees.  A committee would consist of two or three Directors, and Alternates 

may not serve on committees.  An ad hoc committee would be subject to a one year term from 

its date of creation and shall typically be limited in scope to the single purpose for which it was 

created by the Board.  In the event of a vacancy on an ad hoc committee, the Chair shall 

designate a replacement committee member. Permanent standing committees may be created by 

unanimous vote of the Board.   

(a) All committee meetings shall be held subject to the provisions of the 

California Ralph M. Brown Act (sections 54950 et seq. of the California Government Code), 

although certain ad hoc committee meetings need not be public meetings in accord with said act. 

(b) All committees shall serve only in an advisory capacity to the Board and 

shall not independently take action on any issue unless the Board has specifically delegated such 

authority to the committee by resolution.   



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–28– 

SECTION 9.    Operating Fund Revenues and Other Sources of Funds. 

9.1. The Authority may seek to obtain funding for its current scope of activities as 

well as the scope of activities it is authorized to undertake by law by pursuing various sources of 

funds including, but not limited to, imposition of fees under the Act to the extent practically 

available, sale of energy from organic waste, sale of recycled commodities and/or a waste 

importation or exportation mitigation fee(s) and such other methods as set forth in Section 5.3. 

9.2. The Authority may establish a joint operating fund which may receive funds from 

the Members or other sources.  The fund shall be used to pay all administrative, operating and 

other non-capital expenses incurred by the Authority.  In the event that the Board requires 

contributions from the Members any such payments shall be made in such manner and at such 

times as approved by a unanimous vote of the Board.  

9.3. All moneys in the operating fund shall be paid out for the purposes for which the 

fund was created upon authorization of the Board, or within the expenditure authority of the 

Executive Director provided by the Board by time to time.   

SECTION 10.    Records and Accounts.  This Section is intended to ensure strict accountability 

of all funds of the Authority and to provide accurate reporting of receipts and disbursements of 

such funds.  The Authority shall maintain accurate and correct books of account showing in 

detail the costs and expenses of any acquisition and construction and the maintenance, operation, 

regulation and administration of a Facility and all financial transactions of the Members relating 

to any Facility including any HHW Facility.  The books of account shall correctly show any 

receipts and any costs, expenses or charges to be paid by all or any of the Members.  The books 

of account shall be open to inspection at all times by a representative or agent of any of the 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–29– 

Members. The Authority shall adopt a records management program to provide for the 

maintenance and disposal of records consistent with the requirements of State Law. 

SECTION 11.    Implementation of the Act. 

11.1. Intent.   It is the intent of all Members to form a regional agency, as defined by 

Public Resources Code section 40181, and for the Authority to undertake the responsibilities of a 

regional agency pursuant to the powers of the Authority as set forth, supra, in Sections 5.1 and 

5.2.  

11.2. Submittal of Elements by Members. 

(a) Any Member choosing to exercise its authority to undertake an SRRE, 

HHWE or NDFE individually, or to respond individually to a notice of deficiency, may do so by 

providing a resolution of the governing body of the Member to the Authority and each other 

Member within ten (10) days of adoption of said resolution. 

(b) Each Member so electing to exercise the prerogatives provided in Section 

11.2(a) or receiving a written notice from the Authority, shall be solely responsible for 

compliance with the requirements of the Act upon adoption of the Member resolution required 

by Section 11.2(a), or receipt of the notice from the Authority. 

11.3. Compliance Monitoring. 

(a) The Authority may establish a fair and equitable basis for determination of 

the amount of waste disposed of from within the Members’ jurisdiction and this method shall be 

used to determine the maximum amount of disposal allowable under the Act for the area 

included in the boundaries of the Authority. 

(b) The Authority shall be entitled to cause the Solid Waste of the Members to 

be monitored in order to determine compliance with the Act. 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–30– 

(c) The Authority shall be responsible for compiling and submitting disposal 

information from haulers and operators required to be submitted by CalRecycle pursuant to 

California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Division 7, Chapter 9, Article 9 or successor 

regulations and the Members agree to require their respective haulers to submit such information 

to the Authority. 

(d) The Authority shall monitor the implementation of the Regional Plan by 

the Authority and the Members and shall periodically report to the Members the status of 

compliance with the requirements of the Act and status of implementation of the Regional Plan. 

(e) The Authority shall report to the Members the substantial failure of the 

Authority, a Member or other party to implement applicable provisions of the Regional Plan. 

(f) The Authority will implement the Act’s programs and demonstrate 

compliance with the monitoring and reporting requirements related to Assembly Bill 341 (2011), 

Assembly Bill 1826 (2014), and any other future State mandates related to solid waste handling 

within the Member boundaries.  

11.4. Contingency Plans.  Consistent with section 40975(b)(3) of the Public Resources 

Code, the Authority hereby establishes a Contingency Plan which provides for compliance with 

the Act by each of the Members in the event the Authority, as the regional agency, is dissolved, 

or the Authority continues its role as a regional agency.  The Contingency Plan is as set forth in 

Sections 15 and 16 of this Agreement, dealing with Withdrawal and Termination, respectively. 

11.5. Regional Plan. 

(a) The Regional Plan and amendments thereto shall be developed in 

consultation with the Members and approved by the Authority Board of Directors and submitted 

or resubmitted to CalRecycle as may be needed. 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–31– 

(b) The Regional Plan shall identify source reduction, recycling, composting, 

education and public information, household hazardous waste and other programs required by 

the Act or CalRecycle regulations and assign responsibility for implementation of said programs 

among the Authority and the Members. 

(c) The Regional Plan, and subsequent amendments or revisions thereto, 

following approval by CalRecycle, shall be included in this Agreement by this reference. 

(d) Notwithstanding Section 16 of this Agreement, the Regional Plan may 

from time to time be amended by a majority vote of the Authority Board of Directors and all 

such amendments shall become a part of the Regional Plan upon approval by CalRecycle. 

(e) The Members shall make a good faith effort to implement programs and 

actions specified in the Regional Plan approved by CalRecycle for implementation by that 

Member. 

(f) The Members agree to provide the Authority information specific to its 

jurisdiction that is not readily available elsewhere as required by the Authority to prepare and 

implement the Regional Plan. 

(g) Each Member agrees to coordinate its education and public information 

activities with respect to Solid Waste and household hazardous waste with the activities of the 

Authority and to conduct such activities in a manner consistent with the education and public 

information program contained in the Regional Plan. 

11.6. Grants and Financial Assistance.  Each Member agrees to cooperate with the 

Authority as necessary to enable the Authority to apply for and receive grant funds and other 

financial assistance that may be available to a Member for development of the Regional Plan or 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–32– 

for implementation of programs and actions assigned to the Authority in the Regional Plan in 

order to minimize costs which must be borne by ratepayers. 

SECTION 12.    Authority Established Rates. 

12.1. The Authority shall be solely responsible for the approval of rates for services at 

an Approved Facility designated pursuant to this Agreement and each Member hereby delegates, 

assigns and/or otherwise transfers to the Authority any powers that each Member that has its 

Designated Waste processed at an Approved Facility may have with respect to the regulation of, 

approval or establishing rates or charges for that designated waste. 

12.2. The Authority shall establish or approve rates to be charged at an Approved 

Facility, in amounts sufficient to provide the revenues necessary to meet the contractual 

obligations for use of Approved Facilities. 

12.3. The Authority may from time to time elect to include as an additional amount in 

the rates established or otherwise approved for an Approved Facility, or a portion of the amounts 

so determined from, as necessary to provide for the planning and implementation activities of the 

Authority, to pay other costs and obligations of the Authority, in which case the amounts so 

included will be paid to the Authority by the operator of an Approved Facility.   

12.4. The Members recognize that (i) Approved Rates will likely be established as a 

unit charge per unit weight of Solid Waste and Materials; and (ii) that each Member that uses 

that Approved Facility may be required to pass such rates through for collection from ratepayers 

as a part of the collection rate (e.g. a unit charge per can per month).  Accordingly, the 

Members hereby agree that the Authority shall establish a fair and equitable basis for conversion 

of Approved Rates to a collection rate and that each Member shall include in the collection rates 

the amount approved by the Authority for collection from ratepayers.  That portion of the 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–33– 

Approved Rates that is paid to the Authority is to be used to fund Authority activities that benefit 

all Members. A Member, in an alternative manner, may elect to fund or provide its share of the 

costs and obligations of the Authority set forth in Section 12.5, if its Directed Waste does not go 

to the Approved Facility and/or an alternative funding method is approved by the Board.  El 

Cerrito, which has executed a separate Post Collection Agreement from the one defined in 

Section 1.26, shall contribute its portion of the Authority budget and HHWP costs based on its 

proportional share of the Members’ “Inbound Solid Waste,” “Inbound Organics and Food 

Scraps,” “Inbound Mixed C&D/Concrete,” “Inbound Residential Recycling,” “Commercial 

Recycling,” “Industrial Recycling,” and “El Cerrito Commercial Dry Waste Processing” tonnage 

reported by the Contractor for the twelve-month period (historically August 1 to July 31) used by 

the Authority for the purposes of establishing the Post-Collection Rate pursuant to Section 5.4 of 

the PCA. 

12.5. The Authority shall evaluate the accuracy of the Authority’s prior conversion of 

Approved Rates to the unit charge collection rate that is included in the collection rate for each 

Member’s jurisdiction.  The Authority may use a balancing account concept from rate setting 

period to rate setting period to account for overages and underages.  A unanimous vote shall be 

required for any Board action to modify the current rate setting methodology described in 

Exhibit B. 

12.6. The Authority shall notify each Member and the other party to the Member’s 

Franchise Agreement of the amount of said Approved Rates and the portion of collection rates 

corresponding to Approved Rates.  The Authority shall also notify any Member agency that is 

not subject to the Approved Rates the portion of the required Authority revenues which must be 

funded by that Member. 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–34– 

SECTION 13.    Apportionment of Penalties. 

13.1. Penalties Arising from Authority Failure. 

(a) Any penalties assessed against the Authority by CalRecycle, to a 

maximum of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) per day, which are the result of the Authority’s 

failure to either (i) submit an adequate Regional Plan or required element thereof; or (ii) make a 

good faith effort to implement the programs or actions specified in the Regional Plan for 

implementation by the Authority, shall be paid by the Authority. 

(b) Any penalties assessed against a Member by CalRecycle, which are the 

result of an Authority’s failure to either (i) submit an adequate Regional Plan or required element 

thereof; or (ii) implement the programs or actions specified in the Regional Plan for 

implementation by the Authority, shall be paid by the Authority. 

(c) Any penalties paid by the Authority pursuant to Section 13.1(a) or Section 

13.1(b) of this Agreement shall be paid out of Authority funds including potentially its Operating 

or Recycling Reserve Funds and, to the extent necessary, collected in the rates or charges 

assessed against each Member based upon their proportionate shares of the Members’ aggregate 

solid waste tonnage (calculated using the Members’ “Inbound Solid Waste,” “Dry Waste,” and 

“Construction and Demolition” tonnage as shown in the last three Annual Reports submitted by 

the Contractor pursuant to the PCAs.) 

(d) The Members shall only be liable for payment of any penalties assessed 

against the Authority by CalRecycle which are not paid by the Authority and which are not paid 

by an individual Member pursuant to Section 13.2 below.. 

13.2. Penalties Arising from a Member’s Failure. 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–35– 

(a) Any penalties assessed against the Authority by CalRecycle, which are the 

result of a Member’s failure to implement programs or actions specified in the Regional Plan for 

implementation by the Member shall be paid by the Authority; and  

(1) The Authority may recover any amounts, including penalties 

assessed by CalRecycle and the Authority’s costs incurred as a result of CalRecycle’s actions 

leading to and including the assessment and appeal of said penalties, by imposing a surcharge on 

the Directed Waste and Materials and all other waste delivered to an Approved Facility from 

within the jurisdiction of the failing Members who have not fully reimbursed the Authority. 

(2) In lieu of collection of the penalty by the Authority through the 

surcharge, described in Section 13.2(a)(1) above, the Member may reimburse the Authority 

within thirty (30) days of Authority’s payment of the penalties, the amount of penalties paid plus 

the Authority’s costs incurred and associated with CalRecycle actions leading to and including 

the assessment and appeal of said penalties. 

(b) Any penalties which are assessed directly against a Member as a result of 

the Member’s failure to either (i) implement the programs or actions specifically identified in the 

Regional Plan for implementation by the Member; or (ii) to exercise its prerogatives under 

Section 11.2 of this Agreement; or (iii) to perform its obligations under Section 11.5 of this 

Agreement, shall be paid by the Member and neither the Authority nor any other Member shall 

be obligated to pay said penalties or any costs associated with the assessment or appeal of said 

penalties. 

(c) In the event that failure of one or more Members to perform their 

obligations under this Agreement or to implement programs or actions specified in the Regional 

Plan for implementation by the Member causes the Authority or other Members to be unable to 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–36– 

implement the Regional Plan, the failing Member shall pay any penalties assessed against the 

Authority or other Member(s) by CalRecycle as a result of the failure. 

(d) Upon notification of any such violation or claim, the Member or Members 

shall take such prompt, corrective action as is necessary to meet the requirements. 

13.3. Nothing in this Section shall preclude one or more Members or the Authority 

from imposing or establishing additional incentives to meet waste diversion requirements. 

SECTION 14.    Disposition of Assets at Dissolution.  Subject to the then applicable 

requirements of the Law (currently Sections 6511 et seq. of the California Government Code), 

upon dissolution of the Authority, the assets of the Authority remaining after payment of, and 

adequate provision for, all debts, liabilities and obligations of the Authority shall be divided in 

accordance with a resolution adopted by a unanimous vote of the Board at the time of the 

dissolution. 

SECTION 15.    Withdrawal. 

15.1. Requirements for Withdrawal.  A Member may withdraw from the Authority 

subject to the following: 

(a) Notice of Withdrawal.  A Member seeking to withdraw from the 

Authority shall notify the Authority and each of the Members, by personal delivery in the 

manner required by Section 18, by presenting (“Notice of Withdrawal”) a resolution adopted by 

its governing body setting forth its intent to withdraw from the Authority to the Board.  The 

resolution shall set forth the effective date of the withdrawal (“Withdrawal Date”), which shall 

be no sooner than one hundred eighty (180) days from the Notice of Withdrawal.  The Board 

may by unanimous vote authorize a Withdrawal Date that is sooner than 180 days from the 

Notice of Withdrawal. 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–37– 

(b) Defined Terms.  For the purposes of this Section 15, the terms defined in 

this subsection have the following meanings: 

(1) “Allocated Funds” means the funds allocated to meet all of the 

Authority’s existing debts, financial obligations, and liabilities incurred, earned, or expected to 

be earned by the Withdrawal Date that are payable in the fiscal year in which a notice of 

withdrawal is provided.   

(2) “Long-term Liabilities” means the Authority’s existing debts, 

financial obligations, and liabilities incurred, earned, or expected to be earned by the Withdrawal 

Date that become due after the fiscal year in which the Notice of Withdrawal is provided.  

Long-term Liabilities include, but are not limited to, CalPERS and OPEB UAAL and office 

leases, if any.  The calculation of the CalPERS and OPEB UAAL shall reflect the reserve funds 

set aside for meeting those obligations.   

(3) “Pro Rata Share” means a Member’s proportionate share of the 

Members’ aggregate solid waste tonnage (calculated using the Members’ “Inbound Solid 

Waste,” “Dry Waste,” and “Construction and Demolition” tonnage as shown in last three Annual 

Reports submitted by the Contractor pursuant to the PCA).   

(4) “Reserve Policy” means Authority Resolution No. 18-02, 

Resolution of the Board of Directors of the West Contra Costa Integrated Waste Management 

Authority Requiring the Establishment of Financial Reserves, adopted on June 14, 2018. 

(5) “Unallocated Funds” means the portion of Authority reserve funds 

that have not been either (a) set aside for the purpose of meeting specific Authority Long-term 

Liabilities or (b) allocated in the Authority budget. 

(c) Satisfaction of Pro Rata Share of Long-term Liabilities. 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–38– 

(1) Within ninety (90) days following receipt of a Notice of 

Withdrawal pursuant to Section 15.1(a), the Authority shall notify each of the Members, 

pursuant to Section 18, of its determination of the Allocated Funds, Unallocated Funds, Long-

term Liabilities, and the Pro Rata Share. In determining the Long-term Liabilities, the Board of 

Directors shall, based on the recommendation of an actuary, determine the amount of any 

Authority UAAL as of the Withdrawal Date.   

(2) On or before the Withdrawal Date, and as a condition precedent to 

the withdrawal’s effectiveness, the withdrawing Member must pay to the Authority its Pro Rata 

Share of Long-term Liabilities.  If the Authority determines, under Section 15.2(b), that the 

withdrawing Member is entitled to a disbursement of Unallocated Funds, the withdrawing 

Member may direct the Authority to deduct the payment required by this Subsection from its 

disbursement of Unallocated Funds. 

(d) Termination of Withdrawal Process.  A withdrawing Member may 

terminate the withdrawal process at any time before the withdrawal is effective by notifying the 

Authority and each of the Members, by personal delivery in the manner required by Section 18. 

The withdrawing Member shall be liable for all third-party costs incurred by the Authority for 

processing the withdrawal, which shall be payable within 60 days of the notice of termination of 

the withdrawal process. 

15.2. Disbursement of Unallocated Funds Upon Withdrawal. 

(a) On or before the Withdrawal Date, the Authority shall disburse to the 

withdrawing Member its Pro Rata Share of the portion of the Unallocated Funds that are in 

excess of the Operating Fund Target Reserve and the Recycling Fund Target Reserve, as both are 

described in the Reserve Policy. 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–39– 

(b) Within 45 days following its adoption of a budget that reflects the 

departure of the withdrawing Member, the Authority shall disburse to the withdrawing Member 

its Pro Rata Share of the portion of the Operating Fund Reserve and the Recycling Fund Reserve 

that exceed, respectively, the recalculated Operating Fund Target Reserve and the recalculated 

Recycling Fund Target Reserve, pursuant to the Reserve Policy. 

15.3. Obligations Following Withdrawal Date.  A Member which has withdrawn from 

the Authority shall not be liable for the payment of Authority expenses accruing beyond the 

Withdrawal Date, and shall have no right to reimbursement of any assets or monies of the 

Authority once disbursement of any Unallocated Funds pursuant to Section 15.2(b), if any, has 

been effectuated. 

15.4. Effect of Withdrawal on Agreement.   The withdrawal of a Member shall have 

no effect on the continuance of this Agreement among the remaining Members and the 

Agreement shall remain in full force and effect with respect to the remaining Members. 

15.5. Member and Authority’s Obligations Under the Act. 

(a) The withdrawing Member shall, not later than one hundred twenty (120) 

days prior to the Withdrawal Date, prepare and submit an SRRE, HHWE, and NDFE to 

CalRecycle for the Member’s jurisdiction to CalRecycle for approval.  The withdrawing 

Member shall be solely responsible for preparation of its SRRE, HHWE and NDFE; 

(b) The Authority shall, not later than one hundred twenty (120) days prior to 

the Withdrawal Date, prepare and submit a revised Regional Plan which reflects the withdrawal 

of the Member to CalRecycle for approval. 

(c) The withdrawing Member shall pay (i) all costs incurred by Authority in 

preparing a revised Regional Plan; and (ii) all amounts owed to the Authority for penalties 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–40– 

assessed against the Authority or the withdrawing Member including the Authority’s costs 

incurred and associated with CalRecycle actions leading to and including the assessment of said 

penalties.  

(d) The withdrawing Member shall be responsible for compliance with the 

Act the earlier of:  (i) the date of the withdrawing Member’s submittal of the documents to 

CalRecycle; or (ii) the date of the Authority’s submittal of the revised Regional Plan to 

CalRecycle; or (iii) the Withdrawal Date. 

SECTION 16.    Amendments Including Termination. 

16.1. This Agreement may only be amended by a written instrument approved by a 

majority of the Directors which then shall be approved by all of the Member’s governing bodies. 

16.2. The Agreement may only be terminated or other action leading to dissolution of 

the Authority may only be effectuated through adoption of a resolution by a minimum 2/3 vote 

of all Directors which then shall be approved by a minimum of 2/3 of the Members’ governing 

bodies.  Given the current membership and Board seats, to reach the 2/3 threshold, five 

Directors and four Members would have to vote to adopt the resolution. 

16.3. For termination of this Agreement during any period where the Authority is 

operating as a Regional Agency, the written instrument required by Section 16.2 of this 

Agreement shall include, but not be limited to, all of the following requirements: 

(a) A date certain that this Agreement will be terminated (hereinafter 

“Termination Date”); 

(b) Each Member shall, not later than one hundred twenty (120) days prior to 

the Termination Date, prepare and submit an SRRE, HHWE, and NDFE for the Member’s 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–41– 

jurisdiction to CalRecycle for approval and that each Member shall be solely responsible for 

preparation of its SRRE, HHWE and NDFE;  

(c) Each Member, prior to the Termination Date, shall promptly pay, within a 

reasonable time, all amounts owing to the Authority or CalRecycle for penalties assessed by 

CalRecycle, including the Authority’s costs incurred and associated with CalRecycle actions 

leading to and including the assessment of said penalties; 

(d) Each Member shall be solely responsible for compliance with the Act the 

earlier of:  (i) the date of submittal of the documents required by Section 15.5(d) to CalRecycle; 

or (ii) the specified Termination Date; and 

16.4. The obligations of the Authority terminate on the Termination Date, and each 

member shall pay all amounts owed to the Authority prior to that date; however, in the event of 

default by a Member with regard to payment of amounts due, the obligation to pay all sums due 

to the Authority shall survive and remain in full force after the Termination Date. 

SECTION 17.    Filing with the Secretary of State.  The Secretary shall file all required notices 

with the Secretary of State in accordance with California Government Code sections 6503.5 and 

53051. 

SECTION 18.    Notices. 

18.1. All notices which any Member or the Authority may wish to give in connection 

with this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be served by personal delivery during usual 

business hours at the principal office of the Member or Authority, to an officer or person 

apparently in charge of that office, or by depositing the same in the United States mail, postage 

prepaid, and addressed to the Member or Authority at its principal office, or to such other 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–42– 

address as the Authority or Member may designate from time to time by written notice given in 

the manner specified in this Section.   

18.2. Service of notice pursuant to this Section shall be deemed complete on the day of 

service by personal delivery (but twenty-four (24) hours after such delivery in the case of notices 

of special meetings of the Board) or two (2) days after mailing if deposited in the United States 

mail. 

18.3. Members agree to provide the Authority with the official notification 

requirements of the Franchise Agreement for use by the Authority and agree to provide 

Authority with any changes in said notification requirements. 

SECTION 19.    Successors and Assigns. 

19.1. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the 

permitted successors and assigns of the Members. 

19.2. However, no Member shall assign any of its rights under this Agreement except to 

a duly formed public entity organized and existing under the Laws of the State of California 

approved by a majority of the Directors who do not represent the assigning Member. 

19.3. No assignment shall be effective unless and until the Authority, the Members and 

the proposed assignee comply with all then applicable requirements of Law relating to changes 

in the composition of entities such as the Authority. 

SECTION 20.    El Cerrito Recycling Services.  It is acknowledged by the Members that the El 

Cerrito Recycling and Environmental Resource Center was in existence and operating before the 

formation of the Authority, and this Agreement is not intended to alter the operations of the 

Center.  Accordingly, the El Cerrito Recycling and Environmental Resource Center shall not be 

considered a Facility for the purposes of this Agreement.  The City of El Cerrito operates both 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–43– 

the Recycling Center and a curbside collection program for Recyclable Material.  The City of 

El Cerrito also has entered into agreements relating to the collection, processing and disposal of 

its Solid Waste, green waste and Recyclable Materials and the flow of such wastes are not 

controlled by the Authority.  In particular, the Authority may not direct Recyclable Materials 

collected as part of El Cerrito Recycling Services except as separately agreed to by the Authority 

and El Cerrito.  In addition, the costs of operating the El Cerrito Recycling Services shall not be 

included in the calculation of Approved Rates for Directed Waste and Materials collected within 

El Cerrito. 

SECTION 21.    Third Party Beneficiaries.  The Authority shall be a third-party beneficiary of 

this Agreement entitled to exercise all rights of and benefits accruing to the Authority that are 

specified in this Agreement. 

SECTION 22.    Severability.  Should any part, term or provision of this Agreement be decided 

by a final judgment of a court or arbitrator to be illegal or in conflict with any law of the State of 

California or otherwise be unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of its remaining parts, terms 

and provisions shall not be affected. 

SECTION 23.    Section Headings.  All section headings contained in this Agreement are for 

convenience and reference.  They are not intended to define or limit the scope of any provision 

of this Agreement. 

SECTION 24.    Dispute Resolution. 

24.1. Informal Resolution. Should a dispute arise in connection with the interpretation 

or performance of this Agreement, the provisions of this Section 24 shall apply.  A Member 

shall give the Authority and Members written notice of such dispute.  The parties shall attempt 

to resolve their disputes informally to the maximum extent possible.  In the event such dispute 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–44– 

is not resolved within thirty (30) days of such notice, either party may propose the appointment 

of a mediator for advice and a non-binding mediation, and the other party or parties shall attend 

such mediation.  If the dispute is not resolved through mediation, within sixty (60) days 

thereafter, then any party may refer it to arbitration. 

24.2. Arbitration.  All disputes that arise in connection with the interpretation or 

performance of this Agreement that are not resolved pursuant to the informal procedures of 

Section 24.1, shall be resolved on an equitable basis by a single arbitrator under the commercial 

arbitration rules of the American Arbitration Association.   

24.3. Binding Arbitration.  The arbitrator’s decision shall be final and binding on the 

Authority, all Members and all former Members involved or affected by the dispute. 

24.4. Enforcement.  The Authority, any Member and any former Member that is party 

to the dispute may enforce any award, order or judgment of the arbitrator in any court of 

competent jurisdiction. 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–45– 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

      

City Attorney 

 

 CITY OF EL CERRITO 

 

 

       

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

      

City Attorney 

 

 CITY OF HERCULES 

 

 

       

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

      

City Attorney 

 

 CITY OF PINOLE 

 

 

       

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

      

City Attorney 

 

 CITY OF RICHMOND 

 

 

       

Mayor 

[SIGNATURES CONTINUED ON THE NEXT PAGE] 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–46– 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

      

City Attorney 

 CITY OF SAN PABLO 

 

 

       

Mayor 

 

3231604.17 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  

 

Exhibit A 

Boundaries  

 

 

 



AUTHORITY BOARD-APPROVED AMENDED AND RESTATED JEPA  
 

–2– 

Exhibit B 

Rate Setting Methodology 



Exhibit B to May-June JEPA Draft    
 

 

Page 1 
 

Exhibit B 
Summary Formulas and Full Description of RecycleMore Post-Collection Rate 

Calculation Methodology 
 

Exhibit B describes and shows formulas used in the current methodology for calculating 

RecycleMore Post-Collection Rates. All 2018 Sample Calculation figures stated in Exhibit B are 

directly referencing the Approved 2018 Richmond Sanitary Service Area Post-Collection Rate 

Calculation, shown in the table below.   

Step 1: Calculate the Richmond Sanitary Service (RSS) Annual Post-

Collection Revenue Requirement  

DESCRIPTION: 

 

The RSS Annual Post-Collection Revenue Requirement is calculated as: 

 

$92.02, which is the RecycleMore Board approved Blended Per-Ton Rate calculated as described 

in Section 5 of the Post-Collection Agreement (PCA) between RecycleMore and Republic 

Services (Republic) times 157,979.54, which is the Total Number of All Tons Collected by RSS1 

and reported by Republic for the twelve-month period from August 1 of the prior year through 

                     
1   Pursuant to the franchise agreements between RSS and Hercules, Pinole, Richmond and San Pablo and Contra 

Costa County.  

92.02$             157,980 total tons    = 14,537,960.88  Annual Revenue

Commercial Industrial

20-

Gallon

35-

Gallon

60/65-

Gallon

95/100-

Gallon Per Cubic Yard Per Ton TOTAL

2018 Rates 5.08$               8.91$    16.57$ 24.86$    9.66$                  140.17$              140.17$                 

2018 Tonnage Basis 25,406 33,099 103,719                 

2017 % of Tons 24% 32%

2018 Unit Basis*** 368,500 33,099

2018 Revenue Requirement 3,561,051.74$  4,639,330.83$  14,537,960.88$   

2017 Rate 4.86$               8.52$    15.85$ 23.78$    10.35$                137.90$              137.90$                 

2018 Rate 5.08$               8.91$    16.57$ 24.86$    9.66$                  140.17$              140.17$                 

$ Increase/(Decrease) 0.22$               0.39$    0.72$    1.08$      (0.69)$                 2.27$                  2.27$                      

% Increase/(Decrease) 4.5% 4.6% 4.5% 4.5% -6.7% 1.6% 1.6%

Approved Richmond Sanitary Service Area Post-Collection Rate Calculation

Blended per ton     x

Residential

45,214

44%

59,280

6,337,578.32$                                                         



Exhibit B to May-June JEPA Draft    
 

 

Page 2 
 

July 31 of the present year, and is inclusive of Solid Waste (Trash), Dry Waste, Construction and 

Demolition Debris (C&D), Recycling and Organics.  

FORMULAS: 

Blended Per-Ton Rate (rounded to the nearest cent) TIMES  

Total Number of All Tons Collected 8/1 to 7/31 EQUALS  

RSS Annual Post-Collection Revenue Requirement  

2018 SAMPLE CALCULATION: 

$92.02 X 157,979.54 tons = $14,537,960.882   

Step 2: Calculate the Revenue Requirement per Sector 

DESCRIPTION: 

The Revenue Requirement per Sector (Residential, Commercial, Industrial) is calculated as: 

The RSS Annual Post-Collection Revenue Requirement as calculated in Step 1, times each 

Sector’s percentage of the total Solid Waste (Trash), Dry Waste and C&D reported by Republic 

for the twelve-month period from August 1 of the prior year through July 31 of the present year. 

These tonnages are a subset of the total number of all tons used in Step 1 in that recycling and 

organics tonnages are not included. For example, the total number of all tons used in Step 1 in 

2018 was 157,979,54 tons, whereas the total solid waste (trash), dry waste and C&D tonnage 

was 103,718.67, with the difference between the two being 54,260.87 tons of recycling and 

organics, which are not counted for the purposes of calculating the Revenue Requirement per 

Sector.  

FORMULAS: 

Residential Sector 

 RSS Annual Post-Collection Revenues Requirement TIMES 

 Residential Sector Total Tons of Trash, Dry Waste and C&D DIVIDED BY 

                     
2  The Blended Per-Ton Rate used in prior years and in the 2018 Post-Collection Rate calculation was not rounded 

to the nearest cent, and as a result the RSS Annual Post-Collection Revenue Requirement shown above is an 
insignificant $683.61 higher than the product of $92.02 times 157,979.54.  



Exhibit B to May-June JEPA Draft    
 

 

Page 3 
 

All Sector Total Tons of Trash, Dry Waste and C&D EQUALS 

 Residential Sector Revenue Requirement 

Commercial Sector 

 RSS Annual Post-Collection Revenues Requirement TIMES 

 Commercial Sector Total Tons of Trash, Dry Waste and C&D DIVIDED BY 

All Sector Total Tons of Trash, Dry Waste and C&D EQUALS 

 Commercial Sector Revenue Requirement 

Industrial Sector 

 RSS Annual Post-Collection Revenues Requirement TIMES 

 Industrial Sector Total Tons of Trash, Dry Waste and C&D DIVIDED BY 

All Sector Total Tons of Trash, Dry Waste and C&D EQUALS 

 Industrial Sector Revenue Requirement 

2018 SAMPLE CALCULATION: 

Residential Sector: $14,537,960.88 X 45,214.40 tons / 103,718.67 tons = $6,337,578.32 

Commercial Sector: $14,537,960.88 X 25,405.73 tons / 103,718.67 tons = $3,561,051.74 

Industrial Sector: $14,537,960.88 X 33,098.54 tons / 103,718.67 tons = $4,639,330.83 

Step 3: Calculate the Unit Basis per Sector 

DESCRIPTION: 

The Unit Basis per Sector is expressed in monthly 35-Gallon Equivalents (Residential), Annual Cubic 

Yards (Commercial), and Annual Tons (Industrial) and is based on tonnage and detailed cart counts and 

cubic yard information reported by RSS and Republic, each of which are calculated per the following: 

For the Residential Sector, the total number of residential Solid Waste (Trash) collection carts by gallon 

size (20, 35, 60/65, and 95/101) reported as of September 30 of the current year are multiplied by the 

35-Gallon Equivalent factor for each cart size, yielding an equivalent number of 35-gallon carts. The 35-



Exhibit B to May-June JEPA Draft    
 

 

Page 4 
 

Gallon Equivalent factors for each cart size are calculated as the ratio of gallon size divided by 35 and are 

shown in the table below. In 2018, the total number of 35-Gallon Equivalents was calculated at 59,280. 

Trash Cart Size 
35-Gallon 

Equivalents 

20-gallon 0.57 

35-gallon 1.00 

60/65-gallon 1.86 

95/101-gallon 2.79 

For the Commercial Sector, the annual cubic yards are calculated as twelve (12) times the total 

commercial cubic yards per month on September 30. For the 2018 rate calculation, this number was 

30,708 times 12, yielding 368,500 annual cubic yards.  

For the Industrial Sector, the annual tons are the total industrial of Solid Waste (Trash), Dry Waste and 

C&D as shown in Step 2 (33,098.54 tons)  

FORMULAS: 

Residential Sector 

 Total Number of 20-gallon Trash carts TIMES 0.57 PLUS 

Total Number of 35-gallon Trash carts PLUS 

Total Number of 60/65-gallon Trash carts TIMES 1.86 PLUS 

Total Number of 95/101-gallon Trash carts TIMES 2.79 EQUALS 

Residential Sector Unit Basis 

Commercial Sector 

Total Number of Commercial Cubic Yards per Month TIMES 12 EQUALS 

Commercial Sector Unit Basis 

Industrial Sector 

 Industrial Sector Total Tons of Trash, Dry Waste and C&D EQUALS 

 Industrial Sector Unit Basis 



Exhibit B to May-June JEPA Draft    
 

 

Page 5 
 

2018 SAMPLE CALCULATION: 

Residential Sector 

 8,486 20-gallon carts X 0.57 = 4,849 35-Gallon Equivalents + 

 47,197 35-gallon carts X 1 = 47,197 35-Gallon Equivalents + 

 3,000 60/65-gallon carts X 1.86 = 5,571 35-Gallon Equivalents + 

 597 95/101-gallon carts X 2.79 = 1,663 35-Gallon Equivalents = 

 59,280 35-Gallon Equivalents as Residential Unit Basis 

Commercial Sector 

 30,708 cubic yards X 12 = 368,500 Annual Cubic Yards as Commercial Sector Unit Basis 

Industrial Sector 

 33,098.54 tons as the Industrial Sector Unit Basis 

Step 4: Calculate the Post-Collection Rate Per Sector 

DESCRIPTION: 

For the Residential Sector, the base Post-Collection Rate is calculated for the 35-Gallon Trash cart as the 

Residential Sector Revenue Requirement, divided by the Residential Sector Unit Basis, divided by 12 

months. The Post-Collection Rates for the 20-Gallon, 65-Gallon and 95/101-Gallon Trash carts are 

calculated based on the percentage increase in the 35-Gallon Post-Collection Rate for the coming rate 

year times the 20-Gallon, 60/65-Gallon and 95/101-Gallon Post-Collection Rates in the current rate year.   

For the Commercial and Industrial Sectors, the Post-Collection Rate is simply the Revenue Requirement 

for each sector divided by the Unit Basis for each sector.  

FORMULAS: 

Residential Sector 

Residential Sector Revenue Requirement DIVIDED BY 

Residential Sector Unit Basis DIVIDED BY  

12 EQUALS 

 Coming Rate Year 35-Gallon Post-Collection Rate 



Exhibit B to May-June JEPA Draft    
 

 

Page 6 
 

 

 Coming Rate Year 35-Gallon Post-Collection Rate DIVIDED BY 

 Current Rate Year 35-Gallon Post-Collection Rate MINUS 

 Percentage Increase in the 35-Gallon Post-Collection Rate 

  

 20-Gallon, 60/65-Gallon, and 95/101-Gallon Current Rate Year Post-Collection Rates TIMES 

 Percentage Increase in the 35-Gallon Post-Collection Rate EQUALS  

Coming Rate Year 20-Gallon, 60/65-Gallon and 95/101-Gallon Post-Collection Rates 

Commercial Sector 

Commercial Sector Revenue Requirement DIVIDED BY 

 Commercial Sector Unit Basis EQUALS 

 Commercial Per-Cubic Yard Post-Collection Rate 

Industrial Sector 

Industrial Sector Revenue Requirement DIVIDED BY 

 Industrial Sector Unit Basis EQUALS 

Industrial Per Ton Post-Collection Rate 

2018 SAMPLE CALCULATION: 

Residential Sector 

$6,337,578.32 / 59,280 35-Gallon Equivalents / 12 = $8.91 Coming Rate Year 35-Gallon Post-

Collection Rate 

$8.91 / $8.52 Current Rate Year 35-Gallon Post-Collection Rate = 104.56% Annual Increase in 

35-Gallon Post-Collection Rate  

 

$4.86 Current Year 20-Gallon Post-Collection Rate X 104.56% = $5.08 Coming Rate Year 20-

Gallon Post-Collection Rate 

 

$15.85 Current Year 60/65-Gallon Post-Collection Rate X 104.56% = $16.57 Coming Rate Year 

60/65-Gallon Post-Collection Rate 

 



Exhibit B to May-June JEPA Draft    
 

 

Page 7 
 

$23.78 Current Year 95/101-Gallon Post-Collection Rate X 104.56% = $24.86 Coming Rate Year 

95/101-Gallon Post-Collection Rate 

Commercial Sector 

$3,561,051.74 / 368,500 = $9.66 Commercial Per Cubic-Yard Post-Collection Rate  

A commercial customer with a two-yard container, picked up once per week, pays $83.72 per 

month in Post-Collection Rates based on:  

$9.66 Commercial Per Cubic Yard Post-Collection Rate X 2 cubic yards per week X 52 weeks per 

year / 12 months = $83.72 per month in Commercial Post-Collection Rates 

Industrial Sector 

$4,639,330.83 / 33,098.54 = $140.17 Industrial Per Ton Post-Collection Rate 

An industrial customer with a thirty (30) yard container with contents weighing 5 tons would 

pay $700.85 each time the container is serviced based on: 

$140.17 Industrial Per Ton Post-Collection Rate X 5 = $700.85 in Industrial Post-Collection Rates 

 



   

 

 CITY COUNCIL  10B 
  REPORT  

  
 

 
DATE: MARCH 5, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: MICHELLE FITZER, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION AND DIRECTION REGARDING THE WEST CONTRA 

COSTA INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY JOINT 
EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT UPDATE 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council discuss the status of the West Contra Costa 
Integrated Waste Management Authority (WCCIWMA/Recycle More) Joint Exercise 
of Powers Agreement (JEPA) update and provide direction to staff. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
WCCIWMA is a Joint Powers Authority made up of the cities of Pinole, Hercules, 
San Pablo, El Cerrito, and Richmond whose primary tasks are Post-Collection 
Agreement oversight, compliance with State regulatory requirements regarding 
diversion of solid waste, recycling, and household hazardous waste (HHW), and 
related programs in support of said diversion.  Contra Costa County is also a 
participant in some aspects of the Authority, but is not a voting member agency. 
 
For many years the WCCIWMA Board and respective City staff have been working 
on updating the governing document for the Authority – the JEPA.  There have been 
several issues that have caused the discussions to go on for so long. However, 
since July 2017 the City Managers have been working with WCCIWMA staff to 
develop a framework for core services of the Authority and amendments to the 
governance structure.  In December 2017 the City Managers jointly presented 
preliminary recommendations, which were finalized and approved by the WCCIWMA 
Board in January 2018 (Attachment A).  A key component to the recommendations 
was Board voting to reflect one (1) voting representative per member agency.  To 
address the concerns of Richmond relative to this equal voting and the impacts on 
financial decisions, the City Managers agreed to unanimous vote requirements for 
several items including rate setting.  To also address a Richmond interest, the 
withdrawal procedures were significantly simplified. 
 
Final work to craft the draft JEPA then took place starting in January 2018.  In May 
2018 the member agencies received an amended JEPA draft that did not simply 
incorporate the City Manager’s recommendations.  Instead changes were made to 

fitzer
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B



City Council Report – 10B 
March 5, 2019  2 

 

reflect additional feedback from the City of Richmond that the other member 
agencies had never received.  Again, the member agencies and the City Managers 
began meeting to review the revised draft JEPA.  Over the next several months a 
collaborative effort took place among the City Managers to develop a draft JEPA we 
could all recommend to the WCCIWMA Board. 
 
On August 23, 2018 representatives from Pinole, Hercules, San Pablo and 
Richmond met with the WCCIWMA Executive Director, Stan Hakes.  Then 
Richmond City Manager Bill Lindsey had prepared a matrix of the final changes 
proposed to Section 15 of the document, Withdrawal, and Richmond’s concerns or 
interests.  The participants went line by line and agreed on wording for everything 
except the Disbursement of Unallocated Funds Upon Withdrawal.  On this topic, the 
participants agreed to the intent of the section, but requested that the WCCIWMA 
legal counsel put the final touches on the wording (see Attachment B).  
Unfortunately, subsequent to this August meeting the Richmond City Manager 
retired. 
 
In December 2018 the incoming Richmond City Manager Carols Martinez notified 
Executive Director Hakes that Richmond wished to retain their three (3) voting Board 
members or have a weighted voting system that provided them with forty-three 
percent (43%) of the vote, essentially retaining a vote equal to their current three 
votes.  Subsequently, the City Managers met another two times – once before the 
January 2019 WCCIWMA Board meeting and once after.  The dialogue at both 
meetings included the thoughts of the smaller cities relative to the concessions 
provided to achieve the equal voting standard.  It was reiterated at both meetings 
that this was a key issue for the small cities, as had been stated in letters from 
Pinole, Hercules and San Pablo City Managers to Executive Director Hakes in 
advance of the January Board meeting (see Attachment C).   
 
At the conclusion of the second meeting on February 7th, it was agreed that Mr. 
Martinez would bring an item to the Richmond City Council for direction.  That item 
appeared on their February 26th agenda.  The agenda materials are attached as 
Attachment D.  From the staff report it appears two options were considered:  1) 
Remain in WCCIWMA if the Agreement attains certain “key points of equity”; or 2) 
Initiate a transition plan for future consideration (withdrawal from WCCIWMA).  
Mayor Murray attended the February 26th Richmond City Council meeting and can 
provide a verbal report as to the discussion and direction to staff.  Mayor Murray can 
also provide the history of the JEPA update discussions at the WCCIWMA Board 
meetings over the past several years. 
 
REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
It is appropriate to bring this item forward to the full Council for discussion at this 
time.  Mayor Murray has been reporting out on the progress of this matter 
periodically under Mayor and Council member’s reports.  I have also been keeping 
the Council informed of the City Manager’s meetings progress.  However, given the 



City Council Report – 10B 
March 5, 2019  3 

 

direction that Richmond’s participation has taken in the discussions of the JEPA, 
Pinole City Council direction to staff will now be required. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no direct fiscal impact at this time.  Should any of the WCCIWMA member 
agencies leave there could be a negative impact to the ratepayers of the remaining 
jurisdictions. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
ATTACHMENT A – December 2017 City Managers Recommendations to the 

WCCIWMA Board 
 
ATTACHMENT B – Summary Notes of City Managers August 23, 2018 Meeting 
 
ATTACHMENT C – January 2019 Letters from Pinole, Hercules and San Pablo 
 
ATTACHMENT D – Richmond February 28, 2019 Staff Report and Attachments 



fitzer
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A









City Managers JEPA Meeting 8/23/18

15.1 A member may withdraw from the Authority subject to the 
following provisions: 

a) Notice of Withdrawal.  A member withdrawing from the
Authority shall provide notice by submittal to the Board of a
resolution adopted by its governing body setting forth its intent
to withdraw.  The effective date of the withdrawal shall be no
sooner than one hundred eighty (180) days following submittal
of the resolution.

b) Obligations Prior to Effective Date of Withdrawal.  The
members acknowledge that a member withdrawing from the
Authority must agree to pay to the Authority its Pro Rata share
of Allocated Funds.  If the withdrawing member has not paid the
Authority its obligations under this section the amount due shall
be deducted from any amount payable to the member under
Section 15.2 below.

c) Definition of Terms.
i. “Pro Rata Share” shall mean the percentage that the

withdrawing member contributes to the Authority
budget, based on the withdrawing member waste
tonnage divided by the total Authority waste tonnage.

ii. “Allocated Funds”
1. Allocated Funds shall include all of the Authority’s

existing debts, financial obligations, and liabilities
incurred, earned, or expected to be earned by the
date of withdrawal.

fitzer
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B



2. PERS UAL and OPEB Reserve Funds are
“allocated” and not available for disbursement to
any withdrawing member agency.

3. The Operating Budget for the fiscal year in which a
notice of withdrawal is provided.

4. All reserve funds established pursuant to the
adopted Reserve Policy.

iii. “Unallocated Funds” shall mean reserve funds that
are not allocated. 1

15.2  Disbursement of Unallocated Funds Upon Withdrawal. 

a) Within ninety (90) days following receipt of a members’
notice of withdrawal, the Authority shall provide an
accounting of the Allocated and Unallocated Funds of the
Authority, including the calculation of pro-rata share.

b) After subtracting the financial obligations as described in
section 15.1(b),  remaining Operating Fund Reserves and
Recycling Fund Reserves are “unallocated” and the excess
amount of these unallocated reserves (as defined in c below)
would be disbursed upon withdrawal.

c) The “excess and unallocated” reserves would be those funds
above the reserve amounts consistent with the principles
outlined in the adopted Reserve Policy.  A percentage of the
“excess and unallocated” reserves above the target amounts
as defined in the Reserve Policy would be disbursed to the
withdrawing agency, based on their pro-rate share as
defined in Section 15.1(c).

1 Review and potentially remove the Recycling Fund from the JEPA 

Comment [MF1]: The intent here is to capture 
that a withdrawing member is entitled to their pro-
rata share of all reserve funds, after the reserve 
balances are adjusted to meet the target ratio in the 
Reserve Policy.  For example, the Operating Reserve 
target of 67% of $1 million is $670,000.  If the 
adjusted target is now 67% of $500,000 the new 
“allocated reserve” would be $335,000.  Therefore, 
any amount above $335,000 in the Operating 
Reserve is available for distribution based on the 
pro-rata share.  Same concept applies to the 
Recycling Reserve.  Kent, please review this section 
and modify the proposed language to legally comply 
with this intent.   



15.3  Obligations Following Effective Date of Withdrawal.  A member 
which has withdrawn from the Authority shall not be liable for the 
payment of Authority expenses accruing beyond the withdrawal date, 
and shall have no right to reimbursement of any assets or monies of 
the Authority following satisfaction of the terms of the JEPA payment 
of Unallocated Funds. 

2. Future JEPA Amendment-  Would require majority vote of the
Board of Directors and unanimous approval of member agency
governing bodies.

3. JEPA Sections on Future Facilities- Sections 5.3 (b) and 5.3 (d)
would remain. Section 5.3(b) would allow acquiring, constructing,
etc.  a facility.  Section 5.3 (d) would allow bond financing for a
facility. Section 5.3 (c) on eminent domain would be removed from
JEPA.

Facilities would be approved on an “opt-in” basis. First, at least a
majority of the Board would have to approve pursuing the Facility.
Those member agencies choosing to “opt- in” would participate in
the facility, have the benefits of using the facility, would pay for
costs, and would have all financial and other liability.  The
governing body of where the facility would be located (host
community) must approve the facility, and may use their rights
under Government Code Section (insert eminent domain code
section here).

4. Unanimous vote of the Board to allow Authority to require
Members to pay pass through fees. A Board unanimous vote
would be required to allow the Authority to require Members to
pass through fees under circumstances where the revenue
received from the Approved Rates is not available or inadequate
or when such amounts are not paid to the owner or operator of the
Approved Facility.



5. Penalties to be allocated based on solid waste tonnage.
Penalties assessed by CalRecycle to be apportioned by the
aggregated solid waste tons generated by each Member, and not
on an equal share.

6. El Cerrito Compensation and HHW Budget - Any member agency
with a separate Post-Collection Agreement would pay their portion
of Authority budget based on aggregated solid waste tonnage. Any
member agency with a separate Post-Collection Agreement would
pay their share of HHW program costs through an allocation based
on aggregated solid waste tonnage.

7. Financial Liability when a member agency does not vote in favor of
a Board action  - A member agency which does not vote in favor of
a Board financial liability action is still responsible for their share of
the financial liability of the action.

8. Member city designated under government code 6509- Designate
San Pablo. San Pablo and Hercules both have $50,000 contract
limit (compared to $45,000 in Pinole). City Managers felt (of the
three) that San Pablo has the most up to date financial, personnel
and administrative policies. Also, San Pablo is now updating their
purchasing policy.

9. City Managers agreed to delegate to Regional staff group to work
with Authority staff on about 20-25 other smaller issues, involving
clarification and easy to resolve issues.

10. Next JEPA draft would be an administrative draft- to be
reviewed and potentially revised by City Managers prior to 
distribution to Board, regional staff, city attorneys.  



fitzer
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT C





 
 City of Hercules 
 111 Civic Drive, Hercules, California 94547 
 (510) 799-8200     www.ci.Hercules.ca.us 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY MANAGER 
January 15, 2019 
 
Mr. Stan Hales 
Executive Director 
WCCIWMA/RecycleMore 
1 Alvarado Square 
San Pablo, CA 94806 
 
I understand that you are planning to provide your Board with an update on the proposed Joint Exercise 
of Powers Agreement amendment later this month.  Unfortunately, a recent meeting of the five West 
County City Managers was not able to resolve the issues raised by the City of Richmond.  
 
The purpose of this letter is outline the City of Hercules’ current position on the matter. 
 
The City of Hercules remains willing to proceed with the JEPA Amendment as provided for in the City 
Manager’s Framework from August 2018, with possible clarification to the financial provisions upon 
withdrawal as requested by Richmond. However, we are not able to entertain the proposed JEPA 
Amendment without the governance changes previously agreed to by the City Managers and as reflected 
in the August 2018 Framework.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
David Biggs 
City Manager 
 
xc: Mayor & City Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







February 26, 2019 Page 1 of 4 
 

 AGENDA REPORT 
 

CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE 
 
DATE: February 26, 2019 
 
TO: Mayor Butt and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM: Carlos Martinez, City Manager 
 Shasa Curl, Economic and Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: RECYCLEMORE JOINT EXERCISE of POWERS AGREEMENT VOTING 

STRUCTURE 
 
STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE: 
 
The West Contra Costa Integrated Waste Management Authority (“RecycleMore”) is a joint 
powers authority (JPA) charged with overseeing the post-collection processing of solid 
waste, recycling, and green waste materials. At the beginning of 2016, RecycleMore led the 
process to restate and revise the agency’s governing agreement known as the Joint 
Exercise of Powers Agreement (“Agreement”). City staff is seeking City Council direction on 
the proposed reduction of Richmond’s weighted vote in the draft Agreement. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
RECEIVE a presentation and provide DIRECTION to the City Manager on the voting 
structure for the RecycleMore Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no financial impact to the City’s General Fund. 
 
Richmond ratepayers contribute approximately 57 percent of RecycleMore’s operating 
budget and total revenue collected for post-collection services.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
The City of Richmond’s solid waste and recycling services are provided by two agreements 
with Republic Services: 1) a collection franchise agreement managed by the City of 
Richmond; and 2) a post-collection agreement managed by RecycleMore. The post-
collection agreement includes recyclables processing, composting, operation of a 
Household Hazardous Waste facility, and the transfer, transportation, and disposal of solid 
waste. Both the collection and post-collection agreements end in 2025. 

fitzer
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT D

fitzer
Typewritten Text



 

February 26, 2019 Page 2 of 4 

RecycleMore was formed in 1991 to finance the construction of a regional recycling facility 
known as the Integrated Resource Recovery Facility (“Recycling Facility”) and meet State 
recycling mandates. The original Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (“Agreement”) was 
developed with respect to the agency’s financial obligations, and was intended to serve as 
the governing agreement until the bonds were fully repaid on December 31, 2013. 
RecycleMore has provided benefits to member cities by meeting State recycling mandates, 
providing household hazardous waste recycling programs, and leading an updated post-
collection agreement that expanded food scrap recycling services. 
 
In December 2015, the RecycleMore Board of Directors directed RecycleMore staff to draft 
an updated Agreement that would reflect the Agency’s new role after the Recycling Facility 
construction bond repayment, update the withdrawal process for member cities, and include 
opportunities for Contra Costa County to join as an official member. The first workshop to 
receive input on the Agreement update was held April 2016, and since that time, there have 
been numerous workshops, Board Meetings, and recommendations to aid in the revision of 
the Agreement. Throughout the update process, Richmond Board Directors have 
consistently conveyed requests for equitable policies that recognize Richmond’s financial 
contribution to the JPA, and Richmond’s environmental and health burdens attributed to 
hosting the regional solid waste facilities. 
 
On December 23, 2016, Richmond’s City Manager, as directed by the Richmond City 
Council, sent a letter stating grievances with the November 2017 version of the Agreement 
and giving notice of intent to withdraw if Richmond’s requests were not satisfactorily 
addressed (Attachment 1). In an effort to support the Agreement revision process, City 
Managers from each of the RecycleMore member cities formed a working group to develop 
a RecycleMore framework (Attachment 2) for Board consideration. On January 18, 2018, 
the City Managers presented their recommended framework (“framework”) to the 
RecycleMore Board and the RecycleMore Board voted to incorporate it into the Agreement 
update. 
 
The intent of the City Manager’s framework was to focus RecycleMore on core programs, 
services, and projects, “Core Services” that would increase diversion to meet State 
mandates, improve quality of service, and effectively manage rates and the post-collection 
agreement. The Framework aimed to avoid non-core programs, services, and projects (non-
core services) unless there was unanimous agreement between RecycleMore directors. In 
addition, this Framework included a reduction in Richmond’s voting powers to assuage 
concerns from smaller cities. Richmond’s previous City Manager agreed in concept to the 
Framework; however, agreement was dependent on adequately and satisfactorily 
incorporating all elements of the City Manager’s Framework and addressing Richmond’s 
request for equitable policies. At the end of August 2018, the City Managers and JPA failed 
to broker a deal on the previous Framework. 
 
Since then, the City of Richmond’s leadership has changed and Richmond’s current 
leadership has determined that the proposed reduction in Richmond’s voting representation 
is not in the City’s best interest. The City is not obligated to continue negotiating a deal to 
reduce Richmond’s voting representation on the Board. 
 
 



 

February 26, 2019 Page 3 of 4 

City Managers JEPA Issues 
 
The principal Agreement issues that remain unresolved include: 1) voting; and 2) withdrawal. 
The other member agencies request Richmond reduce its representation on the board to one 
unweighted vote, equivalent to 20 percent (1 Richmond board member divided by 5 total 
members) and consider it a “deal breaker” if Richmond does not agree to one unweighted vote. 
Richmond requests a clear and reasonable withdrawal policy, and fair disbursement of reserve 
funds upon withdrawal. 
 
Richmond’s current voting percentage is 43% (3 Richmond board members divided by 7 
total members), and is supported ideally by all three board member’s attendance. 
Richmond’s proportional representation on the RecycleMore Board was established to 
reflect Richmond’s significant population and rate base compared to other member cities. 
The Richmond community hosts the region’s solid waste facilities; provides more than 50 
percent of RecycleMore’s budget; and incurs the most economic, health, and infrastructure 
impacts from solid waste operations. It is common practice for members of regional 
agencies to have weighted voting. 
 
Richmond City staff recommends that the City Council direct the City Manager to pursue two 
options presented below.  
 
Option 1: Remain in the JPA if the Agreement attains the following three key points of 
equity: 
 

1) Maintain Richmond’s weighted voting to include: 
a. “MCE model” (explanation stated below) 

• 1 Director equivalent to 3 votes; or 
b. Status quo with 3 Directors. 

2) Update the withdrawal language to allow member agencies to leave the agency 
and request ratepayer contributed funds proportionally and fairly. 

3) Focus JPA programs on the following: 
• Household Hazardous Waste Programs 
• Compliance with State laws 

§ Prepare and submit annual reports to Cal Recycle 
§ Remain in compliance with AB 939 and associated diversion mandates. 
§ Implement and remain in compliance with AB 341 (mandatory commercial 

recycling) and AB 1826 (mandatory organics collection) 
§ Implement and remain in compliance with SB 1383 

• Manage the Post-Collection Agreement 
• Set Post-Collection Rates 
• Outreach and Education 
• Legislative Updates 

 
 
 
 



 

February 26, 2019 Page 4 of 4 

The “MCE model” would utilize the voting model adopted in the MCE JPA as stated below. 
 
Summary (example) of voting percentage calculation: 

1. (1/total Number of Directors)/multiplied by 50 AND (10 percent for each member city) 
2. (Jurisdiction Annual Solid Waste Tonnage/JEPA Total Annual Solid Waste Tonnage) 

multiplied by 50 (Approximately 29.3 percent for Richmond) 
The sum of the above is equivalent to: 10% + 29.3% = 39.3% for Richmond’s weighted 
voting. 

 
Option 2: If there is no agreement between the member cities, then RecycleMore and 
the City of Richmond should initiate a transition plan for future consideration. 
 
The Member Agencies’ contributions to RecycleMore were reported in the April 6, 2017 
Financial Impact and Disposal/Diversion Report by R3 Consultants. The report concluded 
that Richmond ratepayers contribute a net $916,318 annually to the RecycleMore budget. If 
Richmond were to withdraw, it would receive an estimated $916,318 annually to manage 
the Post-Collection Agreement and provide related recycling services. The following findings 
summarize the subsidies and contributions from RecycleMore budget and Richmond’s 
ratebase: 
 
• Richmond ratepayers contribute $515,000 of RecycleMore’s $991,000 annual budget. 
• Richmond ratepayers contribute $508,531 of RecycleMore’s $978,607 HHW budget. 

§ R3 estimates our participation costs are $382,981 annually, with a net annual 
variance of $125,464 (the variance is due to the Richmond’s lower participation 
at the HHW facility and revenues generated from solid waste tonnage). 

• Richmond ratepayers contribute an annual rate subsidy of $315,854 to other JPA cities 
(Richmond has a higher industrial and commercial ratepayer base). 

• It is important to note that Richmond ratepayers benefit from approximately $40,000 of 
recycling revenues generated by other participating cities. 

 
It is important to consider Richmond’s responsibility and obligation to contribute to 
retirement obligations. RecycleMore Board has recently appropriated significant funding 
from the reserves to address the CalPERS Unfunded Accrued Liability and Other Post-
Employment Benefit liabilities. More information still needs to be analyzed on future 
liabilities if Richmond were to withdraw. 
 
Additionally, household hazardous waste costs in the post-collection agreement are 
aggregated regionally with all RecycleMore cities. Richmond has reached out to Republic 
Services to provide feedback on the April 6, 2017 Financial Impact and Disposal/Diversion 
Report by R3 Consultants to determine how Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) costs and 
services may be affected by withdrawal. City staff will continue to evaluate all potential 
financial obligations and clarify cost changes if the City were to withdraw from RecycleMore. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. City Manager Letter to RecycleMore 12-23-16 

2. City Managers’ Recommendation 12-5-17 



















   

 

 CITY COUNCIL  
 REPORT 9C 

 
 
DATE: AUGUST 20, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  
 
FROM: MICHELLE FITZER, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: APPROVING THE COUNCIL NORMS OF BEHAVIOR 

ESTABLISHED DURING THE CITY COUNCIL TEAM BUILDING 
WORKSHOP 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt a resolution approving the Council 
Norms of Behavior established during the City Council Team Building workshop.      
 
BACKGROUND 

In April the City Council awarded a contract to Management Partners to conduct 
Council Team Building and Community Strategic Planning processes.  The Council 
Team Building workshop was held on Saturday, June 29, 2019. 
 
REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
At the Council Team Building workshop the Council discussed and agreed upon 
Council Norms of Behavior to follow in general and at Council meetings moving 
forward.  This item is being brought before the Council to formally approve these 
Council Norms. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
A. Resolution, with the Council Norms as Exhibit A  



ATTACHMENT A 
 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2019-XX 
 

A RESOLTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE  
APPROVING THE COUNCIL NORMS OF BEHAVIOR  

ESTABLISHED DURING THE CITY COUNCIL TEAM BUILDING WORKSHOP 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council hired Management Partners to conduct Council 
Team Building; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council participated in a full-day of Team Building on June 
29, 2019; and 
 
 WHEREAS, out of that workshop the Council established a list of Council 
Norms of Behavior that they wish to follow, attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Pinole that it does hereby approve the Council Norms and agrees to adhere to them. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of August, 2019 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:   
 
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:   
 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:   
 
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:   
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on 
this 20th day of August, 2019. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 

What are the Pinole Council norms? 
 
 

• Work for the common good, not for personal interest. 
 
• Communicate through the City Manager. 
 
• Work for “win/win” solutions by striving for consensus and 

seeking common ground. 
 
• The Council’s policy deliberation process will be performed in 

the following order: 
o Council questions; 
o Public questions; 
o Council deliberations; 
o Motion(s); 
o A decision made by majority vote. 

 
• Praise Council and staff decision(s) in public and offer 

corrective comment(s) in private. 
 
• Share information with each other early in the process to 

avoid surprises. 
 
• Address one another by role and last name and shake hands 

once the meeting concludes. 
 

• Establish a structure where the Mayor calls on members. 
 
 
 


	2019-08-20
	7A
	7A-1
	7B
	7C
	Staff Report Kitchen Remodel Budget Add 2019 -Final
	Resolution Kitchen Remodel Budget Add 2019 Final

	7D
	Surplus Equipment Staff Report August 2019 FINAL
	Recommendation
	BACKGROUND
	REVIEW & ANALYSIS
	FISCAL IMPACT

	ATTACHMENT

	Reso for Surplus Property Aug 2019 FINAL
	Surplus Property List August 2019
	Sheet1


	7E
	MPA Board Designee Staff Report
	DATE: AUGUST 20, 2019
	TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

	BACKGROUND

	MPA Board Designee Reso

	7F
	SR Grand Jury response - Stormwater Trash Reduction
	Grand Jury Report - Stormwater Trash Reduction
	Grand Jury Finding Response Letter - Stormwater

	7G
	SR Garbage Liens SR 08.20.19
	FROM: HEATHER IOPU, CITY CLERK
	ATTACHMENT
	A Resolution


	Garbage Liens Reso 08.20.19
	RESOLUTION NO. 2019-___


	7H
	Raney Task Order 5 over 45k FINAL
	DATE: AUGUST 20, 2019
	BACKGROUND
	REVIEW & ANALYSIS
	FISCAL IMPACT
	This task order is the fifth task order to be scoped for Raney Planning & Management, for four discrete projects. Two prior projects are development projects where the cost of the work will be reimbursed either by fees already assessed and collected o...
	As per the City Purchasing Policy, the City Manager’s signing authority is limited to $45,000.  This single task order exceeds the signing authority of the City Manager, and City Council approval is required.
	ATTACHMENTS
	A Resolution
	B Raney Contract Amendment

	Raney 5th task order RESO FINAL
	Raney Environmental Amendment 08012019 Pinole Square

	7I
	New Fire Engine Purchase 2019 Staff Report Aug 20 2019 with ATV - FINAL (2)
	DATE: AUGUST 20, 2019
	TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS
	Recommendation

	BACKGROUND
	FISCAL IMPACT

	RESOS
	RES New Fire Engine Purchase Aug 20 2019 without ATV - FINAL
	RES Utility Terrain Vehicle 2019
	WHEREAS, it is requested that the Council consider adding a utility terrain vehicle (UTV), capable of responding to patients for medical calls, or fires, earthquake or other disasters in hard-to-reach areas of the City; and
	WHEREAS, this vehicle will allow Firefighters to get into places their other vehicles can’t reach, whether it be pedestrian bridges, hilly terrain, rural areas, or tight urban environments.  This vehicle will also be able to transport patients.


	Pinole Fire Department Pinole CA-Contract for Purchase_Capitol Pumper_Final for Signature_08 09_19
	ATT C

	7J
	Pinole - SR - Balcony Ordinance Amendment 2nd Read
	Att B - 7-16-19 SR
	Pinole - Ordinance amending Balcony Inspection Rules 7.8.19


	7K
	SR Update of Master Fee Schedule - Recreation
	FISCAL IMPACT
	ATTACHMENTS
	A Resolution
	B Proposed fee schedule changes



	resolution master fee schedule
	Updated MasterFeeSchedule-recreation department

	9A
	DATE: AUGUST 20, 2019
	TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

	BACKGROUND
	FISCAL IMPACT
	ATTACHMENT


	9B
	WCCIWMA JEPA Amendment Staff Report
	DATE: AUGUST 20, 2019
	TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

	BACKGROUND

	RESO
	WCCIWMA JEPA Amendment Reso
	Final- 2019.07.18 Board Approved Amended and Restated JEPA

	WCCIWMA JEPA Status Update Report to Council 3-5-19
	10B-sr-WCCIWMA
	BACKGROUND

	10B-Att A
	10B-Att B
	10B-Att C
	10B-Att D


	9C
	Council Norms Staff Report
	DATE: AUGUST 20, 2019
	TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

	BACKGROUND

	Council Norms Reso
	Council Norms


	RTA: 


